
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
   CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
THURSDAY, JUNE 14, 2012 

CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 PM 
CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE 

An announcement regarding the items to be discussed in Closed Session will be made in the 
City Hall Council Chambers prior to the Closed Session.  Members of the public may, at this 
time, address the City Council on closed session items only. 

 

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Govt. Code §54957.6) 
Negotiator: Jamie Goldstein, City Manager 

Employee Organizations: Association of Capitola Employees, Capitola Police 
Captains, Capitola Police Officers Association, Confidential Employees, Mid-
Management Group, and Department Head Group. 

Negotiator: John Barisone, City Manager 
City Manager’s Contract 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (b) of GC §54956.9: Two cases:  
1. City of Capitola Insurance Coverage Claim Against Lexington Insurance  

(Noble Gulch Storm Drain Failure); 
2. Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park Pipe Failure and Closure; 
3. Consideration of lawsuit against the Department of Finance – Disputed Recognized 

Obligations of the Successor Agency. 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION (Govt. Code §54956.9)  

1. Kevin Calvert, D.D.S. and Pamela Calvert vs. City of Capitola, et al. [Superior Court of 
the State of California for County of Santa Cruz, Case #CV 172804]; 

2. Katie Saldana vs. City of Capitola, et al. [Superior Court of the State of California for 
the County of Santa Cruz, Case #CV 172324]; 

3. Foremost Insurance Company vs. the City of Capitola, et al. [Superior Court of the 
State of California for the County of Santa Cruz, Case #CV 173228]; 

4. Truck Insurance vs. the City of Capitola, et al. [Superior Court of the State of 
California for the County of Santa Cruz, Case #CV173071]; 

5. David Ross; Carousel Taffy Morro Bay, Inc.; Village Mouse dba; The Thomas Kinkade 
Gallery Capitola; Judith Ferro vs. the City of Capitola, et al. [Superior Court of the 
State of California for the County of Santa Cruz, Case #CV 173642]; 

6. American Alternative Insurance Corporation; Central Fire Protection District of Santa 
Cruz County vs. the City of Capitola, et al. [Superior Court of the State of California for 
the County of Santa Cruz, Case #CV173926]. 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (Government Code §54957)  
 City Council’s Performance Evaluation of City Attorney 

LIABILITY CLAIMS (Govt. Code §54956.95) 
Claimant:  Claudia Monjaraz 
Agency claimed against:  City of Capitola 

Mayor:      Michael Termini 
Vice Mayor:           Stephanie Harlan 
Council Members: Kirby Nicol 

    Dennis Norton 
    Sam Storey 

Treasurer      Jacques Bertrand 

City of Capitola Agenda 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – JUNE 14, 2012  2 
  

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – 7:00 PM 

 
1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Council Members Stephanie Harlan, Dennis Norton, Kirby Nicol, Sam Storey, and Mayor 
Michael Termini 

 
2. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Proclamation honoring Amateur Radio Week - June 17 thru June 24, 2012. 
 

3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION  
 

4. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

Oral Communications allows time for members of the Public to address the City Council on any 
item not on the Agenda.  Presentations will be limited to three minutes per speaker.   Individuals 
may not speak more than once during Oral Communications.  All speakers must address the 
entire legislative body and will not be permitted to engage in dialogue. All speakers are requested 
to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so that their name may be 
accurately recorded in the minutes.  A MAXIMUM of 30 MINUTES is set aside for Oral 
Communications at this time. 
 

6. COUNCIL/STAFF ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

7. COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 
 

ALL MATTERS LISTED ON THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA SHALL BE CONSIDERED AS PUBLIC HEARINGS. 

 

8.  CONSENT CALENDAR 

All items listed in the “Consent Calendar” will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below.  
There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Council votes on the 
action unless members of the public or the City Council request specific items to be discussed for 
separate review.  Items pulled for separate discussion will be considered following General 
Government. 
 
Note that all Ordinances and Resolutions which appear on the public agenda shall be determined 
to have been read by title and further reading waived. 
 

 A.  Consideration of denying a liability claim of Claudia Monjaraz in the amount of 
$720.00 and forward to the City’s liability insurance carrier. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Deny Liability Claim. 
 

 B.  Approve City Council Minutes of the Regular Meeting of April 26, 2012. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Minutes. 
 

 
 
 
 
 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – JUNE 14, 2012  3 
  
8.  CONSENT CALENDAR (continued) 

 C.  Consideration of approving the First Amendment to City Manager Employment 
Agreement. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Agreement. 
 

 D.  Consideration of approving the following agreements: 
1. Memorandum of Understanding with the Mid-Management Employees 

Bargaining Unit for a Term of July 1, 2012 expiring June 30, 2015; 
2. Memorandum of Understanding with the Confidential Employees 

Bargaining Unit for a Term of July 1, 2012 expiring June 30, 2015; 
3. Sixth Amendment to the Employment Agreement for the Public Works 

Director recognizing negotiated changes in salary and benefits for July 
1, 2012 – June 30, 2015. 

4. First Amendment to the Employment Agreement for the Finance 
Director recognizing negotiated changes in salary and benefits for July 
1, 2012 – June 30, 2015; 

5. First Amendment to the Employment Agreement for the Administrative 
Services Director recognizing negotiated changes in salary and 
benefits for July 1, 2012 – June 30, 2015; 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Agreements. 
 

 E.  Consideration of a Resolution of Intention to Levy Business Improvement 
Assessments for Fiscal Year 2012-2013, which receives the Capitola Village 
and Wharf Business Improvement Area Annual Report and the proposed 
Fiscal Year 2012-2013 Budget; sets a public hearing to receive oral or written 
protests on the levy of assessments for Fiscal Year 2012-2013 for Thursday, 
June 28, 2012; and directs required noticing of the public hearing by the City 
Clerk and the Capitola Village and Wharf Business Improvement Area. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution, receive annual report, and set 
public hearing for June 28, 2012. 
 

 F.  Consideration of the purchase of an unmarked detective vehicle for the Police 
Department in the amount of $20,695.73 and surplus the police vehicle to be 
replaced. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve vehicle purchase. 
 

 G.  Consideration of a Resolution amending Resolution No. 3820 and Resolution 
No. 3869 pertaining to Gann Appropriation Limits for Fiscal Years 2010-11 
and 2011-12 respectively; recommendation by Teaman Ramirez and Smith 
(City’s previous audit firm). 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution. 
 

 H.  Consideration of a Resolution establishing a Gann Appropriation Limit 
pursuant to Article XIIIB of the California Constitution for Fiscal Year 2012-
2013. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution. 
 

 
 
 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – JUNE 14, 2012  4 
  
8.  CONSENT CALENDAR (continued) 

 I.  Consideration of awarding a janitorial bid to Clean Building Maintenance in the 
amount of $47,783.50 per year. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the agreement. 
 

 J.  Receive Planning Commission Action Minutes for the Regular Meeting of June 
7, 2012. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive Minutes. 
 

 K.  Consideration of a Resolution implementing the provisions of Section 
414(H)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code related to the 2.5% at 55 Retirement 
Plan for Miscellaneous Employees and 3% at 50 Plan for Public Safety 
Employees. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution. 
 

 L.  Adoption of a Resolution adopting the proposed 2012/2013 Fiscal Year 
Budget for the City of Capitola General Fund, the Capitola Successor Agency, 
and the Capital Improvement Budgets. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution. 
 

 M.  Receive the Mayor’s appointment of Frank Phanton as an alternate member 
to the Architectural and Site Review Committee. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive Appointment. 
  

 N.  Consideration of approving a request to proceed with recruitment for the 
vacancy of the unexpired term youth member to the Commission on the 
Environment. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve extension. 
 

9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT/PUBLIC HEARINGS 

General Government items are intended to provide an opportunity for public discussion of 
each item listed.  The following procedure is followed for each General Government item:  
1) Staff explanation; 2) Council questions; 3) Public comment; 4) Council deliberation;  
5) Decision. 

 

 A.  220 Oakland Avenue – Project Application # 12-044  
Appeal of Planning Commission decision to approve a Fence Permit and a 
Major Revocable Encroachment Permit to construct a wall within the City 
right-of-way as part of a single-family residential use in the R-1 (Single-Family 
Residence) Zoning District [APN 036-124-20]. Filed 3/29/12. Property Owner: 
Christann A. Bohnet. Representative: John Draga. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Deny the application. 
 

 B.  Consider report and presentation on traffic evaluation for Gilroy Avenue. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept report and provide direction to the Police 
Department. 
 

 
 
 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – JUNE 14, 2012  5 
  
 
9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT/PUBLIC HEARINGS (continued) 

 C.  Consideration of a Resolution regarding a Visitor Service Fee (Transient 
Occupancy Tax) Measure for November 6, 2012 Election. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Discuss and provide direction, adopt Resolution. 
 

 D.  Consideration of adopting a Resolution authorizing certain Council Members 
to file written arguments for or against City Measure(s) and filing of rebuttal 
arguments for City Measure(s) submitted at the November 6, 2012 General 
Municipal Election, and approve timeline for filing Arguments/Rebuttals for 
City Measure(s). 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution. 
 

 E.  Designation of Voting Delegate and Alternate for the League of California 
Cities Annual Conference in San Diego, California, from September 5 to 7, 
2012.   
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Designate a Voting Delegate and Alternate to the 
Annual League Conference. 
 

 
AT THIS POINT, ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR WILL BE CONSIDERED

 
10. COUNCIL/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 

 

A. Staff Comments 
 

B. City Council/Treasurer Comments/Committee Reports 

City Council Members /City Treasurer may comment on matters of a general nature or identify 
issues for staff response or future council consideration.  Council Members/Committee 
Representatives may present oral updates from standing committees at this time. 

 

11. ADJOURNMENT 

Adjourn to the next Regular Meeting of the City Council to be held on Thursday, June 28, 
2012, at 7:00 p.m., in the City Hall Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
California. 

 
 
Note:  Any person seeking to challenge a City Council decision made as a result of a proceeding in which, by law, 
a hearing is required to be given, evidence is required to be taken, and the discretion in the determination of facts is 
vested in the City Council, shall be required to commence that court action within ninety (90) days following the 
date on which the decision becomes final as provided in Code of Civil Procedure §1094.6. Please refer to code of 
Civil Procedure §1094.6 to determine how to calculate when a decision becomes “final.” Please be advised that in 
most instances the decision become “final” upon the City Council’s announcement of its decision at the completion 
of the public hearing. Failure to comply with this 90-day rule will preclude any person from challenging the City 
Council decision in court. 

Notice regarding City Council: The Capitola City Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month at 
7:00 p.m. (or in no event earlier than 6:00 p.m.), in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 Capitola Avenue, 
Capitola. 

Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials: The City Council Agenda and the complete agenda packet are available 
on the Internet at the City’s website: www.ci.capitola.ca.us. Agendas are also available at the Capitola Post Office 
located at 826 Bay Avenue, Capitola. 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – JUNE 14, 2012  6 
  
Agenda Document Review:  The complete agenda packet is available at City Hall and at the Capitola Branch 
Library, 2005 Wharf Road, Capitola, on the Monday prior to the Thursday meeting. Need more information?   
Contact the City Clerk’s office at 831-475-7300. 

Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet: Pursuant to Government Code 
§54957.5, materials related to an agenda item submitted after distribution of the agenda packet are available for 
public inspection at the Reception Office at City Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California, during normal 
business hours. 

Americans with Disabilities Act:  Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons with a 
disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Assisted 
listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting in the City Council 
Chambers.  Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting due to a disability, please 
contact the City Clerk’s office at least 24-hours in advance of the meeting at 831-475-7300. In an effort to 
accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are requested to refrain from wearing 
perfumes and other scented products. 

Televised Meetings: City Council meetings are cablecast “Live” on Charter Communications Cable TV Channel 8 
and are recorded to be replayed at 12:00 Noon on the Saturday following the meetings on Community Television of 
Santa Cruz County (Charter Channel 71 and Comcast Channel 25).  Meetings are streamed “Live” on the City’s 
website at www.ci.capitola.ca.us by clicking on the Home Page link “View Capitola Meeting Live On-Line.”  
Archived meetings can be viewed from the website at anytime. 



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JUNE 14, 2012 

FROM: CITY MANAGER'S DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: LIABILITY CLAIMS 

Item #: 8.A. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Deny liability claim and forward to the City's liability insurance carrier. 

DISCUSSION: 

The following claimant has filed a liability claim against the City of Capitola: 

1. Claudia Monjaraz: $720.00 

ATTACHMENTS: None 

Report Prepared By: Liz Nichols 
Executive Assistant to the City Manager 

Reviewed and FOI)t'f~. ed 
by City Manager: \ \ 

. I 
} 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\06-14-12\8.A. Liability Claims_report.docx 1



Item #: 8.B. 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JUNE 14,2012 

FROM: OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF THE APRIL 26, 2012 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING CAPITOLA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the subject minutes as submitted. 

DISCUSSION: Attached for City Council review and approval are the minutes to the subject meeting. 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. April 26, 2012 Minutes 

Report Prepared By: Susan Sneddon, CMC 
City Clerk 

R\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\06-14-12\8.B. CCMinutes.docx 

By City Manager: \ 
Reviewed and FO*. r ed 

\.. 
\ 

2



12217 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL - APRIL 26, 2012 

ATTACHMENT 1 
NOT OFFICIAL UNTIL APPROVED BY COUNCIL 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CITY COUNCIL 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING 

April 26, 2012 
Capitola, California 

5:30 P.M. - CLOSED SESSION - CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Termini called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. Council Members present: Council 
Member Harlan, Council Member Nicol, Council Member Storey, and Mayor Termini. Council 
Member Norton was absent. Mayor Termini made an announcement regarding the items to 
be discussed in Closed Session, as follows: 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (b) of GC §54956.9: Two 
cases: 
1. City of Capitola Insurance Coverage Claim Against Lexington Insurance 

(Noble Gulch Storm Drain Failure); 
2. Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park Pipe Failure and Closure. 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION (Govt. Code §54956.9) 

1. Kevin Calvert, D.D.S. and Pamela Calvert vs. the City of Capitola, et al. [Superior 
Court of the State of California for the County of Santa Cruz, Case #CV 172804]; 

2. Katie Saldana vs. the City of Capitola, et al. [Superior Court of the State of 
California for the County of Santa Cruz, Case #CV 172324]; 

3. Foremost Insurance Company vs. the City of Capitola, et al. [Superior Court of the 
State of California for the County of Santa Cruz, Case #CV173228]; 

4. Truck Insurance vs. the City of Capitola, et al. [Superior Court of the State of 
California for the County of Santa Cruz, Case #CV173071]; . 

5. David Ross; Carousel Taffy Morro Bay, Inc.; Village Mouse dba The Thomas 
Kinkade Gallery Capitola; Judith Ferro vs. the City of Capitola, et al. [Superior 
Court of the State of California for the County of Santa Cruz, Case #CV173642]. 

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Govt. Code §54957.6) 

Negotiator: Jamie Goldstein, City Manager 
Employee Organizations: Association of Capitola Employees, Capitola Police 

Captains, Capitola Police Officers Association, Confidential Employees, Mid
Management Group, and Department Head Group. 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (Government Code §54957) 

Title: City Manager 

Mayor Termini noted that there was no one in the audience; therefore, the City Council 
recessed at 5:30 p.m. to the Closed Session in the City Manager's Office. 

3



12218 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL - APRIL 26, 2012 

7:00 P.M. - OPEN SESSION 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Termini called the Regular Meeting of the Capitola City Council to order at 7:15 p.m. 
on Thursday, February 23, 2012, in the City Hall Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, 
Capitola, California. 

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

PRESENT: Council Members Stephanie Harlan, Kirby Nicol, Sam Storey, and Mayor 
Michael Termini 

ABSENT: 
OTHERS: 
STAFF: 

Council Member Dennis Norton 
City Treasurer Jacques Bertrand 
City Manager Jamie Goldstein, City Attorney John Barisone, Public 
Works Director Steve Jesberg, Finance Director Tori Hannah, and City 
Clerk Susan Sneddon 

2. PRESENTATIONS: None provided. 

3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION [520-25] 

City Attorney Barisone stated that items the City Council discussed in Closed 
Session are the items listed on the April 26, 2012, Closed Session Agenda. The City 
Council discussed with Attorney Gumbiner (special counsel), City Manager Goldstein; 
and City Attorney Barisone the potential first party insurance coverage lawsuit against 
Lexington Insurance Company's failure to honor the City's claim for property damages 
from the March 2011 pipe failure incident; a status report was received, and the City 
Council provided direction regarding the potential prosecution of the lawsuit. City 
Attorney Barisone stated that the City Council provided direction regarding the 
numerous potential litigation cases arising out of the Pacific Cove Mobilehome Park 
closure. He stated that the City Council did not discuss the litigation cases against the 
City of Capitola, arising out of the March 2011 pipe failure by third-party property 
owners, because there were no new developments to report. He stated that the City 
Council received a status report from the City Manager and the Administrative 
Services Director, the City's labor negotiators, regarding the following employee 
bargaining organizations: (1) Association of Capitola Employees; (2) Capitola Police 
Captains; (3) Capitola Police Officers Association; (4) Confidential Employees; (5) Mid
Management Group; and (6) Department Head Group; the Council took no reportable 
action. Mr. Barisone stated that the labor negotiators took instruction from the Council 
with regard to ongoing negotiations. He stated that due to time constraints the City 
Manager's performance evaluation did not occur. 

4



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL - APRIL 26,2012 12219 

4. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA 

None provided. 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Angela Flynn stated that the last day to opt-out of getting a SmartMeter installed at a 
residence is May 1, 2012. 

Marilyn Garrett stated she opposes SmartMeters. 

Carol Lerno, Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park, Space 66, stated her brother is 
experiencing difficulty in relocating a residence as a result of the Pacific Cove Mobile 
Home Park closure. 

6. COUNCIL/STAFF ANNOUNCEMENTS (None provided) 

7. COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS (None provided) 

8. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. Approve City Council Minutes of the Regular Meetings of March 8, 2012, and 
March 22, 2012. 

B. Receive the City Check Register Reports dated March 16, 2012; March 23, 
2012; March 30, 2012; April 6, 2012; and April 13, 2012. [300-10] 

C. Approve an amendment to the Administrative Policy Regarding the Memorial 
Program. [100-10/1040-50] 

D. Receive Planning Commission Action Minutes for the Special Meeting of 
April 19, 2012. [740-50] . 

E. Art & Cultural Commission 2011 Annual Report. [1010-60] 
F. Consideration of Resolution amending the Bylaws of the Capitola Art & 

Cultural Commission regarding membership. [1010-60] 
G. Consideration of approving the purchase of one police patrol vehicle and a 

police equipment package in the amount of $37,305, not to exceed $38,000; 
request to surplus the police vehicle being replaced. [370-40/370-10] 

Council Member Storey requested that Item 8.C. be pulled for discussion. 

Council Member Nicol requested that Item 8.G. be pulled for discussion. 

Motion by Council Member Harlan, seconded by Council Member Storey, to 
approve Items No.8. A, B, D, E, and F on the Consent Calendar. The motion was 
unanimously carried. 

5



12220 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL - APRIL 26, 2012 

Following actions on the Consent Calendar, the City Council then discussed Item 8. C. 
and Item 8. G. and took separate action on those items. 

C. Approve an amendment to the Administrative Policy Regarding the Memorial 
Program. [100-10/1040-50] 

Council Member Storey asked if a family who provided a memorial plaque would be 
contacted if the plaque were lost or damaged from a natural disaster. (Administrative 
Services Director Murphy responded the family would be contacted). 

ACTION: filiation by Council fIlIember Harlan, seconded by Council Member 
Storey, to approve an amendment to the Administrative Policy Regarding the 
Memorial Program. The motion carried unanimously with the following vote: 
A YES: Council Members Harlan, Nicol, Storey, and Mayor Termini. NOES: None. 
ABSENT: Council Member Norton. ABSTAIN: None. 

G. Consideration of approving the purchase of one police patrol vehicle and a 
police equipment package in the amount of $37,305, not to exceed $38,000; and 
request to surplus the police vehicle being replaced. [370-40/370-10] 

Police Chief Escalante introduced this item. 

ACTION: Motion by Council Member Storey, seconded by Council Member Nicol, 
to approve the purchase of one police patrol vehicle and a police equipment 
package in the amount of $37,305, not to exceed $38,000; request to surplus the 
police vehicle being replaced. The motion carried unanimously with the 
following vote: A YES: Council Members Harlan, Nicol, Storey, and Mayor 
Termini. NOES: None. ABSENT: Council Member Norton. ABSTAIN: None. 

9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT/PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Receive report and recommendations regarding the Reposa Avenue Traffic 
Analysis; consideration of an 'amendment to Title 10 (Vehicles and Traffic) of the 
Capitola Municipal Code to prohibit commercial traffic on Reposa Avenue. 
[490-20] 

Public Works Director Jesberg introduced this item. He stated that the Public Works 
Department conducted a traffic impact analysis on Reposa Avenue as part of the 
approval of the Fairfield Inn and Suites Hotel Project. 

Council Member Storey asked about the purpose of the median island built as part of 
the hotel project. 

Public Works Director Jesberg responded that the median was installed to prevent 
vehicles from turning left off Brommer Street into the hotel; the median will probably be 
relocated in the southerly direction to make the westbound lane wider. 

6



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL - APRIL 26, 2012 12221 

Mayor Termini opened this item to the public. 

Bonnie Ford, 4055 Reposa Avenue, spoke in favor of this proposal. 

Ron Graves, 420 Riverview Avenue, asked if banning commercial traffic would affect 
those who operate their businesses out of their residences on Reposa Avenue. 

City Attorney Barisone responded that those operating businesses out of their 
homes would be exempt from the ban on commercial traffic on Reposa Avenue. 

Mayor Termini closed this item to the public. 

ACTION: Motion by Council Member Nicol, seconded by Council Member Storey, 
to approve an ordinance to a second reading amending Sections 10.48.010 and 
10.48.040 of the Capitoia Municipal Code to prohibit commercial traffic on 
Reposa Avenue and amending the code to be consistent with State law, and 
authorize the Department of Public Works to redesign the 41st Avenue/Brommer 
Street intersection to improve truck movements from southbound 41st Avenue 
on to westbound Brommer Street, including removal or relocating the raised 
median [1st Reading]. The motion carried unanimously with the following vote: 
A YES: Council Members Harlan, Nicol, Storey, and Mayor Termini. NOES: None. 
ABSENT: Council Member Norton. ABSTAIN: None. 

B. Consideration of a contract with the City of Santa Cruz for $67,000 to perform 
lifeguard services on the beaches in the City of Capitola and authorize a budget 
adjustment in the amount of $5,352. [1020-50/500-10 AlC: City of Santa Cruz] 
[Budget Adjustment 330-10] 

Police Chief Escalante introduced this item. He stated that the goal is to continue to 
provide maximum sustainable, certified lifeguard services to the community, while 
being efficient with our available resources. He reviewed the benefits of contracting 
with the City of Santa Cruz to perform lifeguard services. 

Council Member Storey asked if the lifeguard recertification for the City of Santa 
Cruz is more stringent than the City's lifeguard training. He asked about the cost 
savings for the proposed contract for lifeguard services. 

Police Chief Escalante stated that the costs of the proposed contract fall over two 
different fiscal year budget cycles. The City has already spent a portion of lifeguards' 
personnel expenses this fiscal year, which is an additional cost that will increase the 
salaries for the Police Department by approximately $5,352. 

City Manager Goldstein. stated this contract will provide another full-time Community 
Service Officer during the summer months. 

Mayor Termini opened this item to the public. 

7



12222 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL - APRIL 26, 2012 

Ron Graves, 420 Riverview Avenue, stated concerns regarding additional costs to 
the City if the proposed contract is approved. 

Mayor Termini closed this item to the public. 

Council Member Storey asked if emergency mutual aid is provided county-wide. 

Captain Oatey, Santa Cruz Fire Department Marine Safety Division, stated that 
county-wide mutual aid services are provided, and he presented a brief summary of 
lifeguard services to be provided on the beaches in the City of Capitola. 

ACTION: Motion by Council Member Storey, seconded by Council Member Nicol, 
to authorize a contract with the City of Santa Cruz for $67,000 to perform 
lifeguard services on the beaches in the City of Capitola, and authorize a budget 
adjustment in the amount of $5,352. The motion carried unanimously on the 
following vote: A YES: Council Members Harlan, Nicol, Storey, and Mayor Termini. 
NOES: None. ABSENT: Council Member Norton. ABSTAIN: None. 

C. Consideration of options for the Rispin Property consistent with State 
requirements to dispose of property owned by the former Redevelopment 
Agency (RDA). [275-10] 

Mayor Termini introduced this item and requested public input and City Council 
direction. 

City Manager Goldstein reviewed the establishment of the Oversight Board charged 
with overseeing the winding down of the RDA's activities. He stated that the Rispin 
property is considered an asset of the former RDA and the Mayor, who is a member of 
this Board, is requesting direction regarding the methodology in complying with the 
state law requirements and direction regarding reducing the minimum administrative 
cost allowance as prescribed in the state legislation. He provided a brief history of the 
Rispin property and stated that the Board may decide to transfer the property back to 
the City with concessions, or will decide to dispose of the property by selling it on the 
open market. He noted that the property is limited by the City's public access and 
conservation easements. He suggested that the Mayor, as a Board member, be 
provided direction to either seek to have the property transferred back to the City, 
which would likely include concessions on the note; or that the property be sold, and 
new uses of the property be limited by the zoning (City's public access and 
conservation easements). Any changes to the historic structure would be subject to 
CEQA requirements. 

Mayor Termini stated that the state law is clear; the City is to be given a minimum of 
$250,000 per year for administrative fees, unless the City agrees to a lesser amount. 

City Manager Goldstein stated the staff recommendation is for Council to not 
voluntarily reduce the administrative cost allowance as specified in the state law. 

8



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL - APRIL 26, 2012 12223 

Mayor Termini opened the public hearing. 

Peter Latour, Santa Cruz Hostel, proposed that the building on the Rispin property 
be utilized as a hostel. 

Mayor Termini closed the public hearing .. 

Council Member Nicol stated the Oversight Board's disposition of the Rispin property 
could be a windfall because the City has the public access and conservation 
easements that run with the property, and there may be an acceptable future proposal. 
He stated that the City should get the money back because the Rispin property was 
sold to the RDA for the same amount that the City paid for it ($1,365,000). 

Council Member Harlan stated that her preference would be for the City to keep the 
Rispin property and plan how it could be open for public use. 

Council Member Storey stated that he would like the City to keep control of the 
Rispin property; he stated concerns regarding the City losing control if the Oversight 
Board decides to sell the property. 

Mayor Termini stated this is new legal territory, and the Council may decide to keep 
the property and forgive the note; however, the state may have .a different idea. He will 
forward Council's comments/concerns to the next Oversight Board meeting. He stated 
that he understands that the Council does not desire to voluntarily reduce the 
minimum administrative cost allowance for the Capitola Successor Agency. 

D. Consideration of reentering loan agreements between the City and the 
Successor Agency to the former Redevelopment Agency (RDA) of the City of 
Capitola. [500-10/780-40 AlC: City/Successor Agency] 

City Manager Goldstein stated that as part of the RDA dissolution process, the 
Oversight Board approved the Certified Recognized Obligation Payments Schedule 
(ROPS); the period for the California State Department of Finance to challenge the 
ROPS has expired. He stated that the certified ROPS provide the City an opportunity 
to re-enter into the Loan and Repayment Agreement ($618,028) and the Rispin 
Purchase Loan ($1,350,000) as debts of the Successor Agency. 

Mayor Termini opened this item to the public 

Peter Latour, Santa Cruz Hostel, invited the Council and staff to tour the Santa Cruz 
hostel. 

Mayor Termini closed this item to the public 

ACTION: Motion by Council Member Kirby, seconded by Mayor Termini, to 
approve re-entering the loan agreements between the City and the Successor 
Agency to the former Redevelopment Agency of the City of Capitola. The motion 
carried unanimously on the following vote: A YES: Council Members Harlan, Nicol, 

9



12224 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL - APRIL 26, 2012 

Storey, and Mayor Termini. NOES: None. ABSENT: Council Member Norton. 
ABSTAIN: None. 

10. COUNCIL/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 

City Manager Goldstein stated that the north side of the City Hall parking lot has 
been temporarily closed for tree removal. 

Public Works Director Jesberg announced plans for the Pacific Cove Mobilehome 
and City Hall property will be discussed at 9:30 a.m. at the Saturday, May 1ih General 
Plan Workshop. In addition, he stated that the owner of Crest Apartments obtained a 
permit from the California Coastal· Commission to fill a sea cave; the project has 
created jack hammer noise at the end of Esplanade Park. 

Council Member Nicol requested the Public Works Director look into modifying the 
lane configuration on eastbound Clares Street between 40th Avenue and 41 st Avenue. 

Mayor Termini stated that he attended a special luncheon hosted by Paradise Beach 
Grille Restaurant, where he provided Mayor Proclamations to wounded soldiers who 
participated in a nonprofit program called Operation Surf; this program provides surfing 
lessons to active military amputees. 

11. ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Termini adjourned at 8:40 p.m. to the next Regular Meeting of the City Council 
to be held on Thursday, May 10, 2012, at 7:00 p.m., in the City Hall Council 
Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 

10



FROM: CITY ATTORNEY 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REpnRT 

Item #: s.c. 

MEETING OF JUNE 14, 2012 

SUBJECT: CITY MANAGER EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT-FIRST AMENDMENT 

. RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the First Amendment to the City Manager Employment 
Agreement. 

BACKGROUND: The Department Head contracts and all of the bargaining units have been in 
negotiations regarding the terms and conditions of their agreements and MOU's. Traditionally the City 
Managers contract is also reviewed when the Department Head contracts are considered. 

DrSCUSSION: The City Manager's employment agreement contains many basic provisions· which are 
shared with other employee groups. There are several provisions however which the City Manager's 
contract does not contain. This amendment is intended to make the City Manager's contract more 
consistent with other employee groups 

• Vacation Cap: Amend the cap to allow for any hours above 360 to be automatically cashed out, 
preventing the employee from accumulating more then 360 hours. Currently when the 
employee reaches 360 hours, the hours do not accumuJate and are not cashable. 

• Personal Holidays: Add three personal holidays. Consistent will all employees. 

• PERS Retirement Cap: Cap the employer contribution rate at 16.4880/0. All miscellaneous 
employees except the City Manager have an employer contribution cap. The City currently 
pays the full PERS rate. On July 1 , 2012 the employee portion will be 8.267%. In exchange for 
the employee paying the 8.267%, the City will contribute the same amountto a 457 Deferred 
Compensation account. Future PERS rate increases will be paid by employee. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The implementation ofthe PERS cap of 16.488% will eventually save the City money 
as the PERS rates are expected to continue to increase each year while the 457 deferred 
compensation contribution of 8.267% will not change. In FY13-14 the PERS rate for the employee Will 
increase to 8.987%, therefore the City will saveD.72%. 

ATTACHMENT: 
1) First Amendment to City Manager Employment Agreement 
2) Original Agreement 

Report Prepared By: Lisa G. Murphy Reviewed and Fo a 
Administrative Services Director by City AttorneY:~<r+-.f"'"7' 

11



ATTACHMENT 1 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO 

CITY MANAGER EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

This first Amendment to City Manager Employment Agreement is entered into on 
_____ , 2012 with an effective date of ,2012, by and between the 
City of Capitola, a municipal corporation (hereinafter referred to as "City"), and Jamie 
Goldstein, an individual (hereinafter referred to as "Employee"), and is intended to 
amend that particular City Manager Employment Agreement dated February 12,2010 
subsequently modified by an undated "First Waiver" that went into effect as of June 4, 
2010 (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Original Agreement"). 

1. Section 7.A.2 of the Original Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows: 

"2. Vacation - Cap. If Employee has accumulated more than 360 
hours of vacation as of the last pay period in April of any year, he shall be 
paid in cash at a rate equal to 100% of his current hourly pay rate for all 
hours in excess of360. The payment will be included with the paycheck 
for the first pay period in May." 

2. Section 7.1 is hereby added to the Original Agreement to read as follows: 

"J. Personal Holidays. Employee is entitled to three (3) personal 
holidays per calendar year. Unused personal holidays are not cumulative." 

3. Section 9.A of the Original Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows: 

"A. PERS Retirement. Employee shall be authorized to participate in 
the City's Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) operated by the 
State of California. Benefits (including 2.5% at 55 and the single highest 
year option) provided are detailed in separate publications. The provisions 
of Resolution No. 3627 regarding employer-paid member contributions 
and the reporting thereof are applicable to Employee. 

Employee is required to pay any PERS cost amount in excess ofthe 
16.488% cap." 

4. Section 9.E is hereby added to the Original Agreement to read as follows: 

"E. The City shall make contributions to a 457 Deferred Compensation 
Account (or equivalent account as approved by the City Attorney and 
Employee) in an amount equal to 8.267% of employee's regular salary 
(not including Flex Credit, cell phone allowance, or other compensation.)" 

5. Except as hereinabove stated, all other terms and conditions of the Original 
Agreement remain in full force and effect, are hereby re-stated and are hereby 
incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth. 

12



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this First Amendment to the 
City Manager Employment Agreement the day and year written above. 

Dated: _______ _ CITY OF CAPITOLA 

By: 
-~~---------------

Michael Termini, Mayor 

Dated: _____________ _ EMPLOYEE 

By: -------------------
Jamie Goldstein 

Approved as to Form 

John G. Barisone, City Attorney 

2 
13



ATTACHMENT 2 

·~ 

\ 

~ 

CITY MANAGER EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

TIllS AGREEMENT is entered into as of July 12, 2010, by and between the City 
of Capitola, a California municipal cOlporation (hereinafter "Employer" or "City"), and 
Jamie Goldstein (hereinafter "Employee"), with'reference to the following recitals: 

WHEREAS, Employee has been employed by Employer since October 2008 in 
the "at-will" position of Community Development Director for the City of Capitola; 

WHEREAS, Employer now desires .to employ Employee in the "at will" position 
of City Manager for the City of Capitola, as provided for in the Capitola Municipal Code; 

. WHEREAS, it is, the desire of the Capitola City Council (hereinafte;- "Council") 
to provide certain benefits and' to establish certain conditions of employme:rit for 
Employee as City Manager; . 

WHEREAS, it is the further desire of the Council to: (1) secure and retain the 
services .of ~ployee as C~ty Manager and .to provi4e inducement for him. to remain in 
such employment; · (2) to maximize Employee's productivity by assuring .Employee's 
morale and peace of mind With respect to future job security; (3) to create a deterrent 
against malfeasance or dishonesty for personal gain on the part of Employee; and (4) to 
provid.e a just means for terminating Employee's SeMces as City Manager at such time 
as Employee or Employer may so desire; and 

WHEREAS, Employee desires to continue employment with· Employer;'; the "at ' 
will" position of City Manager for the City of Capitola; . 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein"contained," 
the Employee and Employer agree as follows: 

Section 1. Duties 

City agrees to employ Employee as City Manager of City on" an '~'at-will" basis to 
perform the city manager functions and duties speCified in the Capitola Municipal. Code 
and California GoveInnient . Code, and to perform" other legally permissible and proper 
duties and functions as the Council may assign from time to time. In addition, Employer 

" agrees that Employee shall serve as EXecutive Director for the Capitola Redevelopment 
Agency. . _. . 

Section 2. Term 

A. . This Agreeineot shall take effect on July 12, 2010, Thereafter the Council 
may terminate the services of Employee at any time,· subject to the provisions set forth in 
Sections 4 or 5 of this Agreement and any applicable local; State or federal laws, rules, . 
regulations, or applicable court"decisions or rulings. 

I 

14



,c--·\ . , , 

\ 
I -' 

B. Employee agrees to remain in the exclusive employment of City and not to' 
become employed by any other employer until this Agreement is terminated. The term 
"employed" shall not be construed to include occasional teaching, writing, or consulting 
with the prior permission of the Council. 

C, The Agreement shall remain in force and effect until this Agreement is 
terminated as provided for in Sections 4 or 5 of this Agreement. 

Section 3. Suspension 

'The Council may, in the exercise pf its discretion, suspend .Employee with pay 
and benefits at any time during the term of this Agreement, if after. a public hearing or 

. closed session and an opportunity for Employee to be heard, a majority of Council votes 
to suspend Employee. Upon furth~r iI:lvestigation by the, Council arid a further 
opportunity for Employee to be heard, the Council may SUSpend Employee without pay 
or benefits sbould the Council find that 'Employee committed any of the offenses set forth 
in Section; ' 4.B below, otherwise violated any City, State or federal statute, rule 
regulation or policy or otherwise engaged in malfeasance or misconduct, and upon said 
finding a majority.ofthe Council votes to suspend Employee without pay, 

Section 4, Termination 

A,. With severance compensation. The Council may, ~ the exercise of its, 
discretion. terminate Emplqyee's employment With or without cause. However, . 
Employee's employment may not be terminated pursuant to this Subsection A within 
ninety (90) days o£ a general municipal election at which one or more City Council 
members are elected or re-elected to office, . If Employee is terminated, or if Employee 
resigns following a request by a majority of the . Council at a public meeting or closed 
session that. he resign, during a time th?t EmpJoyee is otherwise willing and able to 
perform h,is duties under this Agreement; then Employer agrees to provide sixty· days 
written notice of termination or to accept Employee~s vmtten.resignation effective sixty 
days from the date ofEInployee's resignation letter, 'and to make severance,payments as 
follows (in addition to compensation for certain accrued benefits as hereinafter provided) 
to Employee beginning at the conclusion of said sixty-~y period. 

Number of full years of completed employment Number of months of severance pay 

Less than two 9 months 

Two or more 12 months 

"Severance pay" includes salary as set forth in Section 6, insurance premiums as set forth. 
in Section 9, and flexible spending plan contributions as set forth in Secti9n 9, No 
vacation, sick leave, administratiye leave, or any other leave time shall accrue during the 
severance pay period, nor shall PERS contributions be made. Severence pay may be 

i paid, at the option of the Employee, in (I) lump sum upon date of termination; (2) lump 
'-..,J sum on January 1 of the calendar year following termination; or (3) four ~ua1 monthly 

.2 

15



) 

J 

installments. Such payment will release City from any f\utb.er obligations arising out of 
the employment. 

, 
B. Without severance. Employee may be immediately discharged without 

severance payments (but without loss of accrued benefits as hereinafter set forth) for any 
of the following: 

(i) Conviction of a felony. 

(n) Conviction of any criminal offense involving Employee's illegal 
personal gain; 

(iii) Willful misconduct in the performance of Employee's duties as 
City Mailager. 

C. If City, at any time during the term of this Agreement, reduces the salary 
or o~er financial- benefits of Employee in a greater percentage than an across-the-bo8fd 
reduction for City department heads; or in the event Employer refuses, following written 
notice, to comply with any other material provision of this Agreement benefiting 
Employee herein; or if Employee resigns following a request by a majority of the Council 
at a public meeting"or closed session that he resign;.then in that. event, Employee may, at 
.Employee's option, be deemed to be ~erminated as of the date of suchsalary"reduction or 
such refil:sal to comply for purposes of the seve~ce pay pro~slOns set forth in 
Subsection A above. 

D. In the event Employee voluntarily resigns his position with· City, 
Employee shal! provide City a minimum of sixty (60) days written notice of resignation, 
unless the parties otherwise agree. 

E. For purposes of Subsection A, this Agreement will be deemed b bave 
qeen terminated should any of the following occur: 

1. "The majority of the Council votes to terminate Employee as authorized in 
. Subsection A at a duly authorized public meeting or closed session. 

2.' The Employer, citi~eru, or Council act to amend any pro~sion of the Capitola: . 
Municipal Code pertaining to the role, powers, duties, authority, or responsibilities of the \ 
City Manager so as .to substantially 'change the form of Capitola city government, 'and llle 
Employee within thirty (30) days thereafter provides written notice to Employer that 
Employer has thereby tenninated this Agreement. 

3. The Employer reduces or citizens vote to reduce the base salary, cQmpensation or 
any other financial benefit to the Employee, unless it is applied in no greater percentage 
than the average reduction of all other City department heads, and the Employee within 

3 

\ 

16



.:..........:.. thirty (30) days thereafter provides written notice to Employer that Employer has thereby 

~ 

) terminated this Agreement. 

4. A breach of contract is declared by either Employee or Employer in writing 
provided that a thirty-day cure period is extended by the non-breaching party to the , ' 
breaching party 'and the breaching party fails to cure the breach within said thirty-day 
cure period. 

F. Should this Agreement be te:tminated pursuant to Subsection A prior to 
January 1, 2012, Employee, prior to the effective date of termination, shaH have the 
option to. terminate the employment of the then-cUrrent ' Community Deve10pment 
Director, reinstate his Capitola Community D~veiopment Director's contract and resume 
'his employment as Capitola Community Development Director ·With the salary and 
'benefits that were in placofor that position as ofJuly 11, 2010. 

Section 5. Disability 

If Employee is unable to perfonn his duties because of sickness, accident, injury, 
mental incapacity, or poor health for a period qf four consecutive · months, at the 
conclusion of such four-month period the Council .shall have the option to terminate this 
Agreement. If Employee is thereby terminated because of disability, he shill be 
compensated in a lump sum for any benefits which accrue per SectionS 5, 6 and 9 of this' 

--,; Agreerp.ent. However, Employer shall have no· obligation to make severance payments 
). pursuant to Section 4.A of this Agreement. 

\) 

Section 6. Salary 

A. Begimring upon Employee's first day of employment as City Manager; , 
July 12, 2010, Employee shill be paid a base monthly salary of $11,917. As it is 
expected the City's furlough program will be continued through the 2010111 fiscal year, 
Employee's base monthJy salary of $11,917 as of July 12, 2010, 'shill be reduced by ' 
4.6% to a furlough monthly salary of$11,369. 

B., Beginning July 1, 2011, Employee's base, monthJy salary shall be 
increased 'to $12,500. Should the City's furlough program be continued into the 2011112 
fiscal year, Employee's base monthJy salary of $12,500 as of July 1, 2011; shill be 
reduced by 4.6% to a furlough monthJy salary of $11,925. 

C. Emplo"yee shall receive the same benefits from the furlough ·program, such 
as furlough time off, in the · same manner as other employees participating in the City's 
furlough program. 

D. Beginning July 1, 2012, Employee's base monthly or furlough monthJy 
·salary shall be annually increased by a percentage corresponding to the previous year's 
(May through April) percentage increase in the San rrancisco-;Oakland all consumers 
Consumer Price Jndex ("CPI")" Any other salary adjustinents following the July 1, 2012 
salary adjustment called for in Subsection B shall be sq.bject to negotiation between 

4 

17



) 

Employee and the Council. 

B. Should at any time during the term of this Agreement the City adopt a 
reduced work schedule in lieu of a furlough program for non-safety employees (e.g. a 
permanent four-day/36-hour work week with a corresponding ten percent salary 

. reduction), Employee shall work the same. red)lced work schedule and receive the same 
corresponding salary reduction. 

Section 7. Leave/HolidayslFurlough 

A. VACATION. 

1. Commencing on July 12, 2010 Employee will accrue vacatiort at the rate of 17 
days per year (1.4 days per month) . . Commencing on July 1, 2013 Employee will accrue 
vacation at the rate of 22 days per year (1.8 days per month). COIilmencing on July 1; 
2023 Employee will accrue vacation at the rate of 27 days per year (2.25 days per 
month). Employer acknowledges that as of July 12, 2010, Employee has accumulated 
165.98 vacation hours to which Employee shall remain entitled subject to the provisions 
of this Subsectiob."A. These hours will also be subject to accnial and use until. Employee 
assmnes the position of City Manager, at which time the balance as' may have been 
properly adjusted will transfer to Employee's benefit as City Manager. 

2. Employee may accumulate a maximum of thirty vacation days (240 hours). If 
Employee has accurnuh,ted more than thirty vacation days (240 hours) as of the last pay 
period in April of any year, Employee shall then· be paid .in cash at a rate equal to 100% 
of his current monthly pay rate for vacation hours in excess of 240 up to a ::r;naximum of ' 
eighty (80) such excess vacation hours. Any such "cash out" payment will be included 
with the paycheck for the first. full pay period in May. Employee shall discontinue 
,accumulating vacation days, should accumulated vac~tion hours reach the 240 hour 
~aximum and the maximum 80 hour cash out not decrease vacation hours below the 240 
hour maximum. 

3. Upon texmination of this Agreem~t, . except · as set forth in Section 4.F above 
(where Employee upon termination resumes employment ·as the City's Community 
Development Director), Employee shall be paid for all accumulated vacation to the date 
of Employee's separation from service to the City, at a rate equal to .100% of his currept 
monthly pay rate. . 

B. SICK LEAVE. Sick leave shall accumulate at the rate of twelve days per 
year (8 hours per month; 96 hours per year). Employee shall not be entitled to "cash out" 
unused sick leave. Sick leave may be used by Employee for any of the purposes set forth 

. in pertinent State or- federal · statutes or.regulations. Employer acknowledges that as of the 
end of the pay period January 23, 2010, Employee has accumulated 93.93 hours of sick; 
leave to which Employee shall remain entitled subject to th~ provisions of this 
Subsection. These hours will also be subj~t to acc~a1 and use until Employee assumes 
the position of City Manager, at which time the balance as may have been properly 
adjusted. will transfer ~o Employee's benefit as City Manager. 

5 

18



) 

, 
) 

· C. BEREAVEMENT LEA YE. Leave ofabsence.With pay because of a death 
in Employee's immediate family shall be granted for a period not to exceed three days. 
Entitlement to a"bereavement leave of absence under this Subsection shall be in addition 
to any other entitlement for leave provided for in this Agreement. For purposes of this 
Subsection "immediate family" means mother, 'step-mother, father, step-father, husband, 
Wife, domestic partner as defined by the State of California, son, step:son, daughter, step
daughter, brother, sister, foster p.arent, foster child, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, mother
in-law, father-in-law, grandparents, and any individual to whom Employee "is serving in 
loco parentis: 

D. FAMlLY & MEDICAL LEAVE. With respect to Employee's 
employment herelplc;ier, the City shall follow the provisions gove~g family leave as 
specified in the federal Family MedicaI Leave Act of 1993 and the California Family 
Rights Act as those Acts apply to public employees. 

E. LEA YE OF ABSENCE w:rrnOUT PAY. A leave of absence without 
pay may be granted by the Council, -in its sale discretio.n, upori the request of Employee; 
however no such leave of absence may be for longer than one year. . 

F. JURy ·DUTY. Leave. of absence with pay shall be granted by City to 
Employee while Employee serves 011 jury duty. Time spent commuting from home' to . 
jury duty or. vice versa is not compensable. Time spent traveling from court to City Hall 
or vice .versa·is Compensable. Any jury fee paid to Employee shall be deposited with the 
City Treasurer. . 

G. HOLIDAYSIFURLOUGHS. 

1. Employee· shall be granted twelve (12) holidays ·annually. The holidays to be 
observed are set forth below. To the extent that the City's bargaining unit MOU's abould 
in the .future be amended to revise the City's holiday schedule; this Agreement shall be 
deemed ~utomaticaJ.ly amended to reflect the revised holiday schedule. 

IndependenceI>ay 
Labor Day 
Columbus Day 
Veterans' Day 
Thanksgiving Day 
Friday Following Thanksgiving 
Christmas Day 
New Year's Day' 
Martin Luther King Day 
Lincoli>.' s Birthday 
Presidents~ Day 
Memorial Day 

Holidays listed abov~ occurring.·on a Saturday shall be observed on Friday. Holidays 
listed above occurring on a Sunday shall be observed on Monday. 

6 

19



A , 

., 
) 

In addition, when City Hall is closed for one week during the Christmas holidays 
Employee shall be permitted ,to use vacation, administrative leave or sick leave in order 
not to lose compe~ation . 

. H ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE. Beginnirlg on July 12, 2010, Employee 
shall accrue ten (10) days (eighty hours) administrative leave annually which shall be 
awarded on July 1 of each year, the first such award to occur July 1, 2011. Employee 
may accrue a maximum of 240 hours of administrative leave. Employee shall not be 
entitled to "cash out" unused adi:nin:lstrative leave. Employer aclmowledges that ,as of the 
end of the pay period January 23, 201.0, Employee has accumulated 80 hours of 
administrative leave which Employee shall remain entitled to -subject to the p:x:ovisions of 
this Subsection. Thesy hours will also be subject to accrual arid use. until' Employee 
assumes the position of City Manager. at which time the balance as may have been 
properly adjusted-will transfer to Employee's benefit as City Manager. 

1. In . the event of Employee's termination of employment under' this 
Agreement, none of the foregoing leaves shall continue to accrue following th.e date of 
employment termination or during any severance pay period. 

Section 8. ' Business Expenses 

A. Employer agrees to budget and pay for professional dues and SUbscriptions 
.necessary for Employee's continuation and:full participation in national, regional, state, 
and local associations, and organizati6:lls necessary and desirable for Employee's 
continued professional participation. growth, 'development and advancement, and for the 
good of Employer. 

B. Employer agrees to budget and pay for travel ari.d subsistence expenses of 
Employee for professional and officiai trav(11, meetings, short courses, institutes, seminars 
and other educational conferences so' as to adequately continue Employee's professional 
development and Employee's participation in necessary official. functions on Employ~r's '., 
behalf, including but not limited to' the lCMA Annual Conference, the League of 
California Cities Annual Conference and City Manager Meetings, and such other 
national, regional, state, and local governmental groups and committees ip. which 
Employee may serve as a member relative to the Employee's employment as a city 
manager. 

c: Mileage Reimbursement. When.Employee is required to use his personal vehicle 
while on City business, Employer will !eimburse Employee at the Inter:nal Revenue 
Service mileage rate then in effect. 

7 

20



.... -
\ 

) , 

) 

Section 9 . Benefits 

A. PERS Retirement. 

Employee shall be authorized to participate in the City's Public Employees Retirement · 
System (PERS) operated by the State of California. Benefits (including 2.5% at 55 and 
the single highest year option) provided are detailed in separate pUblications. The City 
shall pay Employee's share of the PERS retirement contributions. 

B. Insurance. 

The City will provide Employee with a policy .of term life insurance in the amount of 
$50,000 and a policy of long-term disability insurance. Employer shall pay for ' all 
insurance premiums necessary to keep these p.olicies in effect. 

D. Flexible Spending Arrangement Contributions. 

Employer shall make flexible spending arrangement ("Flex . Plan") contributions on 
behalf of Employee. Should Employee select health coverage through PERS, from the 
monthly Flex Plan contribution set forth herein, $97 per month will be paid to FERS ·for 
what is sometimes referred, to 'as the "employ~r contribution". The monthly Flex Plan 
conlribution paid by the City pursuant to this Subsection 9.D shall be $650. 

Should Ei:nployee verify to the City's satisfaction that:; he hasequivalent health coverage 
for medical (including dental & vision) .provided through his spouse, which will remain 
in effect until the next enrolbnent date; or should Employee purChaSe a PERS Health Plan 
and dental and .vision coverage, but ~ot use the entire monthly contribution, Employee 
may then use the remaining contribution funds to purchase benefits other than medical 
(including dental & vision) coverage or, alternatively. may receive that amount in cash. 
If a cash payment is elected, it will not be included. in Employee's compensation for 
purposes of the City's PERS retirement plan 

The City reserves the option of addiug additional programs to the cafeteria plan as they 
may become available. 

Should during the ferm of this Agreement any non-safety City MOU be. enacted or 
amended to provide for City Flex Plan contributions in an amount other than $650 or 

. otherwise revise the MOU', Flex Plan provisions, this Agreement shall be deemed 
automatically ml:ended to reflect that new Flex Plan contribution or revision. 

Section 10. Hours of Work 

Employee shall devote all of his employment time to his position as City Manager 
and shall generally work normal office hours. It is recognized that Employee must 
devote substantial time outside normal office hours to City business or related CitY 
business activities, meetings and functions, and to that end Employer acknowledges that 
Employee will need to exercise a flexible work ~chedule. 

8 

21



) 

Section 11. Outside Activities 

Outside activities shall not interfere with the performance .of Employee's duties 
under this Agreement. ' 

Section 12. Performance Evaluation 

A. The Council shall review and evaluate Employee's performance at least 
. once annually on a date to be determined by -the Council. The Council shall provide 

Employee with an adequate opportunity to discuss his .evaluation in closed session. 

B: Annually, the Council, after consulting with Employee, shall define such 
goals and performance objectives which it determines are necessary for the proper 
operation of the City and the attainment of the Council's policy objectives, and shan 
further establish a relative priority among those various goals and objectives. The goals 
and obj ectives shall ·be reduced to writing, and shall generally be attainable witlUn the 
specified time . limitations and within the annual operation and capital budgets and 
appropriations adopted by the Council. . 

. Section 13., Indenmification 

. A. Except as provided in Government Code Section 995.2, City shall provide ' 
a legal defense to Employee including but not'limiied to. legal counsel in:. a) any civil 
action or proceeding described in Govenmient· Code Sectiolf 995; b) any admini1>trative 
action or proceeding described in Section 995.6;· or any criminal action or proceeding 
described in Government Code Section 995.8. "Proceeding" as used in this section is 
applicable to situations where ·a claim or action is threatened, but not filed, if a 
reasonable, prudent person would consult or retain counsel in respon~e to the po~sibility 
of potential civil, administrative, or criminal action. If City pays for a defense, but a 
court or tribunal issues a final ruling that would, und~r Section 995~2, · preclude City 
payments for defense, Employee shall immediately reimburse City, and if he fails to do 
so, City may offset any such amounts against compensation otherwise due Emp-IoYBe 
under this Agreement. 

B. . The City shall provide and pay for the costs of any surety or other bonds 
required of the Employee. 

Section 14, Fair Labor Standards Act-Exempt 

Employee's employment as City Manager is covered by appropriate sections of 
the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1935, and is specifically subject to Rule No. 54.118 
(salaried exe.cutive employees are not pmd at a higher rate for what might otherwise be 
labeled "overtime"; correspondingly, their salary is not reduced "for any week in which 
(s)he performs any work without regard to the number of days or hours worked. II 
Accordingly, bi-weekly time sheets will not result:in adjustments to t,he compensation for 
the period, -but will be used merely for a yearly evaluation of whether the City Manager's 
position is, after factoring in administra.tive leave, ·over or unde~-staffe~. However, 

9 

22



--. . , , 

Employee's time off for sick leave purposes shall he reported and reflected In 

accumulated sick leave calculations. 

Section 15. Residence 

The Council 'hereby acknowledges that Employee resides in the cCity of Santa 
Cruz. In accordance' with Capitola Municipal Code Section 2.08.020, the City's 
execution of this agreement shall constitUte the Council's approval of Employee's 
continued residence outside of the CitY. . . 

Section 16. Other Terms and Conditions of Employment 

The Council, in consultation with the Employee, may fix any such other terms 
and conditions of Employee's employment, provided any such additional terms or 
conditions do not conflict with the provisions of this Agreement. 

Section 17. Notices 

Notices pursuant to this Agreement shall be given .in person or by U.S. mail 
addressed as follows: 

Employee: Jamie Goldstein 

. City: 

320 Moore Street· 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
(831) 477-6501 

Capitola City Council 
A20·CapitolaAvenue . 
Capitol., CA 95010 
(831) 475-7300 

The parties shall advise .each· other'of any change in address or phone number. 

Section 18. General Provisions 

A. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement betweep the parties~ 

E. Eoth parties shall comply with all applicable City, 'State and federal laws. 

C. Employee will not be required or expected to violate any City, State or 
federal laws, rules, regulations, or resolutions. ' 

D. This Agreement shall'be binding upon and inme to the benefit of the heirs 
and executors of Employee. 

E. This Agreement shall be administered and interpreted in accordance with 
California law. . 

)0 

23



!~ , 

) 

IN WTINESS WHEREOF, the City of Capitola has caused this Agreement to be 
signed and executed on its behalf by its Mayor whose signature is duly attested to by its 
City Clerk, and the Employee has signed and executed this Agreement, both in duplicate, 
on or before F~'j> 12.. ,2010 in Capitola, California. 

s t will take effect on July 12, 2010. 

, 

Arrov,. ';:;-!~fF nn 
. . /. 

. ' """ ""') ~ '-
City,fttomey 

I 

2- . -/,(/ 

. " 

11 

24



CITY MANAGER EMPOlYMENT AGREEMENT 

fiRST WAIVER 

WHEREAS, on February 11, 2010 the City of Capitola (CITY) and Benjamin (Jamie) Goldstein (EMPLOYEE) 

entered into an City Manager Employment Agreement (AGREEMENT). 

WHEREAS, Section 4(F) of the Agreement states: 

F. Should this Agreement be terminated pursuant to Subsection A prior to January 1, 2012, 

Employee, prior to the effective date of termination, shall have the option to terminate the employment 

of the then-current Community Development Director, reinstate his Capitola Community Development 

Director's contract and resume his employment as Capitola Community Developmerit Director with the 

salary and benefits that were in place for that position as of July 11, 2010. 

NOW, THEREFORE, with the execution of this agreement/waiver, Section 4(F) of the AGREEMENT is 

removed from the AGREEMENT and no longer a part of the AGREEMENT, and at no time will EMPLOYEE 

in his capacity as City Manager be able to dismiss or terminate the Community Development Director for 

t he sole purpose of resuming his employment as the Capitola Community Development Director. 

This Waiver will take effect on June 4, 2010. 

CITY Of CAPITOLA EMPLOYEE 

B~f/# 
L 

Rich Hill, City Manager 

25



Item #: 8.0. 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JUNE 14, 2012 

FROM: CITY MANAGER'S DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: MID-MANAGEMENT & CONFIDENTIAL MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
(MOU) AGREEMENTS; PUBLIC WORKS, FINANCE & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
DIRECTORS EMPLOYEE CONTRACTS 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the City Manager to approve the negotiated changes in salary 
and benefits for July 1, 2012 - June 30, 2015 for the following: 
1) MOU for the Mid-Management Employees' Bargaining Unit 
2) MOU for the Confidential Employees' Bargaining Unit· 
3) Sixth Amendment to the Employment Agreement for the Public Works 
4) First Amendment to the Employment Agreement for the Finance Director 
5) First Amendment to the Employment Agreement for the Administrative Services Director 

BACKGROUND: The Mid-Management and Confidential Employees' Bargaining Unit Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) expires on June 30,2012. As required by state law the City has negotiated with 
the bargaining units on working conditions, salary and benefit changes, and has reached agreement 
with both units. 

The Department Heads include the Public Works Director, Finance Director and the Administrative 
Services Director, all of whom are employed through individual contract agreements. The City has also 
negotiated adjustments to their contracts and has reached agreement with the Department Heads. 

DISCUSSION: After several weeks of good faith negotiations with the employee bargaining units and 
the Department Heads, the City negotiating team recommends a three year contract expiring June 30, 
2015 which includes a requirement that new employees pay 5% .more toward their pension costs during 
their first five years with the City. Below are the negotiated changes listed by the year the changes will 
be implemented for all of the agreements. 

YEAR COST OF LIVING HEALTH CARE PERS REFORM 
INCREASE 

Yr 1: 7/1/12 0% +$25 for Emp/$50 for Emp+1 or more Employer Cap on 
Yr 2: 7/1/13 0% +$25 for Emp/$50 for Emp+1 or more contribution of 11.488% 

for new hires. 
Yr 3: 7/1/14 1 year average of CPI 

Year 1: Effective July 1, 2012: COLA: 0% Cost of Living Increase; Health Care: an increase in the 
Flexible Spending Contribution amount for medical, dental & visi"on as follows: Employee Only and 
those who choose not to utilize the City's insurance, an increase of $25 per month, employee plus one 

. and employee plus two will receive an increase of $50 per month to help offset the rising cost of health 
insurance. 

Year 2: Effective July 1, 2013: COLA: 0% Cost of Living Increase; Health Care: an increase in the 
Flexible Spending Contribution amount for medical, dental & vision as follows: Employee Only and 
those who choose not to utilize the City's insurance, an increase of $25 per month, employee plus one 
and employee plus two will receive an increase of $50 per month to help offset the rising cost of health 
insurance. 

26



JUNE 14,2012: CITY MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AGREEMENTS AND DEPARTMENT 
HEADS EMPLOYEE CONTRACTS 

Year 3: Effective July 1,2014: COLA: the employees will receive a cost of living increase based on the 
one year average of the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose Consumer Price Index for All Urban 
Consumers January 2013 through December 2013. 

In addition, the Mid-Management Group's optional vacation cash out hours will be increased from 40 to 
80 hours which is consistent with the Confidential Employee Unit. The Department Heads will receive a 
5% longevity pay after 12 years of service. Finally, the agreement includes the following statement: "If 
the Police Officers Association should be granted any salary or health care flex plan increase during 
the term of the agreement, the members of Mid-Management, Confidential and the Department Heads 
shall receive the same increase at the same time." 

FISCAL IMPACT: Below is a summary table with the cumulative fiscal impact of the agreements. Year 
three is based on a 1 % salary increase. Year three fiscal impacts will be dependent upon the actual 
CPI, but by knowing the impact of 1 % one is able to formulate a fiscal scenario. 

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 @ 1% 

Confidential $ 1,200 $ 1,200 $ 2,400 

Mid-Managers $ 2,100 $ 2,100 $ 5,200 

Dept. Heads $ 1,800 $ 8,050 $ 10,250 

Added Cost per year $ 5,100 $ 11,350 $ 17,850 

Total Cumulative added cost $ 5,100 $ 16,450 $ 34,300 

The5% PERS cap reduction for new employees will result in limited savings in the next fiscal year as it 
. is unlikely the City will hire a significant number of new employees. Over the long term it is anticipated 

the costs savings from the PERS cap reduction, if applied to all bargaining units in the City, will average 
approximately $50,000 - $70,000/year, or 1 % of payroll. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1) MOU for the Mid-Management Employees' Bargaining Unit 

. 2) MOU for the Confidential Employees' Bargaining Unit 
3) SiXth Amendment to the Employment Agreement for the Public Works 
4) First Amendment to the Employment Agreement for the Finance Director 
5) First Amendment to the Employme'nt Agreement for the Administrative Services Director 

Report Prepared By: Lisa G. Murphy 
Administrative Services Director 

Reviewed and ~ 
by City Manag ~ 

R\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City CounciI\06-14-12\8.D. Employee Agreements staff report.doc 27



0

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN

MID-MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES AND CITY OF CAPITOLA 
PERIOD

7/01/2012 to 6/30/15 
TABLE OF CONTENTS

      
                          Page

SECTION I WAGE SCHEDULES/EMPLOYMENT STATUS………………    1 
 Service……. ………………………………………………………………… 2      
 Acting Appointment Compensation……………………..……………………    2 
 Overtime……………………..……………………………………..…………    2 
 Effective Date of Pay Increase…………………..……………………………    3 

SECTION II: LEAVE PROVISIONS .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .    .   .   .   .     3 
 Vacation ………………………………………………………………………. 3 
 Sick……………………………………………………………………………. 4  
 Personal Holidays……………………………………………………………… 4 
 Bereavement…………………………………………………………………… 4 
 Holiday Schedule………………………………………………………………… 4 
 Jury Duty………………………………………………………………………. 5 
 Leave of Absence without pay…………………………………………………. 5 
 Accruals after date of separation…………………………………………………. 5 

SECTION III: BENEFITS ………………………………………………………….. 5 
 Flexible Spending……………………………………………………………… 5 

Retirement……………………………………………………………………… 6 
 Shoes & Apparel…………………………………………………………………… 6 
 Physical Exams………………………………………………………………… 7 
 Insurance………………………………………………………………………. 7 
 Mileage Reimbursement…………………………………………….…………. 7 

SECTION IV: INCENTIVE PROGRAMS  …………………………………….… 7 
 Longevity……………………………………………………………………... 7 
 Education……………………………………………………………………… 7 
 Bilingual Pay……………………………………………………………….. …        7 
SECTION V: EMERGENCY MEALS    .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .    .    .   .   .   .    .    .    . 7 
SECTION VI: GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES  .   .   .    .   .   .   .    .    .   .   .   .    .    .    . 8 
SECTION VII: LAYOFFS……………..  .   .   .    .   .   .   .    .    .   .   .   .    .    .    . 10
SECTION VIII: MISCELLANEOUS  .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .    .    .   .   .   .    .  .    . 10 
 Legal Defense……….………………………………………………...........  10 
 Use of Employer Facilities………………………………………………....  10 
 Bargaining Time…………………………………………………………..… 10 

Re-opener…………………………………………………………………….. 10 
Required Meeting…………………………………………………………….. 10 
Emergency Call Back…………………………….…………………………… 11 

 POA “Me Too” Clause…………………………….…………………………… 11

ATTACHMENT 1 

28



1

MID-MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES 
 MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is made and entered into between the City of 
Capitola (hereinafter referred to as “City”) and the Mid-Management employees.   
Classifications covered by this MOU are:  Associate Planner, Housing and Redevelopment 
Project Manager, Senior Planner, Maintenance Superintendent, Parks Maintenance 
Supervisor, Recreation Supervisor, Streets and Facilities Maintenance Supervisor, 
Building Official and Supervising Accountant.  This MOU shall be in effect for the period 
beginning on July 1, 2012 and ending on June 30, 2015 and shall be effective upon 
ratification by the bargaining unit and approval by the Capitola City Council. 

SECTION I.  WAGE SCHEDULES/HOURLY RATES/EMPLOYEE STATUS 

The wage schedule attached to this Memorandum of Understanding sets forth the base pay, 
subject to such adjustments (such as longevity pay) as are specifically set forth in this 
MOU.  Letters  “A” to “E” have been used to designate the respective pay steps for each 
position.   The rates contained in the wage schedule are base salary rates and do not 
include overtime or benefits.  

The City will compile and average the San Francisco – Oakland – San Jose Consumer 
Price Index (all urban consumers) reported CPI for January 2013 through December 2013.  
If the resulting figure for averaged CPI is greater than 0%, that figure shall be used as the 
percentage for salary increase for members of the unit, effective first full pay period in 
July, 2014.

A. Merit Pay 

 A merit pay advancement for an employee shall become effective on the first day 
of the pay period in which the minimum length of service has been satisfactorily 
completed.   

 When an employee has not been approved for advancement to the next higher wage 
step, the employee shall be reconsidered for such advancement after the completion of 
either three months of additional service, or after a period of three to six months of 
additional service if the supervisor concludes that three months will be insufficient time to 
evaluate whether the performance deficiencies that led to the denial of the step increase 
have been adequately addressed.  At the time a step increase is denied, the supervisor shall 
identify in writing the timing of reconsideration of the step increase.  An employee whose 
step increase is denied shall also be advised in writing (typically in a performance 
evaluation) of the reason(s) why the step increase was denied.  Grants and denials of step 
increases shall be on a merit basis only. 

 Regardless of whether subsequent reconsideration of a denial of a step increase 
does or does not result in a step increase, the employee’s annual review date shall be as 
originally designated. 

   

29



2

1.  Service
 The word "service" as used in this Memorandum of Understanding means 
continuous full-time service in the position in which the employee is being considered for 
salary advancement, service in a higher position, or service in a position allocated to the 
same salary schedule and having generally similar duties and requirements.  A lapse of 
service of any employee for a period of time longer than thirty days by reason of 
resignation or discharge shall serve to eliminate the accumulated length of service time of 
such employee, and any such employee re-entering the service of the City shall be 
considered as a new employee, unless another standard is established by the personnel 
rules, in which case that standard shall apply. 

2.  Types of Appointment: For all types of appointments refer to the personnel rules except 
for Acting Appointments.

 Acting appointment may be either full-time or part-time, as established by the City 
Manager. An acting appointment occurs when an employee is temporarily assigned to, and 
performs all duties of a position other than the position he/she normally occupies or when 
an employee is assigned an acting appointment pending evaluation of the employee’s 
ability to perform the duties of the position.  While serving under an acting appointment, 
an employee will receive additional compensation as determined by the City Manager.  
Such pay will be no less than 5% above the employee’s regular compensation.  It may be 
up to, but ordinarily will not be in excess of the first step of the position occupied. 

3.  Overtime
All employees within the Mid-Management unit except for the position of Senior 

Planner which is exempt from FLSA, are hourly employees and can accrue overtime 
subject to the laws, rules, regulations and any other MOU provisions of the City, state and 
federal government. 

 The normal regular work week commences on Sunday and consist of forty (40) 
hours except that the regular work week of public works department personnel engaged in 
maintenance activities shall be as approved by the City Manager.  Except for employees 
exempt under the FLSA, overtime will be compensated at the rate of one and one-half 
times the base rate of pay for all hours worked over 40 hours per week in a workweek.  
Such additional compensation shall, at the employee’s election, be either in cash or 
compensatory time off, in accordance with Labor Code section 204.3.   

 With regard to this section “hours worked” shall not include sick leave.  Nor shall 
such a definition include vacation or compensated leave time off not scheduled in advance 
by at least ten working days.  “Hours Worked” shall also not include workers 
compensation time off unless immediate treatment is required on the date of injury for the 
injury incurred, in which case overtime is allowed providing the overtime accrued is an 
extension of the workday and the hours worked for the week exceed 40 hours. 

 The position of Senior Planner is a  professional position exempt under FLSA, and 
therefore not entitled to overtime compensation.  An Employee filling exempt positions are 
entitled to ten days per year of administrative time off.  Administrative leave is non-
cumulative.  It may not be converted to cash.  One year’s worth of Administrative Leave 
becomes available on the first day of the calendar year.  The exception is persons hired 

30



3

mid year, in which case administrative leave is prorated for the applicable period. (Reso. 
#3486)

4.  Effective Date of Pay Increase
 A merit pay advancement for an employee shall become effective on the first day 
of the pay period in which the minimum length of service has been satisfactorily 
completed.   

 Any other mid-pay period payroll adjustments will occur at the beginning of the 
pay period in which the adjustments falls for all odd numbered calendar years; and, at the 
beginning of the following pay period for the even number calendar years 

SECTION II: LEAVE PROVISIONS 

1.  Vacation 
     a.  Vacation Accrual

 Vacation accrues on a prorated basis, based upon a 30-day month. The rates of 
accrual are as follows: 

   Years of Employment  Vacation Days
      1 and 2    12 
      3 and 4    14 
      5 through 9    17 
      10 through 19   22 
      20 and higher   27 

     b. Accumulation
 An employee may not accumulate more than, but instead each year must cash out 
pursuant to Section 12.d, below, all accumulated vacation in excess of 360 hours. 

     c.   Vacation Cash Out On Termination
 Upon termination, an employee shall be paid for all accumulated vacation to the 
separation date, at a rate equal to 100% of his/her current hourly pay rate. 
Alternatively, an employee may individually contractually establish, in writing, with 
the City Manager, mutually agreeable provisions regarding the timing and terms of the 
cash pay out. 

     d.  Vacation- Mandatory Cash Out Before Termination
An employee who has accumulated more than 360 hours as of the last pay period in 

April of any year shall be paid in cash at a rate equal to 100% of his/her current hourly 
pay rate for all hours in excess of 360 such payment shall not exceed the employee's 
annual vacation accrual amount.  These cash out payments will be included with the 
paycheck for the first full pay period in May.

    e. Optional Vacation Cash Out

 In any calendar year an employee may cash out up to 80 hours of accumulated   
vacation.

31



4

2.  Sick Leave
      a.  Sick Leave Accrual

Sick leave accrues on a pro-rated basis, based upon a 30-day month. Twelve days 
accrue each calendar year. 

      b.   Sick Leave-Family Care
Sick leave may be used to care for members of the immediate family in accordance 
with the FMLA and CFRA, or as approved by the City Manager. 

c. An employee who becomes ill or is hospitalized while on vacation and provides a 
written statement from a licensed physician or medical doctor that the illness would 
have resulted in the employee not being able to come to work, shall have the period 
of illness charged against sick leave and not vacation leave. 

       d. Sick Leave Cash Out
 Employees may not cash out sick leave. 

3.  Personal Holidays
All regular positions are entitled to three (3) personal holidays per calendar year.

Unused Personal Holidays are not cumulative.  

4.   Bereavement Leave
 Leave of absence with pay because of death in the immediate family of an 
employee shall be granted for a period not to exceed three days.  Entitlement to leave of 
absence under this section shall be in addition to any other entitlement for sick leave, or 
any other leave.  For purposes of this section, "immediate family" means mother, step-
mother, father, step-father, husband, wife, domestic partner as defined by the State of 
California, son, step-son, daughter, step-daughter, brother, sister, foster parent, foster child, 
brother-in-law, sister-in-law, mother-in-law, father-in-law and grandparents, and any 
individual to whom an employee is serving in Loco Parentis. 

5.  Holiday Schedule
 There shall be twelve (12) holidays granted annually for the term of the MOU.  The 
holidays to be observed during calendar year are set forth below.

                  

 New Year’s Day   1/01/               
 Martin Luther King Day  *    
 Lincoln’s Birthday   2/12/    
 Washington’s Birthday  *    
 Memorial Day    *    
 Independence Day   7/4/      
 Labor Day    *   
 Columbus Day   10/11/    
 Veterans’ Day    11/11/   
 Thanksgiving Day   *   
 Friday Following Thanksgiving *   
 Christmas Day    12/25/    

32



5

* These holidays shall be taken at the same time as the federal holidays are taken. 
Holidays listed above occurring on a Saturday shall be observed on Friday.  
Holidays occurring on a Sunday shall be observed on Monday. 

In addition, City Hall will be closed for one week during the Christmas holidays 
during which employees affected by the closure will be permitted to use vacation, 
personal holidays or sick leave in order not to lose compensation. 

6.   Jury Duty
 Leave of absence with pay shall be granted to an employee while serving on jury 
duty. Time spent commuting from home to and from jury duty is not compensable; time 
spent traveling from court to place of work is compensable. Any jury fee awarded shall be 
deposited with the City Treasurer.

7. Leave of Absence Without Pay
 A leave of absence without pay may be granted by the City Manager upon the 
request of the employee seeking such leave, but such leave shall not be for longer than one 
year.

8.  Accruals after Date of Separation
 An employee’s separation date is the last date actually worked, except that an 
employee who, as of the last day worked, has not used all of his/her yearly allotment of 
vacation may extend the separation date by the number of days necessary to reach the full 
yearly allotment.  “Yearly allotment” means the amount of vacation that the employee was 
entitled to accrue in his/her last year of employment.  Unless otherwise provided by state 
law, none of the following accrue after the date of separation:  sick leave, vacation, 
personal holidays, holiday pay, administrative leave, Flex Plan contributions, or payment 
of the insurance premiums described in Section III.1 below. 

SECTION III: BENEFITS

(Regarding benefits available to part-time employees, see Section I.2, above.) 

1.  Flexible Spending Arrangement Contributions
 The City makes a flexible spending arrangement (“Flex Plan”) contribution on 
behalf of each qualified employee for medical, dental & vision coverage. For those 
employees who have selected health coverage through PERS, from the monthly 
contribution set forth herein, $112 effective January 1, 2012 and $115 effective January 1, 
2013 will be paid to PERS for what is sometimes referred to as “employer contribution”. 
For all employees the City will no longer charge to the employee the $1.50 per paycheck 
plan fee.   Effective the first full pay period in July 2012 the contribution, for full-time 
regular employees shall be: 
 Employee Only: $675 per month 
 Employee + 1 $849 per month 
 Employee + 2 or more $1049 per month 

Effective the first full pay period in July 2013 the contribution for full-time regular 
employees shall be as follows: 
 Employee Only: $700 per month 
 Employee + 1 $899 per month 

33



6

 Employee + 2 or more $1099 per month 

 Employees who can verify to the City’s satisfaction that: they have equivalent 
health coverage for medical (including dental & vision), which will remain in effect until 
the next enrollment date; or who purchase a CalPERS Health Plan and dental and vision 
coverage, but do not use their entire monthly contribution, may use the remaining funds to 
purchase benefits other than medical (including dental & vision) coverage or take this 
amount in cash for the “Employee only” contribution amount.  (If a cash payment is taken, 
it is not included in the employee’s compensation for the CalPERS retirement plan.) 
 The City reserves the option of adding additional programs to the cafeteria plan, as 
they may become available.  The City will enable interested employees to participate in 
union sponsored medical plans. 

2.  Retirement Benefits PERS
 The City participates in the Public Employee Retirement System (PERS) operated 
by the State of California.  Benefits provided are detailed in separate publications, 
depending upon the plan.  The City provides 2.5% at 55 Retirement Plan for non-sworn 
employees, with the single-highest year option. The City’s contribution toward the 
combined employer and employee cost of PERS retirement is capped at no more than 
16.488% of reportable salary. If the actual PERS contribution rate exceeds 16.488% of 
reportable salary for any fiscal year, the employee will pay the difference on a pre-tax 
basis. Contributions will be reported in accordance with the current CalPERS contract, ie: 
the employee portion (8%) plus any amount above the cap is reported to PERS as paid by 
the employee. 
 In 2007, the City implemented a cost-sharing benefit that consists of the City 
paying 8% of the normal members contributions as Employer Paid Member Contributions 
(EPMC), with additional cost sharing contributions not to exceed a total of 16.259% 
through June 30, 2019.  The City agrees to report the value of the Employer Paid Member 
Contributions as salary for retirement benefit plan purposes.   
 For all eligible employees hired on or after July 1, 2012 the City’s PERS 
contribution rate shall be capped at no more than 11.488% of reportable salary.  Once an 
employee hired on or after July 1, 2012 accrues five (5) years of total service, s/he shall be 
entitled to the same terms that apply to all other current employees.   EPMC and the Value 
of EPMC will be the same for employees hired after July 1, 2012 as employees hired prior 
to that date.
 All employees hired prior to July 1, 2012 the City’s contribution cap shall remain 
as stated above at 16.488%.

3. Shoes, and Apparel Reimbursements:
 Each calendar year the Park Maintenance Supervisor and Street Maintenance 
Supervisor shall receive:  one pair of approved safety shoes, up to 5 city-logoed shirts, and 
up to 5 pairs of denims.  Each calendar year the Maintenance Superintendent shall receive 
one pair of steel-toed boots, and a maximum of two pairs of pants.  The Public Works 
Director shall determine replacement frequency and kind. 
4.  Physical Examinations
 The City, for any employee receiving flex credit contributions, will provide an 
annual physical examination for employee.    The City will pay the amount not covered by 
the health care program. 

5.  Insurance.

34



7

 The City will continue to provide term life insurance in the amount of $50,000 and 
long-term disability insurance. 

6.  Mileage Reimbursement
  Employees required to use their personal vehicles while on City business will be 
reimbursed at the rate set by the Internal Revenue Service.    

SECTION IV: INCENTIVE PROGRAMS 

1.  Longevity Pay Incentive
Upon completing continuous years of service with the City, an employee's base pay 

shall be increased as follows: 

     a. 15 years' continuous service - 5% 
b.  20 years' continuous service - an additional 5%, which shall be compounded with 

the 15 year recognition. 

2.   Education Reimbursement Program 

 The City will reimburse employees for tuition upon the completion of courses 
approved in advance by the City Manager up to a maximum of $500 per calendar year for 
classes completed in that same calendar year.  Textbook reimbursement for courses 
approved in advance by the City Manger shall be at 100%. 

3. Bilingual Pay
 Employees proficient in the Spanish language shall receive premium pay equal to   
five (5%) percent of base salary in addition to their regular wage, if: 

a) Employee passes the City's bilingual competency test as administered by the 
Personnel Department on an annual basis to maintain the bonus pay.  The City 
Manager may waive the annual testing requirement for individuals upon 
recommendation of the department head.  Annual basis refers to the fiscal year; 
and

b) The employee is required to serve as a translator on a regular and ongoing basis, 
as certified by the Department Head.  

SECTION V: EMERGENCY MEALS 

The City shall arrange for meals for employees assigned to work four (4) or more hours 
contiguous to the employee’s shift when the employee is not provided notice of the need to 
work the overtime at least 12 hours prior to either commencing the overtime work or shift. 

SECTION VI: GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

A. Definition of a Grievance:  A grievance is defined as an allegation presented in 
writing by an employee or group of employees that the City has failed to provide a 
condition of employment, which is established by law, Memorandum of Understanding, by 
written City or departmental rules, provided that the enjoyment of both such right is not 

35



8

made subject to the discretion of the Department Head or the City by the terms of law, 
Memorandum of Understanding, or by written City or departmental rules and, provided 
further, that the conditions of employment which are the subject matter within the scope of 
representation as defined in California Government Code Section 3504.  Notwithstanding 
the above, excluded from this grievance procedure are employee evaluations, and any 
other matter that is assigned its own appeal procedure such as discipline and an alleged 
violation of the harassment policy.

B. Right to Representation:  An employee having a grievance shall have the right to 
consult with and be assisted by a representative of his/her own choice throughout the 
grievance process.  In those cases in which an employee elects to represent him/herself or 
arranges for other representation, the Union shall have the right to participate in the 
grievance procedure to the extent necessary to protect the interest of its members in 
negotiated conditions of employment. 

C. Limitations on Money Damages:  In no event shall any grievance include a claim 
for money relief for more than the twenty-one day period plus such reasonable discovery 
period, unless otherwise provided by law. 

D. Procedure: Failure of the employee to timely file a grievance and/or comply with 
the time limits at any step of this grievance procedure shall constitute an abandonment of 
the grievance.  Failure of the employer to respond within the time limits at any step of this 
grievance procedure shall result in an automatic advancement of the grievance to the next 
step.  The parties may mutually agree to extend the time permitted under any of the steps 

Step 1
A grievance must be presented to the grievant’s supervisor within twenty-one (21) 
calendar days from the day upon which the City allegedly failed to provide a condition of 
employment, or within twenty-one (21) calendar days from the time in which an employee 
might reasonably have been expected to have learned of such alleged failure to provide.
The written grievance shall include the following: 

 a) Date of submission; 
 b) Signature of employee or employees; 
 c) The MOU provision, Personnel Rule, Administrative Policy or other rule  
  or policy allegedly violated; 
 d) A description of the relevant facts, including specifically how, when and  
  by whom the grieved condition of employment was violated; 
 e) The requested resolution or remedy; and  
 f) The name of any representative chosen by the grievant. 

The supervisor shall provide the grievant with a written response within seven (7) actual 
working days. 

Step 2
If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, the employee shall have seven (7) actual working 
days after receipt of the supervisor’s Step 1 response to file an appeal with the Department 
Head.  The Department Head may, but is not required to, meet with the grievant to discuss 
the grievance.  The Department Head shall have seven (7) actual working days from either 

36



9

receipt of the appeal, or the meeting with the grievant, whichever is later, to provide the 
grievant with a written response. 

Step 3
If the grievance is not resolved at Step 2, the employee shall have seven (7) actual working 
days after receipt of the Department Head’s Step 2 response to file an appeal with the City 
Manager.  The City Manager shall meet with the grievant and other persons the City 
Manger believes would be useful to the City Manager’s consideration of the grievance 
within seven (7) actual working days after receipt of the grievant’s appeal.  The City 
Manager shall have seven (7) actual working days from the date of the meeting with the 
grievant to provide the grievant with a written decision. 

The Mid-Management Group may, in its own name, file a grievance with the City 
Manager alleging that the City has failed to provide it some organizational right which is 
established by law, provided that such right is not made subject to the discretion of the 
City.  Such Union grievance shall be filed with the City Manager and heard and 
determined pursuant to the provisions of this step of the grievance procedure.  The City 
Manager shall meet with the Mid-Management Group representative and other persons the 
City Manager believes would be useful to the City Manager’s consideration of the 
grievance within (7) actual working days after receipt of the Union’s grievance.  The City 
Manager shall have seven (7) actual working days from the date of the meeting with the 
Mid-Management Group representative to provide the Mid-Management Group with a 
written decision. 

Step 4
An employee dissatisfied with the City Manager’s decision on the employee’s Step 3 
grievance may appeal the grievance to the City Council within (7) seven actual working 
days of receipt of the City Manager’s decision. The City Council will schedule a hearing 
within a reasonable time period after receipt of the appeal.  The decision of the City 
Council following the hearing shall be final. 

SECTION VII: LAYOFFS 
 Layoffs shall be governed by Personnel Rule 12.  The City will make its best 
efforts to provide an additional 30 days of EAP benefits to employees who are laid off to 
assist them in their transition.  If continued EAP benefits are not available, the City will 
meet with the Union to discuss the possibility of the City providing laid off workers with 
guidance on resume writing, conducting a job search, job interviewing, coping with stress 
and/or unemployment insurance benefits. 

SECTION VIII: MISCELLANEOUS 

Nothing in this plan will preclude the incumbents of any position from negotiating 
individual contractual provisions, provided that: such individual negotiations arise out of 
situations in which the employee has, or is negotiating towards, voluntarily terminating 
his/her employment or temporarily working in a higher paid position; and any resulting 
provision does not purport to affect the rights of any other member of the unit. 

37



10

1.   Legal Defense
 Except as provided in Government Code Section 995.2, City shall provide a 
defense including but not limited to legal counsel in:  a) any civil action or proceeding 
described in Government Code Section 995; b) any administrative action or proceeding 
described in Section 995.6; or any criminal action or proceeding described in Government 
Code Section 995.8.  "Proceeding" as used in this section is applicable to situations where 
a claim or action is threatened, but not filed, if a reasonable, prudent person would consult 
or retain counsel in response to the possibility of actual civil, administrative, or criminal 
action.  If City pays for a defense, but a court or tribunal issues a final ruling that would, 
under Section 995.2, preclude City payments for defense, employee shall immediately 
reimburse City, and if he/she fails to do so, City may offset any such amounts against 
compensation otherwise due employee under this contract. 

2.  Use of Employer Facilities.
 Employer facilities, such as the City Hall Community Room, may be made 
available, upon timely application, for use by employees and the recognized entity 
representing the employees.  Such use shall not occur during regular duty hours, other than 
the lunch period.  Application for such use shall be made to the management person under 
whose control the facility is placed. 

3.  Bargaining Time.
A reasonable number of Employee members of the entity representing the 

bargaining unit shall be allowed time to absent themselves from duties for a reasonable 
period without loss of pay, for the purpose of participating in contract negotiations.  They 
shall be extended the same privilege to participate in any meetings mutually called by the 
parties during the term of this agreement for review of grievances and contract compliance 
questions.

4.  Reopener
 Upon the request of this bargaining unit, the parties will negotiate whether specific 
provisions will be added to the MOU about awards of days off for five years of accident-
free work. 

5.  Required Meetings
 Administrative staff members covered under this MOU who are required to attend 
meetings outside their regular work schedules will be paid at the overtime rate (1.5) for 
two hours, or for the hours actually worked, whichever is greater. 

6.  Emergency Call-Back Compensation
a. “Call-back” refers to a situation where an employee has completed his/her regular 

work day without knowing that he/she would be called back to work, by his/her 
supervisor or as a result of emergency circumstances, during hours of the day not 
occurring during the employee’s regular workday.  An employee who is required to 
come to work not more than one hour early, but is not thereafter released from 
work before the start of the regular work day is not on “call-back.” 

b. Employees called back to work shall be treated as having worked at least two 
hours, even if actual time is less. 

38



11

c. Public Works:  The rate of pay for Public Works Dept. employees in the Mid-
Management Group during call-back hours is as follows: 

(1) Two and one half times the employee’s hourly base rate for hours served 
between the hours of 10 p.m. and 6 a.m.; or 

(2) Two times the hourly base rate for hours served during other times of 
the day. 

d. For all employees not covered by subsection c, call-back hours will be paid the 
same as overtime. 

e. Time spent traveling to and from the place of call-back work is not counted in 
applying the provisions of this section, or Section 8 above.

f. Units of time that are both call-back and overtime will receive the most favorable 
of the two treatments, but no single unit of time will be treated as both call-back 
and overtime. 

g. Me Too Clause: If during the effective time period of this agreement, the Police 
Officers Association receives a salary COLA or health care Flex Plan increase in 
an amount greater than the terms included in this agreement, the members of Mid-
Manager shall receive the same COLA and/or Flex Plan increase at the same time. 

CITY OF CAPITOLA   MID-MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES 

________________________  ________________________________ 
Jamie Goldstein    Lisa Saldana 
City Manager     
      ________________________________ 
________________________  Ryan Bane 
Lisa Murphy      
Administrative Services Director  _______________________________ 
      Mark Wheeler 

      _______________________________ 
      Eddie Ray Garcia 

      _______________________________ 
      Elise Legare     
Attachment: Salary Schedule         

39



12

Attachment 1

MID-MANAGEMENT SALARY SCHEDULE 
JULY 1, 2012 - JUNE 30, 2014 

A� B� C� D� E�
ASSOC�PLANNER� �$���������5,317� �$��������5,583� �$��������5,862� �$��������6,155� �$���������6,463�
BUILDING�OFFICIAL� �$���������6,113� �$��������6,419� �$��������6,740� �$��������7,077� �$���������7,431�
HOUSING�RDA�PLANNER� �$���������5,823� �$��������6,114� �$��������6,420� �$��������6,741� �$���������7,078�
MAINTENANCE�SUPERINTENDENT� �$���������5,231� �$��������5,493� �$��������5,768� �$��������6,056� �$���������6,359�
PARKS�MAINTENANCE�SUPERVISOR� �$���������4,872� �$��������5,116� �$��������5,372� �$��������5,641� �$���������5,923�
RECREATION�SUPERVISOR� �$���������4,714� �$��������4,950� �$��������5,198� �$��������5,458� �$���������5,731�
SENIOR�PLANNER� �$���������6,113� �$��������6,419� �$��������6,740� �$��������7,077� �$���������7,431�
STREETS�&�FACILITIES�MAINTENANCE�
SUPERVISOR� �$���������4,872� �$��������5,116� �$��������5,372� �$��������5,641� �$���������5,923�
SUPERVISING�ACCOUNTANT� �$���������5,839� �$��������6,131� �$��������6,438� �$��������6,760� �$���������7,098�

MID�MANAGEMENT�SALARY�SCHEDULE

JULY�1,�2014���JUNE�30,�2015

To�be�determined�as�per�MOU�

40



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN

CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES’ AND CITY OF CAPITOLA 
PERIOD 7/01/2012 – 6/30/2015 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

                          Page
SECTION I WAGE SCHEDULES/EMPLOYMENT STATUS………………    1 
 Service……. ………………………………………………………………… 1      
 Acting Appointment Compensation……………………..……………………    1 
 Overtime……………………..……………………………………..…………    2 
 Effective Date of Pay Increase…………………..……………………………    2 

SECTION II: LEAVE PROVISIONS .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .    .   .   .   .     2 
 Vacation ………………………………………………………………………. 2 
 Sick……………………………………………………………………………. 3  
 Administrative Leave…………………………………………………………… 3 
 Personal Holidays……………………………………………………………… 3 
 Bereavement…………………………………………………………………… 3 
 FMLA & CFRA……………………………………………………………….. 3 
 Holiday Schedule………………………………………………………………… 3 
 Jury Duty………………………………………………………………………. 4 
 Leave of Absence without pay…………………………………………………. 4 
 Accruals after date of separation…………………………………………………. 4 

SECTION III: BENEFITS ………………………………………………………….. 4 
 Flexible Spending……………………………………………………………… 5 

Retirement……………………………………………………………………… 5 
 Physical Exams………………………………………………………………… 5 
 Insurance………………………………………………………………………. 5 
 Mileage Reimbursement…………………………………………….…………. 5 

SECTION IV: INCENTIVE PROGRAMS  …………………………………….… 6 
 Longevity……………………………………………………………………... 6 
 Education……………………………………………………………………… 6 
 Bilingual Pay………………………………………………………………….. 6 

SECTION V: MISCELLANEOUS  .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .    .    .   .   .   .    .    .    . 6 
 FLSA………………………………………………………………………  6 
 Legal Defense……………………………………………………………..  7 
 Use of Employer Facilities……………………………………………….  7 
 Bargaining Time……………………………………………………………  7 
 Me Too Clause...............................................................................................

ATTACHMENT 2 

41



1

CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES’ MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is made and entered into between the City of 
Capitola (hereinafter referred to as “City”) and the Confidential employees, who are: City 
Clerk, Assistant to the City Manager, Information Systems Specialist and Executive 
Assistant to the City Manager. This MOU covers the period beginning 07/01/2012 – 
06/30/2015.

SECTION I.  Wage Schedules/Hourly Rates/Employment Status 

The wage schedule attached to this Memorandum of Understanding sets forth the base pay, 
subject to such adjustments (such as longevity pay) as are specifically set forth in this 
MOU.  Letters  “A” to “E” have been used to designate the respective pay steps for each 
position.   The rates contained in the wage schedule are base salary rates and do not 
include overtime or benefits. 

The City will compile and average the San Francisco – Oakland – San Jose Consumer 
Price Index (all urban consumers) reported CPI for January 2013 through December 2013.  
If the resulting figure for averaged CPI is greater than 0%, that figure shall be used as the 
percentage for salary increase for members of the unit, effective the first full pay period in 
July 2014.

Whenever it is necessary to compute an hourly pay rate to apply a provision of this MOU, 
that will be done by multiplying the monthly rate by 12 to derive an annual rate, and 
dividing the annual rate by 2080 (or proportionate number of hours for part time positions, 
e.g., 1040 for a half-time position). 

1.  Service
 The word "service" as used in this MOU means continuous full-time service in the 
position in which the employee is being considered for salary advancement, service in a 
higher position, or service in a position allocated to the same salary schedule and having 
generally similar duties and requirements.  A lapse of service of any employee for a period 
of time longer than thirty days by reason of resignation or discharge shall serve to 
eliminate the accumulated length of service time of such employee, and any such 
employee re-entering the service of the City shall be considered as a new employee, unless 
another standard is established by the personnel rules, in which case that standard shall 
apply.

2.  Types of Appointment: For all types of appointments refer to the personnel rules except 
for Acting Appointments.

 Acting appointment may be either full-time or part-time, as established by the City 
Manager. An acting appointment occurs when an employee is temporarily assigned to, and 
performs all duties of a position other than the position he/she normally occupies or when 
an employee is assigned an acting appointment pending evaluation of the employee’s 
ability to perform the duties of the position.  While serving under an acting appointment, 
an employee will receive additional compensation as determined by the City Manager.  
Such pay will be no less than 5% above the employee’s regular compensation.  It may be 
up to, but ordinarily will not be in excess of the first step of the position occupied. 

42



2

3. Overtime
Confidential employees are exempt under FLSA, and therefore not entitled to 

overtime compensation.  

4.  Effective Date of Pay Increase
 A merit pay advancement for an employee shall become effective on the first day 
of the pay period in which the minimum length of service has been satisfactorily 
completed.   

All other pay rate changes, except those given a specific calendar date herein, shall become 
effective at the beginning of a two week pay period as approved by the City Manager. 

SECTION II: LEAVE PROVISIONS 

1.  Vacation 

     a.  Vacation Accrual
 Vacation accrues on a prorated basis, based upon a 30-day month. The rates of 

accrual are as follows: 

   Years of Employment  Vacation Days
      1 and 2    12 
      3 and 4    14 
      5 through 9    17 
      10 through 19   22 
      20 and higher   27 

     b. Accumulation
An employee may not accumulate more than, but instead each year must 
cash out pursuant to Section d, below, all accumulated vacation in excess of 
360 hours;

     c.   Vacation Cash Out On Termination
 Upon termination, an employee shall be paid for all accumulated vacation to the 
separation date, at a rate equal to 100% of his/her current hourly pay rate. 
Alternatively, an employee may individually contractually establish, in writing, with 
the City Manager, mutually agreeable provisions regarding the timing and terms of the 
cash pay out. 

     d.  Vacation- Mandatory Cash Out Before Termination
An employee who has accumulated more than 360 hours as of the last pay period in 

April of any year shall be paid in cash at a rate equal to 100% of his/her current hourly 
pay rate for all hours in excess of  360 such payment shall not exceed the employee's 
annual vacation accrual amount.  These cash out payments will be included with the 
paycheck for the first full pay period in May.

    e. Optional Vacation Cash Out
 In any calendar year an employee may cash out up to 80 hours of accumulated   
vacation.

43



3

2. Sick Leave
      a.  Sick Leave Accrual

Sick leave accrues on a pro-rated basis, based upon a 30-day month. Twelve days 
accrue each calendar year. 

      b.   Sick Leave-Family Care
Sick leave may be used to care for members of the immediate family in accordance 
with the FMLA and CFRA, or as approved by the City Manager. 

       c. Sick Leave Cash Out;
 Sick Leave may not be cashed out. 

3.   Administrative Leave Accrual
 As exempt employees, the Confidential Employees are entitled to ten days per year 
of administrative time off. Administrative Leave is non-cumulative. It may not be 
converted to cash. One year’s worth of Administrative Leave becomes available on the 
first day of the calendar year. The exception is persons hired mid-year, in which case 
administrative leave is prorated for the applicable period.  

4.  Personal Holidays
All regular positions are entitled to three (3) personal holidays per calendar year.

Unused Personal Holidays are not cumulative.  

5.  Bereavement Leave
  Leave of absence with pay because of death in the immediate family of an 
employee shall be granted for a period not to exceed three days.  Entitlement to leave of 
absence under this section shall be in addition to any other entitlement for sick leave, or 
any other leave.  For purposes of this section, "immediate family" means mother, step-
mother, father, step-father, husband, wife, domestic partner as defined by the State of 
California, son, step-son, daughter, step-daughter, brother, sister, foster parent, foster 
child, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, mother-in-law, father-in-law, grandparents and any 
individual to whom an employee is serving in Loco Parentis. 

6.  FMLA and CFRA
 The City shall follow the provisions provided for family leave as specified in the 
federal Family & Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA), and the California Family Rights 
Act (CFRA) as they apply to public employers. 

7.  Holiday Schedule
  There shall be twelve (12) holidays granted annually for the term of the MOU.  The 

holidays to be observed during calendar year are set forth below.

                  

 New Year’s Day   1/01/               
 Martin Luther King Day  *    
 Lincoln’s Birthday   2/12/    
 Washington’s Birthday  *    

44



4

 Memorial Day    *    
 Independence Day   7/4/      
 Labor Day    *   
 Columbus Day   *    
 Veterans’ Day    11/11/   
 Thanksgiving Day   *   
 Friday Following Thanksgiving *   
 Christmas Day    12/25/    

* These holidays shall be taken at the same time as the federal holidays are taken. 
Holidays listed above occurring on a Saturday shall be observed on Friday.  
Holidays occurring on a Sunday shall be observed on Monday. 

In addition, City Hall will be closed for one week during the Christmas holidays 
during which employees affected by the closure will be permitted to use vacation, 
personal holidays or sick leave in order not to lose compensation. 

8.  Jury Duty
  Leave of absence with pay shall be granted to an employee while serving on jury 

duty. Time spent commuting from home to and from jury duty is not compensable; time 
spent traveling from court to place of work is compensable. Any jury fee awarded shall 
be deposited with the City Treasurer.

9. Leave of Absence Without Pay
 A leave of absence without pay may be granted by the City Manager upon the 
request of the employee seeking such leave, but such leave shall not be for longer than 
one year. 

10.  Accruals after Date of Separation
 An employee’s separation date is the last date actually worked, except that an 
employee who, as of the last day worked, has not used all of his/her yearly allotment of 
vacation may extend the separation date by the number of days necessary to reach the full 
yearly allotment.  “Yearly allotment” means the amount of vacation that the employee 
was entitled to accrue in his/her last year of employment.  Unless otherwise provided by 
state law, none of the following accrue after the date of separation:  sick leave, vacation, 
personal holidays, holiday pay, administrative leave, Flex Plan contributions, or payment 
of the insurance premiums described in Section III.5 below. 

SECTION III: BENEFITS

(Regarding benefits available to part-time employees’, see Section 2, above.) 

1.  Flexible Spending Arrangement Contributions
 The City makes a flexible spending arrangement (“Flex Plan”) contribution on 
behalf of each qualified employee for medical, dental & vision coverage. For those 
employees who have selected health coverage through PERS, from the monthly 
contribution set forth herein, $108 per month effective January 1, 2011, will be paid to 
PERS for what is sometimes referred to as “employer contribution”. For all employees the 

45



5

City will no longer charge to the employee the $1.50 per paycheck plan fee.  The 
contribution, for full-time regular employees, shall be:  
 Employee Only:                     $675 per month 
 Employee Plus One:                $849 per month 
 Employee Plus Two or More: $1,049 per month 

Effective the first full pay period in July 2013 the contribution for full-time regular 
employees shall be as follows: 
 Employee Only: $700 per month 
 Employee + 1 $899 per month 
 Employee + 2 or more $1,099 per month 

 Employees who can verify to the City’s satisfaction that: they have equivalent 
health coverage for medical (including dental & vision), which will remain in effect until 
the next enrollment date; or who purchase a CalPERS Health Plan and dental and vision 
coverage, but do not use their entire monthly contribution, may use the remaining funds to 
purchase benefits other than medical (including dental & vision) coverage or take this 
amount in cash for the “employee only” contribution amount.  (If a cash payment is taken, 
it is not included in the employee’s compensation for the CalPERS retirement plan.) 

 The City reserves the option of adding additional programs to the cafeteria plan, as 
they may become available.  The City will enable interested employees to participate in 
union sponsored medical plans. 

2. Retirement Benefits PERS 
 The City participates in the Public Employee Retirement System (PERS) operated 
by the State of California.  Benefits provided are detailed in separate publications, 
depending upon the plan.  The City provides 2.5% at 55 Retirement Plan for non-sworn 
employees, with the single-highest year option. The City’s contribution toward the 
combined employer and employee cost of PERS retirement is capped at no more than 
16.488% of reportable salary. If the actual PERS contribution rate exceeds 16.488% of 
reportable salary for any fiscal year, the employee will pay the difference on a pre-tax 
basis. Contributions will be reported in accordance with the current CalPERS contract, ie: 
the employee portion (8%) plus any amount above the cap is reported to PERS as paid by 
the employee. 
 In 2007, the City implemented a cost-sharing benefit that consists of the City 
paying 8% of the normal members contributions as Employer Paid Member Contributions 
(EPMC), with additional cost sharing contributions not to exceed a total of 16.259% 
through June 30, 2019.  The City agrees to report the value of the Employer Paid Member 
Contributions as salary for retirement benefit plan purposes.   
 For all eligible employees hired on or after July 1, 2012 the City’s PERS 
contribution rate shall be capped at no more than 11.488% of reportable salary.  Once an 
employee hired on or after July 1, 2012 accrues five (5) years of total service, s/he shall be 
entitled to the same terms that apply to all other current employees.   EPMC and the Value 
of EPMC will be the same for employees hired after July 1, 2012 as employees hired prior 
to that date.
 All employees hired prior to July 1, 2012 the City’s contribution cap shall remain 
as stated above at 16.488%.

46



6

3.  Physical Examinations
The City, for any employee receiving flex credit contributions, will provide a 

biannual physical examination for employee.    The City will pay the amount not covered 
by the health care program. 

4.  Insurance.
The City will continue to provide term life insurance in the amount of $50,000 and 

long-term disability insurance. 

5.  Mileage Reimbursement
 Employees required to use their personal vehicles while on City business will be 

reimbursed at the rate set by the Internal Revenue Service.    

SECTION IV: INCENTIVE PROGRAMS 

1.  Longevity Pay Incentive
Upon completing continuous years of service with the City, an employee's base pay 

shall be increased as follows: 

      a. 15 years' continuous service - 5% 
b.     20 years' continuous service - an additional 5%, which shall be 

compounded   with the 15 year recognition. 

2.   Education Reimbursement Program 
The City will reimburse employees for tuition upon the completion of courses 

approved in advance by the City Manager up to a maximum of $500 per calendar year for 
classes completed in that same calendar year.  Textbook reimbursement for courses 
approved in advance by the City Manager shall be at 100%. 

3. Bilingual Pay
Employees proficient in the Spanish language shall receive premium pay equal to 

five (5%) percent of base salary in addition to their regular wage, if: 

a. Employee passes the City's bilingual competency test as administered by the 
Personnel Department on an annual basis to maintain the bonus pay.  The City 
Manager may waive the annual testing requirement for individuals upon 
recommendation of the department head.  Annual basis refers to the fiscal year; 
and

b. The employee is required to serve as a translator on a regular and ongoing basis, 
as certified by the Department Head.  

SECTION V: MISCELLANEOUS 
Nothing in this plan will preclude the incumbents of any position from negotiating 
individual contractual provisions, provided that: such individual negotiations arise out of 
situations in which the employee has, or is negotiating towards, voluntarily terminating 
his/her employment or temporarily working in a higher paid position; and any resulting 
provision does not purport to affect the rights of any other member of the unit. 

1. Fair Labor Standards Act

47



7

 All positions included in this Compensation Plan are covered by appropriate 
sections of the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1935, and are specifically subject to Rule No. 
54.118 (salaried executive employees are not paid at a higher rate for what might 
otherwise be labeled "overtime", correspondingly, their salary is not reduced "for any 
week in which (s)he performs any work without regard to the number of days or hours 
worked."  Accordingly, bi-weekly time sheets will not result in adjustments to the 
compensation for the period, but merely for yearly evaluation of whether the position is, 
after factoring in administrative leave, over or under staffed.  However, time off for sick 
leave purposes shall be reported and reflected in the accumulated sick leave calculations.   

2.   Legal Defense
 Except as provided in Government Code Section 995.2, City shall provide a 
defense including but not limited to legal counsel in:  a) any civil action or proceeding 
described in Government Code Section 995; b) any administrative action or proceeding 
described in Section 995.6; or any criminal action or proceeding described in Government 
Code Section 995.8.  "Proceeding" as used in this section is applicable to situations where 
a claim or action is threatened, but not filed, if a reasonable, prudent person would consult 
or retain counsel in response to the possibility of actual civil, administrative, or criminal 
action.  If City pays for a defense, but a court or tribunal issues a final ruling that would, 
under Section 995.2, preclude City payments for defense, employee shall immediately 
reimburse City, and if he/she fails to do so, City may offset any such amounts against 
compensation otherwise due employee under this contract. 

3.  Use of Employer Facilities.
 Employer facilities, such as the City Hall Community Room, may be made 
available, upon timely application, for use by employees and the recognized entity 
representing the employees.  Such use shall not occur during regular duty hours, other than 
the lunch period.  Application for such use shall be made to the management person under 
whose control the facility is placed. 

4.  Bargaining Time.
A reasonable number of Employee members of the entity representing the 

bargaining unit shall be allowed time to absent themselves from duties for a reasonable 
period without loss of pay, for the purpose of participating in contract negotiations.  They 
shall be extended the same privilege to participate in any meetings mutually called by the 
parties during the term of this agreement for review of grievances and contract compliance 
questions.

5. Me Too Clause:
If during the effective time period of this agreement, the Police Officers 

Association receives a salary COLA or health care Flex Plan increase in an amount greater 
than the terms included in this agreement, the members of Confidential shall receive the 
same COLA and/or Flex Plan increase at the same time. 

48



8

CITY OF CAPITOLA   CONFIDENTIAL  EMPLOYEES 

________________________  ________________________________ 
Jamie Goldstein    Liz Nichols 
City Manager 
      ________________________________ 
_________________________  Susan Sneddon 
Lisa Murphy      
Administrative Services Director 
      _______________________________ 

      _______________________________ 
      Larry Laurent 

Attachment: Salary Schedule 

ATTACHMENT 1 

SALARY SCHEDULE 

CONFIDENTIAL�SALARY�SCHEDULE�
July�1,�2012�–�June�30,�2014�

A� B� C� D� E�
ASSIST�TO�CITY�MGR� �$��������6,139� �$��������6,447� �$��������6,768�� �$��������7,107�� �$��������7,462�
CITY�CLERK� �$��������5,669� �$��������5,952� �$��������6,249�� �$��������6,561�� �$��������6,891�
EXEC�ASSIST�TO�CITY�MGR� �$��������4,437� �$��������4,658� �$��������4,891�� �$��������5,136�� �$��������5,393�
INFORMATION�SYSTEMS�SPECIALIST� �$��������4,379� �$��������4,598� �$��������4,828�� �$��������5,069�� �$��������5,322�
           

CONFIDENTIAL�SALARY�SCHEDULE�
July�1,�2014�–�June�30,�2015�

To�be�determined�as�per�MOU

49



SIXTH AMENDMENT TO 
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

As approved by the City of Capitola City Council at their meeting of May 24, 2012, the 
following amendments shall be made to the employment agreement between the City of 
Capitola and Steven Jesberg; 

1. Term of the agreement July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2015. 

2. Flexible Spending Arrangement Contributions:  Effective first full pay period in July, 
2012, an increase in the Flexible Spending Contribution amount for medical, dental & 
vision as follows: Employee Only and those who choose not to utilize the City’s 
insurance, an increase of $25 per month, employee plus one and employee plus two will 
receive an increase of $50 per month to help offset the rising cost of health insurance. 
Effective first full pay period in July, 2013, an increase in the Flexible Spending 
Contribution amount for medical, dental & vision as follows: Employee Only and those 
who choose not to utilize the City’s insurance, an increase of $25 per month, employee 
plus one and employee plus two will receive an increase of $50 per month to help offset 
the rising cost of health insurance. 

3. Effective first full pay period in July, 2014: COLA: the employee will receive a cost of 
living increase based on the one year average of the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose 
Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers January 2013 through December 2013.

4. Longevity:  in recognition of long term employment with the City, the employee shall 
receive a 5% pay increase following twelve (12) full years of employment. 

5. Me Too Clause: If during the effective time period of this agreement, the Police Officers 
Association receives a salary COLA or health care Flex Plan increase in an amount 
greater than the terms included in this agreement, the employee shall receive the same 
COLA and/or Flex Plan increase at the same time.  

All other terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in full force and effect. 

SO AGREED: 

Date_______________________   CITY OF CAPITOLA 

       ____________________________ 
       Benjamin “Jamie” Goldstein 
       City Manager 

Date_______________________               Steven E. Jesberg  

       ____________________________ 
       Public Works Director 
Approved as to Form 

___________________________
City Attorney 

ATTACHMENT 3 

50



FIRST AMENDMENT TO 
FINANCE DIRECTOR EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

As approved by the City of Capitola City Council at their meeting of May 24, 2012, the 
following amendments shall be made to the employment agreement between the City of 
Capitola and Tori Hannah; 

1. Term of the agreement July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2015. 

2. Flexible Spending Arrangement Contributions:  Effective first full pay period in July  
2012, an increase in the Flexible Spending Contribution amount for medical, dental & 
vision as follows: Employee Only and those who choose not to utilize the City’s 
insurance, an increase of $25 per month, employee plus one and employee plus two will 
receive an increase of $50 per month to help offset the rising cost of health insurance. 
Effective first full pay period in July 2013, an increase in the Flexible Spending 
Contribution amount for medical, dental & vision as follows: Employee Only and those 
who choose not to utilize the City’s insurance, an increase of $25 per month, employee 
plus one and employee plus two will receive an increase of $50 per month to help offset 
the rising cost of health insurance. 

3. Effective first full pay period in July 2014: COLA: the employee will receive a cost of 
living increase based on the one year average of the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose 
Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers January 2013 through December 2013.

4. Longevity:  in recognition of long term employment with the City, the employee shall 
receive a 5% pay increase following twelve (12) full years of employment. 

5. Optional Vacation Cash Out: increase from 40 to 80 hours. 

6. Me Too Clause: If during the effective time period of this agreement, the Police Officers 
Association receives a salary COLA or health care Flex Plan increase in an amount 
greater than the terms included in this agreement, the employee shall receive the same 
COLA and/or Flex Plan increase at the same time. 

7.  
All other terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in full force and effect. 

SO AGREED: 

Date_______________________   CITY OF CAPITOLA 

       ____________________________ 
       Benjamin “Jamie” Goldstein 
       City Manager 

Date_______________________               Tori Hannah  

       ____________________________ 
       Finance Director 
Approved as to Form 

___________________________
City Attorney 

ATTACHMENT 4 

51



FIRST AMENDMENT TO 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DIRECTOR EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

As approved by the City of Capitola City Council at their meeting of May 24, 2012, the 
following amendments shall be made to the employment agreement between the City of 
Capitola and Lisa Murphy; 

1. Term of the agreement July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2015. 

2. Flexible Spending Arrangement Contributions:  Effective first full pay period in July, 
2012, an increase in the Flexible Spending Contribution amount for medical, dental & 
vision as follows: Employee Only and those who choose not to utilize the City’s 
insurance, an increase of $25 per month, employee plus one and employee plus two will 
receive an increase of $50 per month to help offset the rising cost of health insurance. 
Effective first full pay period in July, 2013, an increase in the Flexible Spending 
Contribution amount for medical, dental & vision as follows: Employee Only and those 
who choose not to utilize the City’s insurance, an increase of $25 per month, employee 
plus one and employee plus two will receive an increase of $50 per month to help offset 
the rising cost of health insurance. 

3. Effective first full pay period in July, 2014: COLA: the employee will receive a cost of 
living increase based on the one year average of the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose 
Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers January 2013 through December 2013.

4. Longevity:  in recognition of long term employment with the City, the employee shall 
receive a 5% pay increase following twelve (12) full years of employment. 

5. Me Too Clause: If during the effective time period of this agreement, the Police Officers 
Association receives a salary COLA or health care Flex Plan increase in an amount 
greater than the terms included in this agreement, the employee shall receive the same 
COLA and/or Flex Plan increase at the same time. 

All other terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in full force and effect. 

SO AGREED: 

Date_______________________   CITY OF CAPITOLA 

       ____________________________ 
       Benjamin “Jamie” Goldstein 
       City Manager 

Date_______________________               Lisa G. Murphy  

       ____________________________ 
       Administrative Services Director 
Approved as to Form 

___________________________
City Attorney 

ATTACHMENT 5 

52



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

Item #: a.E. 

MEETING OF JUNE 14, 2012 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

CAPITOLA VILLAGE AND WHARF BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA 
FISCAL YEAR 2012-13 ASSESSMENTS 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the proposed Resolution of Intention to Levy Business 
Improvement Assessments for FY 2012-2013, which receives the annual report and Proposed FY 
2012-2013 Budget prepared by the Capitola Village and Wharf Business Improvement Area 
(CVWBIA), sets a public hearing to receive oral or written protests on the levy of the assessments 
for FY 2012-2013 for Thursday, June 28,2012, at 7:00 p.m., directs the City Clerk to give required 
notice in the newspaper, and directs the CVWBIA to give required notice to each proposed affected 
business. . 

BACKGROUND: In June 2005, the City of Capitola adopted Ordinance No. 889, which added 
Chapter 5.10 to the Capitola Municipal Code establishing the CVWBIA, which was established to 
generate revenue for the exclusive purpose of promoting business in the CVWBIA. The governing 
State law requires certain annual actions and public hearing to continue this assessment district. 

DISCUSSION: In accordance with State law, the CVWBIA is required to submit an annual plan for 
each year in which assessments are to be levied in the CVWBIA. The annual report, Exhibit A to 
the proposed resolution, was prepared by the CVWBIA and fulfi"s the requirement for FY 2012-2013 
and is submitted for Council review. The annual report, which must be, and is, on file in the City 
Clerk's office, may be modified by the Council and then approved. For FY 2012-2013, the CVWBIA 
Annual Report proposes no change in the assessment area 

The annual report also outlines the CVWBIA's FY 2012-2013 planned activities and proposed 
budget. Activities for FY 2012-2013 include: 

• Increasing the number of year round visits; 
• Increasing the numbers of people who stay, shop and dine; 
• Improving ease of access to information with printed brochures/directories; 
• Providing fun family-oriented events throughout the year; and 
• Improving and enhancing the appearance of the village. 

The action to be taken by the City Council at this time is to adopt the proposed resolution. In 
addition to providing notification of the City's intent to levy business improvement assessments for 
FY 2012-2013, the resolution receives the annual report and proposed budget of the CVWBIA,sets 
the date for a Public Hearing to be held on Thursday, June 28, 2012, and, pursuant to Streets & 
Highways Code Section 36523 (a) and (b), the resolution sets forth noticing requirements and 
directs the City Clerk to publish the Resolution of Intention in the Santa Cruz Sentinel Newspaper 
once, at least seven days before the public hearing, and directs the CVWBIA to give notice of the 
public hearing by mailing a completed copy of the Resolution of Intention to each business owner in 
the area within 7 days of the Council's adoption of the resolution. 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City CounciI\06-14-12\8.E. CVWBIA FY12-13_stf.doc 

53



6-14-12 AGENDA REPORT 
CAPITOLA VILLAGE & WHARF BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA FY 12-13 ASSESSMENT 

A representative of the Capitola Village and Wharf Business Improvement Area will be in attendance 
at the meeting in the event council members have questions; however, the CVWBIA's presentation 
will be made at the Public Hearing on June 28, 2012. 

The Capitola Village and Wharf Business Improvement Area has prepared a Notice of Public 
Hearing (Attachment 2) that will be sent to each business in the area, along with a certified copy of 
the Council's resolution. 

FISCAL IMPACT: There is no fiscal impact to the City. CVWBIA billing and accounts payable costs 
incurred by the City are reimbursed by the CVWBIA. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft Resolution (Includes Exhibit A, annual report & proposed FY 2012-2013 budget); 
2. Draft Notice of Public Hearing to be sent by CVWBIAI 

Report Prepared By: Lisa Saldana 
Supervising Accountant 

Reviewed and ~ded 
By City Manag r: 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\06-14-12\CVWBIA FY12-13_stf.doc 

54



RESOLUTION NO. ____ 

RESOLUTION OF INTENTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL  
OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA  

TO LEVY BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT ASSESSMENTS  
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2012/2013 

WHEREAS, the Capitola Village and Wharf Business Improvement Area 
(“CVWBIA”) has prepared a report to the City of Capitola for Fiscal Year 2011/2012 
pertaining to the Business Improvement Area assessments for the CVWBIA under 
California Streets and Highways Code §36533; and 

WHEREAS, Capitola Municipal Code §5.10.050 requires annual assessments to 
be imposed within the CVWBIA pursuant to a formula set forth in City Council 
Resolution.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CAPITOLA AS FOLLOWS:

1. The Annual Report and Proposed FY 2012-13 Budget of the CVWBIA 
pertaining to business improvement assessments, as presented in Exhibit “A” attached 
hereto, is received. 

2. The City Council intends to levy and collect assessments within the 
CVWBIA for Fiscal Year 2012/2013. 

3. The proposed activities authorized by Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 
5.10 are described in the afore-referenced CVWBIA Annual Report.  These activities 
include a variety of promotional activities, including village maintenance and 
beautification programs, and extended holiday parking programs. A number of 
promotional information media announcements and publications will also be financed 
from these funds, including regional magazine advertising, broadcast advertising and 
website advertising. 

4. The Business Improvement Area is bounded per the map of the CVWBIA 
reproduced as Exhibit “A” to Capitola Municipal Code §5.10.020 and included in the 
Municipal Code.  The CVWBIA boundaries are not being altered. 

5. The Annual Report of the CVWBIA is presented in Exhibit “A” attached 
hereto.  The proposed assessments will be calculated under the formula for assessment 
found in Capitola City Council Resolution No. 3546 adopted May 25, 2006.  This formula 
is based on the classification of benefited businesses and the businesses’ number of 
full-time equivalent employees.  Assessments will not be increased.   

6. The Capitola City Council will hold a public hearing in the City Hall 
Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California, at the hour of 7:00 p.m., 
on Thursday, June 28, 2012, to receive any oral or written protests or endorsements to 
the regularity or sufficiency of the proposed business improvement assessments.  If 
written protests complying with Streets and Highways Code §36524 and §36525 are 
received from the owners of businesses which will pay fifty percent or more of the 
assessments, assessments will not be levied, the procedure will be terminated and will 
not be reconsidered until one full year has elapsed. 

ATTACHMENT 1 

55



RESOLUTION NO. ____   2 

7. The City Clerk is directed to give notice of the public hearing to consider 
the levy of business improvement assessments for Fiscal Year 2012-2013 by publishing 
this Resolution of Intention in a newspaper of general circulation in the City once, at 
least seven days prior to the public hearing. 

8. The CVWBIA Advisory Committee is directed to give notice of the public 
hearing to each business owner in the area by mailing a copy of the Council’s Resolution 
of Intention to each business.  

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing resolution was passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Capitola at its regular meeting held on the 14th

day of June, 2012, by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES:  
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

                      Michael Termini, Mayor 

ATTEST: _______________________ 
           Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 

56



R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\06-14-12\8.E. CVWBIA FY12-13 Committee Notice for Public 
Hearing.doc 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

ANNUAL RENEWAL OF THE CAPITOLA VILLAGE AND 
WHARF BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA 

Hearing Body: Capitola City Council 
Hearing Date: Thursday, June 28, 2012 
Hearing Time: 7:00 PM 
Hearing Place: City Hall Council Chambers 
 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola 

The Capitola City Council hereby notifies you of a Public Hearing regarding the Annual 
Renewal of the Capitola Village and Wharf Business Improvement Area (CVWBIA) for 
Fiscal Year 2012-2013.  The renewal plan does not include a request for increase in 
assessments nor does it propose a change in the CVWBIA boundaries. The report 
states the amount of “in lieu” assessment payments to be accepted from CVWBIA retail, 
food or lodging business members whereby these businesses tender retail, restaurant 
and lodging gift certificates for use by the CVWBIA in connection with its promotional 
activities.

For a copy of the budget or details of the annual renewal, contact the Capitola Village 
and Wharf Business Improvement Area Board of Directors at 831-465-8444 or by email 
at capitolavillage@aol.com.

The Capitola City Council will hold the public hearing in the City Hall Council Chambers 
after the hour of 7:00 p.m. on Thursday, June 28, 2012, and will receive any oral or 
written protests or endorsements to the regularity or sufficiency of the proposed 
business improvement assessments.  If written protests complying with Streets and 
Highways Code §36524 and §36525 are received from the owners of businesses which 
will pay fifty percent or more of the assessments, assessments will not be levied, the 
procedure will be terminated and will not be reconsidered until one full year has elapsed. 

If you have any questions concerning the foregoing, please contact the Capitola Village 
and Wharf Business Improvement Area Board of Directors at 831-465-8444 or City 
Manager Jamie Goldstein at 831-475-7300.

ATTACHMENT 2 

57



FROM: POLICE DEPARTMENT 

Item #: 8.F. 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF June 14, 2012 

SUBJECT: APPROVE THE PURCHASE OF ONE UNMARKED POLICE VEHICLE IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $20,695.73 AND SURPLUS THE POLICE VEHICLE TO BE 
REPLACED 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the following: 

1. Award purchase contract to Toyota of Santa Cruz in the amount of $20,695.73 for the 
purchase of one used unmarked police vehicle; and 

2. Authorize the Public Works Department to surplus the replaced police patrol vehicle (2002 
Crown Victoria) that is scheduled to come off line this fiscal year. 

BACKGROUND: In order to assure proper response times, preserve our efficiency levels, insure 
officer safety, and maintain a professional appearance, the Police Department works with the 
Public Works Department to replace police vehicles every four to five years, or as needed. 
Currently, an unmarked Crown Victoria police vehicle, which is 10 years old and has over 110,000 
miles, is scheduled to be replaced this fiscal year. This vehicle has been used for undercover 
operations, mandated training scenarios; travel to and from trainings, meetings, and other 
organizational activity in and out of the City of Capitola. 

This vehicle has recurring mechanical problems, which makes it expensive to maintain and 
unreliable for travel. The Department has a 2002 unmarked Chevy Impala, which will be used to 

. replace the Crown Victoria. Staff will continue to use the Chevy Impala for the same travel services 
as previously indicated for the outgoing Crown Victoria. 

The FY 2011-12 adopted budget authorizes expenditures up to $58,000.00 for police vehicle 
replacement. The funds will come from the Public Works 2011-2012 Equipment and Acquisition 
Fund. The total value of purchased vehicles in FY 2011-2012 will not exceed the budgeted amount 
of $58,000.00. 

Toyota of Santa Cruz provided the City of Capitola with a discounted rate for a used vehicle with 
5,000 miles. The cost savings from purchasing the used vehicle, as compared to a new vehicle 
with the same features, is estimated at $3,675.00. 

DISCUSSION: The Capitola Police Department fleet of unmarked patrol vehicles consists primarily 
of Chevrolet Impala models. The Toyota Camry is a 'green' rated vehicle with better fuel efficiency 
and smaller overall ecological footprint than the Chevrolet Impala. In addition, research shows 
Toyota vehicles are rated the highest in reliability and longevity. 

The attached Toyota of Santa Cruz bid includes license fees, state and local taxes. Toyota of 
Santa Cruz is a local dealership within the City of Capitola which provides discounted rates to local 
government. The estimated cost price of a similar vehicle purchased from another dealer is 
$3,675.00 or higher. 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\06-14-12\8.F. Unmarked police vehicle Staff Report.docx 

58



2 

6-14-12 AGENDA REPORT: PURCHASE POLICE UNMARKED VEHICLE 

The Police Department previously purchased vehicles from Ocean Honda Chevrolet as a local 
business. Since then, Ocean Honda moved and Toyota of Santa Cruz expanded making them the 
largest vehicle dealer in Capitola. Toyota of Santa Cruz has offered savings on vehicle purchases 
that meet the need of the police department resulting in both cost savings while supporting local 
business. 

Staff recommends using Toyota of Santa Cruz for the purchase of the unmarked police vehicle, at 
a total cost of $20,695.73. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The adopted FY 2011/2012 Equipment Acquisition & Replacement Fund 
originally indicated the $58,000.00 was to be used for the purchase of two police motorcycles and 
an Automated Vehicle Licensing Program. Based on a priority and need change, a portion of the 
$58,000.00 was already used to purchase a marked patrol vehicle. That purchase was in the 
amount of $37,304.27. The remaining balance of $20,695.73 will be used to purchase the 
unmarked vehicle. Therefore, staff recommends using the remaining balance of $20,695.73 to 
purchase the vehicle, completing in the current FY budget allocation. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Quote from Toyota of Santa Cruz 

Report Prepared By: Rudy Escalante 
Chief of Police 

Reviewed and ~. • arded 
By City Manag r 

.... , .. 

R\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\06-14-12\8.F. Unmarked police vehicle Staff Report.docx 59



ATTACHMENT 1 PAGE 01 / 01 13-1 / 313/ 2012 17 : 42 18:j14623'371 TOYOTA SAHTA CRUZ 
..... , ... , .... " .... , ........... , . , .... ,., ..,,"" .. 0..:. .., ... n I n"' .... , - ,;;ooIOVIr-1..1t: ru ... "u"' .... c vnJo\r'iUc. DEAL 21 804 

Dearer Number .. 1,,9,,4,.32'--__ _ Contract Number _____ ~~ R.O.S. Number ______ _ Stock Number .u.u:S5l'-P---

8uxerf.l~and~,d~·.1 - "" . '~ . 1 ' • • 

(Including ~untj'(lnd?ip 0,ode) ~: f. fl:, .'. 

C IH OF CAPITOlA' ,POLlttl',OEPT 
' .' ''I' " . ~o\o 

CAPITOLA CA 950j(} ' " , ,. 

YOLI. the Buyer (and Co·Buyer. il any), may buy the vehicle below for cash or on ~redit. By signing this contracl, yOu choose to buy fhe vehi~ l e on cledi t under the 
agreements on the front ami back, 01 this contract. You agree 10 pay Ihe Crgditor - Sl!iI"" (somelime~ "wi" or ·us· in thilO contract) the Amollnt Financed and FinanlJe 
Charge in U.S. funds according to the pl'lyment schedule below, We will figure your finance chaJge on a daily basl~. The Truth,ln·Lending Disclosures below are part of this rontract. 

Now 
Used Year 

Make 
alld Model Odom'1tliH Vehicle Identification Number Primary Use For Which Purctlased 

i, 

SED 
,,' " ', \iii 
494~" . . 

~ j:§Q ~wr#.~lnal. 'iamjI Yr.~ t).~~hOId) 'f;:! 

o business,.or Con'o'M~n;:il'l,t . OYOTA 

FEDERAL TRUTH-iN-LENDING DISCLOSURES 
)C. ANNUAl":, .: FCiHAN. "f!G.C~ ',- '/i'>ijpunt ., . ' 1.>,-totar.,"?, 1: . " TOt,~SilJe '" 
P:ERCENTAGE; . ~ ':'I. '1~B:!",ced. " :·';f,aYmentst. {' *' .. pr~~,e~; \. 

RATE :. ;<:, Tl1;:\ <fOlIar . /. \:~Thi(afl).9uroi 01";. \ "Tile a~ur'ity6U '" ' Th~.19Ia1.':w~t of : 
1'ti:e COSt 01 ···'amount the ' . ·Crealt pr~v;fJ~tr.· will have'p~a.'afler .yQUr p:UrchasG on ;. 

your credit as credit Will " to yO(! o( YOl! tiave'j)\ad& all ';i: cWdit. includii\!! 
a yearly rate. cost 'you, on ·yo"t/r behalf, • 'paYi\1Elote as your down 

scheduled. . payment of 

0.00 % $ 
S ' 0 ,00 is 

0.00 I') $ 20695. 73 $ 20695 .. Z3.J!l $ 20695_731'1 
(e) means an estimatE:! 

YOUR PAYMENT SCHEDULE WILl8E: 
Numner 01 payments: Amount 01 payment~: When Payments Are Due: 

One Payment of . MIA ·' '," il'lIi/ ' 
(\(Ie f'ayment of .~ N 'A· • . . / A' , 
1 Payments ~,' Monthly, Begiiinirii~} 1 .d 11 '} "-. 
N I A Paymsnts N 'A .. ' 

One Final PaylMnt ~ ,. . ' 
'. 

Lar. Chargl. H iIilyment is no! rereMd In ft.t v.ilhi~ 10 da)'$ aftQl" ~ Is dLl9, you wJ1 pay a lare charge 01 5% 01 Ihs part 01 the paymeilllhal is late. 
Prtpllymtn!. If you pay on aI your debl early, you ma.y be ~arglld ; minimllll ~ngrlCO durO". 
SaaJrity Intollm YoIlare giWlg a security inlerest ~ til. vehk,ii; IwIfIg Il"rmase(l', 
A<ldilional Inlorm!lIon: SI'G thk oomfllrt 1m mDle inlOfmation ifoc!oolng Information about IIQnpay/flerlL defau~, any r~qWM 
~yment in kJl bBloce !lia sche<iuleo:i date. mnimum finance dl~ress, aTKl sQClJ!il)' Intilf&St. 

ITEMIZATtON OFTHE AMOUNT FINANCED (Seller may ketp pari ollhe amounts paid to olhert.) 
1. Total Cash Price 

A. Cash Price 01 MotorVehide and Acceaaorie3 

1. Cash f'~ee Vehicle 
2. cash Price Accessories 

I 1aBI; "'9 (A) 
S 18811.49: 
$ UA_ 

3. other (N1Jt;)able) ." 

Dw;rlb6 :i'1!A~===~_=-========= SC·==::::NtlA~. Describe Ilj A L N I A 
B. Document Preparlltion Fee (not a gowrnmell!allee) S ~5 . 00 (8) 
C. SrnogFeePakltoSeliel $ m(C) 
O. (OptiQn;ll) TlIo;>ft Deterrent Oeviol (10 whom paidN"I"'A _______ $ .~. H I A (0) 

E. (OpliOl'lru) Theil Deterrent [)eviC9 {to II'liOO\ P~kJ / A S N LA (E) 
F. (Optional) Theft Detmroll! OGvice (10 whom paid I A s _ N fA (F) 

G. (Opliollal) Surtace Protection Product (to viMm pa I A s N fA ( (0) 

H. {OpIionaQ Surfac6 Protectloo Product (to whom . I A s " If/A (H) 
L Sales Tax (on taxablG items in A through H) S f 556 49 (I) 
J. Optional DMV Electtol'l;c Filing fee $ . 21 ',00 (J) 

K. (Optional) Servi&e Contract(to whom pili~ fA $ ~ I" . (Kl . 
L. (Oplional) Service Conllacl (to whom paiJj/A S ___ -..J.LL{L) 

M. (Opijon~t) Service Conl(ael (to whom p!lic/F fA S N/A (M) 

N. (OptiOf'l<l~ Service CootlBc1 (to whom paiJjlll S " H(A IN) 
O. (Optionaij Service COI'lirllct(to whom pai~ fA $ NI A (0) 

P'N~~r Credit or lease Balance paid by SEiler to 
---_$ N/A (P) 

{see Mwrmavrnenl Md Irade .. n calculatiOnl 

STATEMENT OF iNSURANCE 
NOTTCE. No per601l is re\luired as a comfHlon of fl~anCing 
the purchase of a molor vehiclll 10 [XlrcMse or nego~aie any 
insumnce through a particular Insurance company, agent or 
bfoller. You are nOl rsqulr/ld to buy IIny oUter insurance to 
obtain credit. Your dacisioo to buy or not buy olher insurallC6 
will r)I)\ be a laCIer in the ettdit approval process, 

Vehicle Insurance 
., . , Term PrGl)'llvrn 

$~""'_'.""-N/L'" '-UIA.. .JftJL"",,,,,.,",!,, N/+-"" .-U./A--
8odi1yk'+J1Y $1J.LA-Umi\~ /Ll.!os. s...1i,LA.. 
P""",O"." ' .N./LLimit~/L"" U!jll __ . 
M"'<M/A NIL'''' sJlJA--
fItA-- N/L'."JlJA--
Total V$hl¢le In!oulaOOl Premil.ms tUA---1~ 
UNlfSS A CHAFIGE IS INCtuD~D IN THIS AGREEMENT FOR 
PIJSUC UA8!LITY OR PAOPERTV DAMAGE INSllFW.'CE. PAYI>IHIT 
FOR SlJCHC()'oIiAA(lE IS NOT PROVIDED BYTHIS AGREEMENT . 
Yoo (n~y buy tha phy~iI;aI damage iruurarce th!s COOII3C\ I'$quirllS 
(SIlQ !lack) from anvor.e you cooose who Is a~ 10 vs. You 
are no! required to buy ~~y o1har insurlUlDl! to obtain cre<S1. 

, 

B""' __ X ____ ~--_------
CI)-B\!yer X -".' .. ®7 
S,II" X TOYOTA DLSANTA CR117~ 
H any i13\1!1lCC is d'JQd.:9d bel:lw, pckies CI" rer1{x:at~s I«tn lila 
~!IfTle{j insurance COO'f.Ia~ w>'I de.l.ul1\lltle terl!l9 .HI rorntioos. 

Application for Optionat Credit Insurance 
o CrEdit Ufe~ 0 Buyer D Co-Bvyer 0 Both 
o Credit Disability (Buyer Only) 

T8rm Exp" 

Cfl!ditufe N..l.A-Mot!,LA.- S _ --IIN'II,A_ 
Cred~ 01S!ib iH~fA--Mo".f.A- $ _ _ N I A 
Total Credit Insura-nee Premiums $, N /A (b) 
Ins~ Company Namlll~AL.~ __ ~~_ 

_ .'--:::---,--------
H<I[I'\ll Offiee Address ________ __ 

Croon W& fIlsurMCe and credit disability insurarc& al'9 001 
reqllired 10 obtairl crQd~. ¥aUf deeislOll to buy 01 no! buy cr&fij 
life aoo credit disab.lty insural)Ce "Hill no1 be a fac\ol" in ~lS 
credit approval process. They will 001 be prcMde<l (mless you 
sign and agree to pal the sxtra cost. Credfi rriG insuranre is 
based on yc.ur (I~glna payment schedilfe, This insurance may 
Mt pay af yoo r»Je on t~l$ contrAct ~ you make late payment$. 
CredH disa.1Xi11y illSuraocG dolls not cover Mi InCl'eMe !!1 your 
poyment Of in the nurnt?ar ~.paymenIS. CO'ierage lor cr~it.IiIQ 
ins(l1'llllCe and credit dlSabihty Insurance ends OIl tile ongmll 
due date \or the last payment uoless a di~rerrt term lor the 
Insurance I$Showl'l above, 
You are applying for the credrt insurance marked 
above. Your sIgnature below means 1hal you agree 
that:,(1 l.You ar~_~?I.e.li~ib.le for.!n~rance it yo.~ .haye 

60



c. (0pIi0naJ) ~ Contract Ito whom pai~cLl"A _ ______ _ 
A. (()ptionBQ Used Vehicle Contract CancGllation Op~on Agreement 
s. ;:~I'Aw"'mp'i~L!IA,----_ _____ _ _ 

Tot.1 C,gh Price (A through S) 

2. Amount. PaId 10 Public Officials 

A. LicQllsQ F911S 

B. A~lrationrrransferrrnling Fees 

e CO~ "", 0: OIher~~9 A1iatement Fee 
Total Official F~ (A through OJ 

3. Amount Paid to Insurance Complnlu 

(Total premIums from StAtement oIloslJ'8l'lCe column II ... b) 
4. 0 Smog CertiHtlllion ~ Eramplion Fee Plld to Slate 
5. Subtotal (I through 4) 

S 
$ 
S 

NlA , (0) 

NIA . (A) 

N/A (5) 

s20451.~B 

1 ~3:QO (A) 

84 ~ ·bo (8) 

8. 75 (e) 

,g .OO (0) 

$ 235 .75 

$ ~/A 
$ 8.00 
$ 20~95 . 73 

N/A (A) 

Ii. Tolill Downp~ymel1t 

A ::,'iN1<,-1t:..·"_"_""_' _Y' ~~ (}>xo ~i~ N"'I.!CA'---___ I __ ='-

V'NJljA._::_====':::~~===== 
N/A. ~) 
N/A (e) 
MIA (0) 

N/A (E) 

N/A (F) 

N/A (G) 

s G.QQ 

B. LEI(ItI Pri!>r Credrt or l eMe Balance $ ---iITiC-' 
c. Not TI~d9·ln (A kI$i B) (indicate. a negative nufl'lbe() $---i::¥.;'-
D. De~ Dcr.vnpayment S---m!K-
E. M6nuf8c1urer's Reba!e $----;07;-
F ~~'----------_____ .S __ ~~ 
G. "'" $_-,-"'-"" 
Tolal Downpaymenl (e through G) 

II neglWt, 10'1:91" ~o on iriS G aoo enlal VIi amoot,l i8SS lI'lan l&rO iii a poSIIIVa rtUlr.C\lr (1) ''19 lP <\IJQY$) 

(I) 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

7. Amovn\ Fin.nct<! (5 less 6) $ 20695 ·73 (~ 
SEllU ASSISTED lOAN 

BUYUI MAY If REOWIEO TO PLfDGE SECtM'I rCli THE LOAIt. AND 
YM1 aE OBLIGAT£D F<lR TII£ t.'STALLUEHT PAYIIENTS ON BOll{ T!!IS 
RETIJL 11IS1AW1ENTSALE ~CT AND TIlE LOAN. 

P'"""'soIL",, F""" ,;;~N I~A~s=~= NIH N/A AmoU1I S Finance Charge $ 
Total $ N I A Payable in _--;Nr,'"A,--
in~taltlll.mIS 01 $ N J A . $ _ . ...cN,-' A,,-_ 
Irorn this loan Is shown In kem 60. 

AUTO BROKER FEE DISCLOSURE 
If this contract reflects the retail sale of II 
new motof vehicle, the sale Is not subject 
to a fee received by an autobroker from us 
unless the following box is checked: 

o Name of sutobroker receiving fall, If 
applicable: 

SELLER'S AIGHTTO CANCEL t1 Buyer and Co-Buyer sign here, tile provisions 01 tile Seller's Right to C8nce1sectioo on 
the back giving the Seller Ihe right to cancel if S~II~r is Uf'lable to (l.Sslgn tills conlraCllo a llr.anclallJ'\6Ulu\loll wilt apply. 

X 'X~~o-----------------____ -I 
BuylN' Co-BuyGr 

r~t;/I IKJ your rom oumoay III YOU ale erigl0l8 lor 
disability IOSU(IInc;e only n you are work.ing lor wages 
or profrt 30 hours a week or more on the Effeclive 
Date. (3) Only the Primary Buyer is eligible for 
disability insurance. DISABiliTY INSURANCE MAY 
NOT COVER CONDITIONS FOR WHICH YOU HAVE 
SEEN A DOCTOR OR CHIROPRACTOR (N THE 
LAST 6 MONTHS IRelei 10 'Tolal Disal>Qlos No! 
Covered' in your poliCY fOl details). 
You wanllo buy the credit insurance. 

x MIA 
Date 8ttyRl S/glOiturll Age 

T,,,,, N",I.llA~_Mos. aN ~(A~===:::;-_ 
NGme 0( O&P ConIf8CI 

I want to buy a gap contract. 

1KCoropa"~:J.LA,,-______ _ 

Term N/A Mos,oH/A Miles 
IL Compan~ I A 

T'llm HIA ' Mos. oNtA Milt& 
1M Coropa,jJ '"/A"-__ .,,-_ ___ _ 
llIrm .1!/..A Moo.oN-,A Mdes 
tNCompanyNLA ________ _ 

Term ~ • Mos;. oNI-A Miles 

IO~/uAL---~~------
f"m B/ A M06.0NlA Mile" 

HOW THIS CONTRACT CAN BE CHANGED. This 
contract contains Itre entire agreement between you 
and us rolating to this contract. Any Ilhangg to IhQ 
contract must be in wriling and both you and we 
must sign it. No oral Changes are binding. 

"""""" X· _________ I 
Co-8vyer $igrJs X 

{.~~~~~i~~~~~~a.~~:.!~it~f~~ki~~~~;~~!:~t~liF:~Of! THE VEHiCLE BEING I'UACHASEO. !~ YOU 00 INSURANCE AGENT OR THROUGH nlf Sflll~a 
ONLY THE DEALER, USUIILLY UP TO THE AMOUNT OF 

SIS X 

in 

)LO c"",,,n,o., iHSUR!lIllCE AGE,.,. . 

.... , 
x 

, . 
I'Gltl,ld to thl city II!tOIn@Y, the di,triCi attolnty, or In Invuttgllor lor the Department 

. ........ "., •• lho flMncing Of pllymll1t \~rm, unlen you agree In wrillng to the change. You do 1161 have to IQrN 10 any chlnge. 
II unitntp.ral chance. 

61



I ................. ........ . ,. 
Buyer Signnture X ", Co-6yyer Slgnalu~ X' ~. 

The Annual Percentage Rate may be negotiable with the Seller. The Seller may assign this contract 
and retaIn Its right to receive iJ part of the Finance Charge, 

THERE IS NO COOllNG·OFF PERIOD UNLESS YOU OBTAIN A CONTRACT CANCELLATION OPTION ~~F:~:~~i~ :~~:i~ot ~:G:~ ::~R:~ 
Calilorni.law doas nat providt lor iI. ~eooU~ft· Of ol~el e.ancellaliOli period for w!hicl& we!. TherefDf., you eannot lall!r cancellllis Wl GAVE IT TO YOU AND YOU W£.RE fREE TO TAKE IT 
conl!acl slltVllY because you clian~,your mind,! decide lhe vehi~ COSlSloo mucll, olwlsh you llad acquired I dilfarent v~id~. After you AND REVIEW IT. you ACKNOWLEDGE THAT YOU HAVE 
sign belDW, you may onI, Clnctllhls contrtct WIll! !he agreemenl oIlhe seller Of for legal cause, s,uch IS fraud. However, C81~':'fI.law dOf!s READ 80TH SIDES OF 1lIS COHTRACT, INCLUDING THE 
requkea stller to off81 a Uay conlrKI ~rabo~ opIlOIl.on used veblclts wlIh a PlKchase pnct alless!han $40,000, sut;eet to ceriaUl MlaITRATION CLAUSE ON THE REVERSE SIDE, BEfORE 
SlatulOfY eondHlons. ThIs conlnel cance!laIlon Option requlfement does nol ap¢y 10 1M sale of a flCIUUONI ¥eNete,' motolcyde, Of an SIGHING BELOW YOU CONFIRlC THAT YOU RECEIVEO A 
off.hlgh'll"8Y mDtor vehicl! subj!clto identification under Call1om~ law. Se. th. vehicle contract canctKatlan option _glum,nl 101 details. COMPLETELYALlEIHN COPY WHEN yOU SlGHt:D IT. 

, . . 0 104/ 30/12 Buyer Signature X __ .,--,--, ___ :-: a e_ Co-Buyer Signature X Date ____ _ 
Co-BlJY&'s .MId Olh~r Owoorll - A co-buyer • • portOn who is rGsponsibkl lor paying tIlg Ql'ltirCl dobl. /vi oth!r O\Wler is II person whose f\ar:'\I! is on the tillI! 10 the whlcle bul 
does not haY!) 10 ~ IhG IIQbt. ThCI other owner Rllrees 10 the seeur~y intere&: ifl the \I$hICI$ given 10 ~ in lhis contracl. 

,. -, .-, • Address 
.... ' .... . . 

Other Owner Signature X 

GUARANTY: To mute us 10 lellihe vehicle kl Buyer. each person WhO Sl!:Ins as a Gu.1r.1n:o! indvlduaBy gL/il(anlee.s the p3rmeni 0/ this contract. II Buyer fail:! to pay any money owing 
on this (:O(IlfAel. eaoh GuaranlOf mu~t pay ~ when askBd. Each Guarantor Wl11 be liable for !he IOIaI AImUI1I owing e'o'iln !l6thef persons lIlso sign as Guarantor. and i ven it Buyef hu a 
OO<l\pIEllfI d(lf(l!"l&Q ttl GlIlIrlinlar's demand lor reimbursement. Each Guarantor e.grees II) be aablEl El'l$n It WQ 00 onll or morll of the following: (II give the Buyer more dme 10 payoneor more 
paymant,; (2) gi~o a full Of parl/lil rOIGaSQ 10 ~ny Olhel Gu~ranl(l~i~~tr!:~~~ any ~ea!rily; (4) Iccept leM from !he 9uyer than the IOtaI aJl1()tJllI O'NIng; or (5) OtMrMsQ (IlaW a sGHloment 
relaling ttl this ClJn~"oI 01 ,~~ the contract Eat:!, Guamntor al."lllllm"lI:UUes reCeIpt of a ClJm~leted oopy of \IIi$ oonlr&ct and guaranty at the ~me of SI!1IIin!l. 
Guararr.or waives 1'O:r:e of acoepl300! 01 INs Guaran:y. r.oi oo 01 Ule SlI)'Qf"S non·paymQnt, flOO-pgrlolmance. and defallll; and ootices oi \he arooum ow~g at any ~rne, ar.d 01 ai\y d&mai'ds !,!pOn ¢1& BIJ)'&f. 

".""',,x ________ , ___ g,tt30/12 
Address 

TuYoTA Of SANTA CRUZ 
S6Iler SIgnS 

GUtl!¥ltOlX ___ =_==~c-______ D<ltll ___ _ 

Address ~:'\ ... _ 

ByX 

ORIGINAL LIENHOLDER 

62



FROM: FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JUNE 14, 2012 

Item #: B.G. 

SUBJECT: ADOPT RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION NUMBERS 3820 AND 3869, TO 
AMEND APPROPRIATIONS LIMITS FOR FISCAL YEARS 2010-11 AND 2011-12 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt proposed resolution to amend Appropriations Limits 
Resolutions 3820 and 3869, for Fisca·1 Years 2010-11 and 2011-12, as recommended by the City's 
previous audit firm, Teaman Ramirez and Smith. 

BACKGROUND: Originally established by Proposition 4 in 1979, the appropriation limit places an 
upper limit each year on the amount of monies that can be spent from tax proceeds. This limit 
grows annually by a population and cost-of-living factor. The Appropriations Limit for a given fiscal 
year is established in the months preceding the beginning of that fiscal year. The City of Capitola's 

. previous audit firm, Teaman, Ramirez and Smith (TRS), has identified that a more beneficial 
statistic is available for the City to use than was used for the calculation of the Fiscal Year 2010-11 
Appropriations Limit. Since subsequent year appropriations limits build on previous years, 
amendment of Fiscal Year 2011-12 Appropriations Limit is also advantageous. 

DISCUSSION: The State of California Department of Finance is required by Section 2227 of the 
California Revenue and· Taxation Code to issue certain statistics annually that are to be used by 
agencies in the Article XIII B of the California Constitution calculation of the annual Appropriations 
Limit. For the 2010-11 calculation, the "Local Non-residential Property Value Increment as a 
percent of Assessed Gross Value" was used. While allowable, using the other alternately allowed 
"Change in California Per Capita Income" is· more advantageous to the City for the single year 
2010-11. The "Local Non-residential" statistic was used for Fiscal Years 2008-09, 2009-10, 2011-
12, and will be used for Fiscal Year 2012-13. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Amendment of the Appropriations Limits for Fiscal Years 2010-11 and 2011-12 
does not have an impact on the financial status of the City of Capitola since the City operates well 
within the limits that the appropriations calculation allows. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft resolution 
2. Resolution No. 3820 
3. Resolution No. 3869 

Report Prepared By: Lonnie Wagner 
Accountant II Reviewed and 

By City Manag 

R\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\06-14-12\8.G Appropriations Limits Amendments 2010-11, 2011-
12_stf.docx 63



RESOLUTION NO. __________ 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
 AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 3820 WHICH SET THE FY 2010-11 APPROPRIATIONS 

LIMIT AND RESOLUTION NO. 3869 WHICH SET THE FY 2011-12 APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 
  PURSUANT TO ARTICLE XIII B OF THE CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 

 WHEREAS, the City Council annually adopts Appropriations Limits for each ensuing 
fiscal year; and 

WHEREAS, the previously adopted 2010-11 Appropriations Limit approved by 
Resolution No. 3820 was calculated in accordance with Propositions 4 and 111 appropriations 
limits according to Section 8 (e) (2) (B) of ARTICLE XIII B of the California Constitution; and    

WHEREAS, there is an alternative calculation method that is more advantageous to the 
City; and 

WHEREAS, previously adopted 2011-12 appropriations limit approved by Resolution 
3869  carried forward in the calculation of the 2010-11 Appropriations Limit, thereby requiring an 
amendment to the 2011-12 Appropriations Limit, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Capitola as follows: 

1.  Resolution No. 3820, establishing the 2010-11 Appropriations Limit, is amended to:  

   Population change for Santa Cruz County   1.0127 
  Change in California Per Capita Income      0.9746 
  2009-10 Appropriation Limit            $14,782,595 
  Adjustment Factor (0.9746 x 1.0127)         x      0.9870
   2010-11 Appropriation Limit:      $14,590,421

2.  Resolution No. 3869, establishing the 2011-12 Appropriations Limit, is amended to: 

  Population change for Santa Cruz County   1.0072 
Change in Local Non-residential New Construction  1.21911 

  2010-11 Appropriation Limit:       $14,590,421 
  Adjustment Factor (1.21911 X 1.0072)      x    1.2279
   2011-12 Appropriation Limit:     $17,915,578

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was passed and adopted by the City 
Council of the City of Capitola at its regular meeting held on the 14th day of June, 2012, by the 
following vote: 

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN:  

               Michael Termini, Mayor 

ATTEST: _________________________, CMC 
        Susan Sneddon, City Clerk    

ATTACHMENT 1 

64



l , 

I 
I , 
, 

ATTACHMENT 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 3820 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
SETTING THE 2010-2011 FISCAL YEAR APPROPRIATION LIMIT PURSUANT 

TO ARTICLE XIIIS OF THE CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION . 

7516 

. . . . 

WHEREAS, before June 30 of each year, the City Council must select the factors to 
calculate the appropriation limit for the ensuing fiscal year and set the appropriation limit 
accordingly. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Capitola that the 2010-2011 fiscal year appropriafion limit shall be $10,303,869, calculated as 
follows: . . .. 

Change in Local Non-residential 
New Construction 

Population change within the c.ounty: 

2009-2010· Appr'op·riationLimit: . 

0.68883 

1..01270 

Adjustment Factor (1.07718 X 1.01 07)(rounded to 4 places) 

2010-2011 Appropriation Limit: 

x . 0.69758 

. $10,312,043 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was passed and adopted by the City 
Council of the City of Capitola on the 10th day of June, 2010, by the following vote: . 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

ATIEST: 

(jj 

Council Members Graves, Nicol, Begun, and Mayor Storey 

None 

Council Member Norton 

None 

,MMC 

This is to certify that the above and 
foregoing is a true and correct copy 
of Resolution No. 3820 passed and 
adopted by the Capitola City Council 
on the 10111 day of Ju ,2010. 

, 
,:" 

65



«:: «:» r Y RESOLUTION NO. 3869 

ATTACHMENT 3 

7672 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
SETTING THE 2011-12 FISCAL YEAR APPROPRIATION LIMIT PURSUANT 

TO ARTICLE XIIIB OF THE CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 

WHEREAS, before June 30 of each year, the City Council must select the factors to 
calculate the appropriation limit for the ensuing fiscal year and set the appropriation limit 
accordingly. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Capitola that the 2011-2012 fiscal year appropriation limit shall be $ 12,662,030, calculated as 
foHows: 

Change in Local Non-residential 
New Construction 

Population change within the county: 

2010-2011 Appropriation Limit: 

Adjustment Factor (1.21911 X 1.00720) 

2011-2012 Appropriation Limit: 

1.21911 

1.00720 

$ 10,312,043 

x 1.22789 

$ 12,662030 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was passed and adopted by the City 
Council of the City of Capitola on the 9th day of June, 2011, by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

Council Members Harlan, Termini, Nicol, Storey, and Mayor Norton 

None 

None 

None 

Dennis R Norton, Mayor 

This is to certify that the above and foregoing is 
a true and correct copy of Resolution No. 3869 
passed and adopted by the Capitola City Council 
on the 9th day of Ju , 011. 

66



FROM: FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JUNE 14, 2012 

Item #: a.H. 

SUBJECT: ADOPT RESOLUTION SETTING THE 2012-13 APPROPRIATION LIMIT AS 
REQUIRED BY ARTICLE XillB OF THE CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: By motion and roll call vote, adopt proposed resolution setting the 
Fiscal Year 2012-13 Appropriation Limit as required by Article XillB of the California Constitution. 

BACKGROUND: 
On November 6, 1979, California voters approved Proposition 4, commonly known as the Gann 
Initiative, establishing Article XillB of the State Constitution. This proposition places annual limits 
on the appropriation of tax proceeds that can be made, based on the 1978-79 base year, and 
adjusted each year for population growth and cost-of-living factors. It precludes state and local 
government from retaining "excess" revenues above the appropriation limit, and requires the State 
to reimburse local government for the cost of certain mandates. 

Two subsequent initiatives, Proposition 98 in 1988 and Proposition 111 in 1990, modify the 
appropriation limit requirements. Proposition 98 amends the methodology for allocation of excess 
revenues. Proposition 111 changes the population growth and cost-of-living factors to be used in 
calculating the limit, adds additional exempted items, and further adjusts allocation of excess 
revenues. 

The appropriations limit applies only to tax proceeds. Charges for services, fees, grants, loans, 
donations, and other non-tax based proceeds are excluded. Exemptions are also made for voter 
approved debt, debt that existed prior to January 1 j 1979, and for the cost of compliance with court 
or Federal government mandates. 

The State Constitution requires that prior to June 30 of each year, Council ratify calculation factors 
and set the City's appropriations limit for the following fiscal year. 

DISCUSSION: 
The Appropriations Limit for a given fis~al year is established in the months preceding the 
beginning of that fiscal year. The California Revenue and Taxation Code, Section 2227, mandates 
that the Department of Finance transmit an estimate of the percentage change in population, 
"Annual Percent Change in Population Minus Exclusions", to local governments. Each local 
jurisdiction uses this percentage change in population factor for January 1, 2012 in conjunction 
with the County-issued "Local Nonresidential Property Value Increment By Fund" or "Change in 
California Per Capita Income"·to calculate the Appropriation Factor used in determining the Limit. 

R\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\06-14-12\8.H Appropriations Limit Amendment 2012-13_stf.docx 67



JUNE 14, 2012:SETTING THE 2012-13 APPROPRIATION LIMIT AS REQUIRED BY ARTICLE 
XIIiB OF THE CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 2 

The 2012-13 calculation is: 

Annual 0/0 
change in Local 
Population Nonresidential FY 2011-12 

minus Property Value Appropriation Appropriation 
Exclusions X Increment = Factor X Limit 

2012-13 1.0077 1.26983 1.2796 $17,915,578 

The proposed 2012-13 Budget tax revenues are: 

2012-13 

Sales Tax and Triple Flip (1%) $' 41 5511200 

District Transaction and Use Tax (1/4%) $ 973,200 

Property Tax and In-Lieu $ 1,650,000 

Transient Occupancy Tax $ 890,000 

Franchise Taxes $ 482,200 

Business license Tax $ 270,000 

Interest Income from tax revenue $ 1,375 

$ 8,817,975 

The 2012-13 % of appropriations limit used is: 

For Fiscal Year ended: 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 

= 

Appropriations Limit . $ 14,590A21 $17,915,578 $ 22,924,774 

Tax revenue $ 8,115,800 $ 8,377,700 $ 8,817,975 

Remaining to limit $ 6A74,621 $ 9,537,878 $ 14,106,799 

% of limit used 55.62% 46.76% 38.46% 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

FY 2012-13 
Appropriation Limit 

$22,924,774 

The appropriations limit is increased $ 5,009,196 to $22.9 million for a 28.0% increase from 
2011-12 to 2012-13. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Draft resolution 

Report Prepared By: Lonnie Wagner 
Accountant II Reviewed and A.r rddeedd 

By City Mana9\jb--
R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\06-14-12\8.H Appropriations Limit Amendment 2012-13_stf.docx 68



ATTACHMENT 1 

RESOLUTION NO. ___ _ 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
SETTING THE 2012-13 FISCAL YEAR APPROPRIATION LIMIT PURSUANT 

TO ARTICLE XIIIB OF THE CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 

WHEREAS, before June 30 of each year, the City Council must select the factors to 
calculate the appropriation limit for the ensuing fiscal year and set the appropriation limit 
accordingly. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the 
Capitola that the 2012-13 fiscal year appropriation limit shall 
follows: 

Population change within the county: 
Change in Local Non-residential 

New Construction 

2011-12 Appropriation Li 
Adjustment Factor (1 
2012-13 Appropriation 

I HEREBY CERTIFY 
Council of the City of Capitola 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 
________ ~~--~~,CMC 
Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 

1.26983 

$ 17,915,578 
x 1.2796 

$ 22.924,774 

resolution was passed and adopted by the City 
of June, 2012, by the following vote: 

Michael Termini, Mayor 

69



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JUNE 14,2012 

FROM: CITY MANAGERS DEPARTMENT 

Item #: 8.1. 

SUBJECT: AWARD OF JANITORIAL BID TO CLEAN BUILDING MAINTENANCE IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $47,783.50 PER YEAR 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the execution of a three year agreement with Clean Building 
Maintenance in an amount not to exceed $47,783.50 per year. 

BACKGROUND: 
The City's current janitorial contract with Clean Building Maintenance expires on June 30, 2012. The 
staff prepared a Request for Proposal and mailed it to 12 local janitorial services. In addition, a display ad 
was published in the Santa Cruz Sentinel two Sundays in May notifying the public of the opportunity to 
bid. 

DISCUSSION 
The janitorial contract is for a term of three years, expiring on June 30, 2012. Two janitorial service 
providers submitted bids. Of those bids received, Clean Building Maintenance, with a bid in the amount 
of $47,783.50 per year was the lowest responsible bidder. 

The following is a list of all bids received: 
1. Clean Building Maintenance 
2. Bewley's Cleaning 

FISCAL IMPACT 

$47,783.50 
$51,722.70 

The fiscal impact will be $47,783.50 per year. Funds are provided in the proposed FY12/13 Public Works 
Facilities budget. 

ATTACHMENT 

1. Contract with Clean Building Maintenance 

Report Prepared By: Lisa G. Murphy 
Administrative Services Director 

Reviewed and FO~d 
by City Manager: ~ 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\06-14-12\8.1. Janitorial Contract 2012.doc 70



71

mdeiter
ATTACHMENT 1



Professional Services Agreement July 1, 2012 
Janitorial Services 
Clean Building Maintenance 
Page 2 

to time by City at the discretion of City or upon the request of Consultant. If the work is satisfactory, it will 
be approved. If the work is not satisfactory, City will inform Consultant of the changes or revisions 
necessary to secure approval. 

SECTION 4 
Fees and Payment 

Payment for the Consultant's services shall be made upon a schedule and within the limit, or 
limits shown, upon Appendix Two. Such payment shall be considered the full compensation for all 
personnel, materials, supplies, and equipment used by Consultant in carrying out the work. If Consultant 
is compensated on an hourly basis, Consultant shall tra<;;k the number of hours Consultant, and each of 
Consultant's employees, has worked under this Agreement during each fiscal year (July 1 through June 
30) and Consultant shall immediately notify City when the number of hours worked during any fiscal year 
by any of Consultant's employees reaches 900 hours. In addition each invoice submitted by Consultant 
to City shall specify the number of hours to date Consultant, and each of Consultant's employees, has 
worked under this Agreement during the current fiscal year. 

SECTION 5 
Changes in Work 

City may order major changes in scope or character of the work, either decreasing or increasing 
the scope of Consultant's services. No changes in the Scope of Work as described in Appendix One 
shall be made without the City's written approval. Any change requiring compensation in excess of the 
sum specified in Appendix Two shall be approved in advance in writing by the City. 

SECTION 6 
Time of Beginning and Schedule for Completion 

This Agreement will become effective when signed by both parties and will terminate on the 
earlier of: 

• Work shall begin on July 1, 2012 through June 30,; or 

• The date either party terminates the Agreement as provided below. 

In the event that major changes are ordered or Consultant is delayed in performance of its 
services by circumstances beyond its control, the City will grant Consultant a reasonable adjustment in 
the schedule for completion provided that to do so would not frustrate the City's objective for entering into 
this Agreement. Consultant must submit all claims for adjustments to City within thirty calendar days of 
the time of occurrence of circumstances necessitating the adjustment. 

SECTION 7 
Termination 

City shall have the right to· terminate this Agreement at any time upon giving ten days written 
notice to ConSUltant. Consultant may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to City should the 

. City fail to fulfill its duties as set forth in this Agreement. In the event of termination, City shall pay the 
Consultant for all services performed and accepted under this Agreement up to the date of termination. 

72



Professional Services Agreement July 1, 2012 
Janitorial Services 
Clean Building Maintenance 
Page 3 

SECTION 8 
Insurance 

Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for 
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of 
the work hereunder by the Consultant, his agents, representatives, or employees. 

Minimum Scope of Insurance 

Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

1. Insurance Services Office Commercial Liability coverage 
(Occurrence Form CG 0001). 

2. Insurance Services office Form Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, 
Code 1 (any auto). 

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California. 
, 

4. Errors and Omissions Liability insurance appropriate to the consultant's profession. 
Architects' and engineers' coverage shall include contractual liability. 

Minimum Limits of Insurance 

Consultant shall maintain limits no less than: 

1. General Liability: 
(including operations, 
products and completed 
operations) 

2. Automobile Liability: 

3. Errors and Omissions 
Liability: 
Limits 

Other Insurance Provisions 

$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 in 
aggregate (including operations, for bodily injury, 
personal and property damage. 

$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and 
property damage. 

$1,000,000 per claim and in the aggregate. 

The commercial general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, 
the following provisions: 

1. The City of Capitola, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers are to be covered 
as additional insured's as respects: liability arising out of work or operations performed 
by or on behalf of the Consultant or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by 
the Consultant. 

73



Professional Services Agreement July 1, 2012 
Janitorial Services 
Clean Building Maintenance 
Page 4 

2. For any claims related to this project, the Consultant's insurance coverage shall be 
primary insurance as respects the City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers. 
Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its officers, officials, employees 
or volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant's insurance and shall not contribute 
with it. 

3. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage 
shall not be canceled by either party, except after thirty (30) days' prior written notice 
by certified mail, returned receipt requested, has been given to the City. 

4. Coverage shall not extend to any indemnity coverage for the active negligence of the 
additional insured in any case where an agreement to indemnify the additional insured 
would be invalid under Subdivision (b) of Section 2782 of the Civil Code. 

Acceptability of Insurers 

Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A: VII , unless 
otherwise acceptable to the City. 

Verification of Coverage 

Consultant shall furnish the City with original certificates and amendatory endorsements affecting 
coverage by this clause. The endorsements should be on forms provided by the City or on other than the 
City's forms provided those endorsements conform to City requirements. All certificates and 
endorsements are to be received and approved by the City before work commences. The City reserves 
the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements 
affecting the coverage required by these specifications at any time. 

SECTION 9 
Indemnification 

Consultant agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents and 
employees, from and against any and all claims, demands, actions, damages, or judgments, including 
associated costs of investigation and defense arising in any manner from consultant's negligence, 
recklessness, or willful misconduct in the performance of this agreement. 

SECTION 10 
Civil Rights Compliance/Equal Opportunity Assurance 

Every supplier of materials and services and all consultants doing business with the City of 
Capitola shall be in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990, and shall be an equal opportunity employer as defined by Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
and including the California Fair Employment and Housing Act of 1980. As such, consultant shall not 
discriminate against any person on the basis of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, 
disability, medical condition, marital status, age or sex with respect to hiring, application for employment, 
tenure or terms and conditions of employment. Consultant agrees to abide by all of the foregoing 
statutes and regulations. 

74



Professional Services Agreement July 1,2012 
Janitorial Services 
Clean Building Maintenance 
Page 5 

SECTION 11 
Legal Action/Attorneys' Fees 

If any action at law or in equity is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, 
the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney's fees in addition to any other relief to which 
he or she may be entitled. The laws of the State of California shall govern all matters relating to the 
validity, interpretation, and effect of this Agreement and any authorized or alleged changes, the 
performance of any of its terms, as well as the rights and obligations of Consultant and the City. 

SECTION 12 
Assignment 

This Agreement shall not be assigned without first obtaining the express written consent of the 
Director after approval of the City Council. 

SECTION 13 
Amendments 

This Agreement may not be amended in any respect except by way of a written instrument which 
expressly references and identifies this particular Agreement, which expressly states that its purpose is to 
amend this particular Agreement, and which is duly executed by the City and Consultant. Consultant 
acknowledges that no such amendment shall be effective until approved and authorized by the City 
Council, or an officer of the City when the City Council may from time to time empower an officer of the 
City to approve and authorize such amendments. No representative of the City is authorized to obligate 
the City to pay the cost or value of services beyond the scope of services set forth in Appendix Two. 
Such authority is retained solely by the City Council. Unless expressly authorized by the City Council, 
Consultant's compensation shall be limited to that set forth in Appendix Two. 

SECTION 14 
Miscellaneous Provisions 

1. Project Manager. Director reserves the right to approve the project manager assigned by 
Consultant to said work. No change in assignment may occur without prior written approval of the City. 

2. Consultant SeNice. Consultant is employed to render professional services only and any 
payments made to Consultant are compensation solely for such professional services. 

3. Licensure. Consultant warrants that he or she has complied with any and all applicable 
governmental licensing requirements. 

4. Other Agreements. This Agreement supersedes any and all other agreements, either oral 
or in writing, between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter, and no other agreement, 
statement or promise related to the subject matter of this Agreement which is not contained in this 
Agreement shall be valid or binding. 

5. City Property. Upon payment for the work performed, or portion thereof, all drawings, 
specifications, records, or other documents generated by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement are, and 
shall remain, the property of the City whether the project for which they are made is executed or not. The 
Consultant shall be permitted to retain copies, including reproducible copies, of drawings and 
specifications for information and reference in connection with the City's use and/or occupancy of the 

75



Professional Services Agreement July 1,2012 
Janitorial Services 
Clean Building Maintenance 
Page 6 

project. The drawings, specifications, records, documents, and Consultant's other work product shall not 
be used by the Consultant on other projects, except by agreement in writing and with appropriate 
compensation to the City. 

6. Consultant's Records. Consultant shall maintain accurate accounting records and other 
written documentation pertaining to the costs incurred for this project. Such records and documentation 
shall be kept available at Consultant's office during the period of this Agreement, and after the term of this 
Agreement for a period of three years from the date of the final City payment for Consultant's services. 

7. Independent Contractor. In the performance of its work, it is expressly understood that 
Consultant, including Consultant's agents, servants, employees, and subcontractors, is an independent 
contractor solely responsible for its acts and omissions, and Consultant shall not be considered an 
employee of the City for any purpose. 

8. Conflicts of Interest. Consultant stipulates that corporately or individually, its firm, its 
employees and subcontractors have no financial interest in either the success or failure of any project 
which is, or may be, dependent on the results of the Consultant's work product prepared pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

9. Notices. All notices herein provided to be given, or which may be given by either party 
to the other, shall be deemed to have been fully given and fully received when made in writing and. 
deposited in the United States mail, certified and postage prepaid, and addressed to the respective 
parties as follows: 

CITY 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 

831-475-7300 

By: _____________ _ 

Benjamin Goldstein, City Manager 

Dated: _____________ _ 

Approved as to Form: 

John G. Barisone, City Counsel 

CONSULTANT 
Clean Building Maintenance Co. 

150 Felker Street, Suite C 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

By: _____________ _ 

Dated: ____________ _ 

76



PG 7- APPENDIX ONE SCOPE OF SERVICES 

•.• ~·FACILrrY 

1) New Brightn Gymnasium I 12 I As Schedule I $38.00 I $456.00 
2) Jade Street Community Center I 9 I As Schedule I $123.00 I $1,107.00 

1) City Hall - Administration 2 As Schedule $270.00 $540.00 
2) City Hall - Offices and Meeting Rooms 2 As Schedule $135.00 $270.00 
3) City Hall - Police Dept. 2 As Schedule $235.00 $470.00 
4) Public Works 2 As Schedule $48.00 $96.00 
5) New Brighton Gymnasium 2 As Schedule $75.00 $150.00 

1) City Hall - Administration 1 As Schedule $280.00 $280.00 
2) City Hall - Offices and Meeting Rooms 1 As Schedule $56.00 $56.00 
3) City Hall - Police Dept. 1 As Schedule $126.00 $126.00 
4) Museum 1 As Schedule $27.00 $27.00 
5) Public Works 1 As Schedule $27.00 $27.00 
6) New Brightn Gymnasium 1 As Schedule $92.00 $92.00 
7) Jade Street Community Center 1 As Schedule $990.00 $990.00 

TOTAL BID OF ALL ITEMS $47,783.50 

77



City of Capitola 
Janitorial Services Contract Provisions 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The contractor shall provide janitorial services at the following City facilities in accordance with 
these special provisions: 

1. City Hall - Administration 
2. City Hall- Council Chambers, Restrooms & Offices 
3. City Hall- Police Department 
4. Museum 
5. Public Works 
6. New Brighton Gymnasium 
7. Jade Street Community Center 
8. Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park 
9. Public Restrooms (4) 

a. Esplanade Restrooms 
b. WharfRestrooms 
c. Jade Street Park 
d. Peery Park Restrooms 

10. Village 

All contractor employees are subject to fingerprinting and a background investigation prior to 
start of this contract. The successful bidder is required to submit a list of employees to the City 
prior to start ofthe contract. 

The City shall supply the contractor with paper supplies (towels, toilet paper, etc) and soap for 
the dispensers for the restrooms. All other cleaning materials, equipment and related supplies are 
the responsibility of the contractor. 

The Contractor is required to conform to all Federal, State and Local laws in the performance of 
this contract. Special attention is directed to the following requirements: 

1. Workers Compensation Insurance Requirements 
2. Injury and Ulness Prevention Program Requirements 
3. Hazard Communication Program Requirements 
4. Hazardous Material Disposal Requirements 

The successful bidder is required to submit to the City a complete list of chemicals and Material 
Safety Data Sheets for each chemical to be used in the performance of this contract. 

The successful is also required to submit the specifications and/or proprietary process to the City 
for approval for the following work items: 

a. Chemically clean carpets 
b. Steam Clean carpets 
c. Clean exterior windows 

All bidders must submit a list of references for similar contracts or jobs that they have had over 
the past three years. Reference list must include a brief scope of work, agency or company name 
and contact information. The City will perform a reference check on the low bidder to verify 
qualifications and abilities of the contractor. 

78



The following work items are to be accomplished to the satisfaction of the City at the listed 
facilities in accordance with the following schedule: 

CITY HALL - COUNCIL CHAMBERS, OFFICES & RESTROOM (1st FLOOR) 

1) DAILY before 8 a.m. - Seven days a week including all holidays: 

Restrooms: Open to the public Monday through Sunday before 8:00 am. Clean and sanitize 
fixtures, toilets, urinals, and sinks. Wet mop floors. Clean and fill soap dispensers. Empty trash 
receptacles. Replace paper stock as needed. During Peak Season (May thru September) on 
Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays - 2 cleanings per day, once before 8am and again between 1 
pm and 2 pm. 

2) 1 DAY A WEEK - Monday before 8:00 am or after 5:30 p.m. 

Lobby: Wet mop floor. Empty trash/recycling receptacles and ash trays. Clean & sanitize 
drinking fountain. Clean entrance door glass. Dust trim, sills and edging. Spot clean the walls. 

Council Chambers: Vacuum carpets. Dust trim, sills and edging. Dust and wax furniture, empty 
trash/recycling receptacles, wipe down tables. 

Offices: Vacuum carpets. Dust trim, sills and edging. Dust and wax furniture, 
empty trash/recycling receptacles, wipe down tables. 

3) SEMI ANNUALLY- Once during June & December (before 8:00 a.m. or after 7:00 pm, not on 
Thursdays). Call first to schedule. 

City Council Chambers: Steam Clean Carpet 

Offices: Steam Clean Carpet 

Lobby: Strip, seal and wax floor. 

4) ANNUALLY- Once during March. Call first to schedule. 

City Council Chambers: Clean exterior windows inside and outside. Dust and clean blinds 

Offices: Clean exterior windows inside and outside. Dust and clean blinds 

CITY HALL - ADMINISTRATION (2ND FLOOR) 

1) 2 DAYS A WEEK - Tuesday & Friday before 8:00 am or after 6:00 p.m. 

Restrooms (2): Clean & sanitize fixtures, toilets and sinks. Wet mop floors, clean & fill soap 
dispensers. Empty trash receptacles, dust edging, trim and sills. Spot clean walls. Replace paper 
stock as needed. 

79



Reception Area: Wet mop floor. Empty trash and recycling receptacles and ash tray. Clean 
entrance door glass. Clean counter top. Spot clean walls. 

Break Room: Wet mop floor. Empty trash & recycling receptacles, clean and sanitize sink and 
countertops. Dust edging, blinds, trim and sills. Spot clean walls. 

Office Areas, corridor and work areas: Vacuum carpets. Dust edging, trim, sills, bookcases and 
furniture. Spot clean walls. Empty trash and recycling receptacles. 

Elevator: Spot clean walls, floor and door. 

2) SEMI-ANNUALLY - Once during June & December (Friday after 6:00 p.m. or Saturday 
before 3:00 pm) Call first to schedule. 

Office Area, corridor and work areas: Steam Clean Carpets. 

Restrooms and break room: Strip, seal and wax floors. 

3) ANNUALLY - Once during March on a weekend. Call first to schedule. 

All Areas: Clean inside and outside of all exterior windows. Remove, clean and replace window 
screens. Dust and clean blinds. Elevator: Steam clean carpet. 

CITY HALL - POLICE DEPARTMENT 

1) 2 DAYS A WEEK - Tuesday & Friday before 8:00 am or after 6:00 pm 
Restrooms (2) and Locker Roo~s: clean and sanitize fixtures, toilets, urinals, showers and sinks. 
Wet mop floors. Clean and fill soap dispensers. Empty trash and recycling receptacles. Replace 
paper stock as needed. Dust edging, trim sills. Spot clean walls and doors 

Lobby Area: Wet mop floor. Empty trash & recycling receptacles and ash tray. Clean entrance 
door glass and glass adjacent to dispatch. Clean counter top. Spot clean walls door. 

Office Areas: Vacuum carpets, wet mop floors and empty trash & recycling receptacles, dust 
edging, trim sills, bookcases countertops and furniture. Spot clean walls and doors. 

2) SEMI-ANNUALLY- Once during June & December, on a weekend. Call first to schedule 

Steam clean carpets and fabric chairs. 

3) ANNUALLY-Once during March, on a weekend. Call first to schedule 

All Areas: Clean inside and outside of all exterior windows. Remove, clean and replace window 
screens. Dust and clean blinds. 

80



MUSEUM 

1) 1 DAY A WEEK-Fridaybefore 8:00 am or after 6:00 pm. 

Vacuum carpets, dust exhibits, empty trash and recycling receptacles. 
2) ANNUALLY: Once during March, on a weekend. Call first to schedule: 

All Areas: Clean inside and outside of all exterior windows. Remove, clean and replace window 
screens. Dust and clean blinds; 

PUBLIC WORKS: 
1) 2 DAYS A WEEK - Tuesdays & Fridays after 4:00 pm 

Lobby Area and Offices: Vacuum carpets, empty trash receptacles, clean entrance door glass, 
dust edging, trim and sills. 

Restrooms & Locker room: clean and sanitize fixtures, toilets, urninals and sinks. Wet mop 
floors, clean and fill soap dispensers, empty trash and recycling recepticals. Replace paper stock 
as needed. 

2) ANNUALLY: Once during March, on a weekend. Call first to schedule: 
All Areas: Clean inside and outside of all exterior windows. Remove, clean and replace window 
screens. Dust and clean blinds. 

NEW BRIGHTON GYMNASIUM 

1 ) DAILY - Tuesday through Sunday before 8 :00 am or after 10:00 p.m. 

Restrooms: Clean & sanitize fixtures, toilets, urinals and sinks. Dust edging and trim. Wet mop 
floors. Clean and fill soap dispensers. Empty trash/recycling receptacles. Replace paper stock as 
needed. Clean paper wads off of ceiling. 

Gymnasium Area: dry mop gym floor. Sweep edges of gym floor. Spot clean gym floor with 
approved chemical cleaner. 

Lobby Area: Empty trash/recycling, vacuum carpets (lobby & corridor). Clean and sanitize 
drinking fountain. Dust edging and trim. Clean bulletin board glass. Clean windows on door 
between lobby and gym. 

Storage/Equipment Room: Vacuum carpets. 

2) Monthly - 4th week of month (any day except Sunday) before 8 :00 am or after 10:00 pm. 

Lobby, offices & corridor area: Steam clean carpets. Clean windows inside and outside at entry . 

. 3) Semi-Annually - once during June, December (Any day except Sunday, before 8:00 am or after 
10:00 p.m.) Call to Schedule. 

Gymnasium Area: Pull out the bleachers, sweep and clean under bleachers, clean basketball 
backboards. Clean yellow padding under backboards .. Remove paper-wads from the ceiling. 

81



· 4) Annually - once during March (any day except Sunday, before 8:00 am or after 10:00 pm) Call 
to Schedule. 

Restroom Areas: Strip, seal and wax floors. 

JADE STREET COMMUNITY CENTER 

1) Semi-Annually - before 8:00 am or after 10:00 pm or as scheduled. 

Spray buff and hi-speed floor the floors in the rooms and the lobby. 

2) Annually- once during March (any day except Sunday, before 8:00 am or after 10:00 pm) 

Community Rooms, Restroom Areas, Kitchen, Lobby & Corridor Areas: Strip, seal and wax 
floors. 

Office: Steam clean carpets. 

All Areas: Clean inside and outside of all exterior windows. Remove, clean and replace window 
screens. Dust and clean blinds. 

PACIFIC COVE MOBILE HOME RESTROOMSILAUNDRY ROOM 

Twice a week: Tuesday and Friday, if it falls on a holiday then work is to be done the previous 
business day: 

Restrooms: Restroom and Laundry Room: clean and sanitize fixtures, toilets, urinals, showers 
and sinks. Wet mop floors. Clean and fill soap dispensers. Empty trash receptacles. Replace 
paper stock as needed. 

PUBLIC RESTROOMS 

Peak Season: May, June, July, August and September. All w~rk is to be done on Saturday, 
Sunday and Holidays once a day before 8 am except for the Esplanade Restrooms and City 
Hall I st floor restrooms which is twice a day. (See Below). 

Low Season: January, February, March, April, October, November and December. All work is 
to be done on Saturday, Sunday and Holidays, once a day by 8 am. 

Esplanade Restrooms and City Hall I st floor restrooms. Open the bathrooms to the public. 
Clean and sanitize fixtures, toilets, urinals, and sinks. Wet mop floors. Clean and fill soap 
dispensers. Empty trash receptacles. Replace paper stock as needed. During Peak Season 2 
cleanings, once before 8 am and an afternoon cleaning between I pm and 2pm on 
Saturdays, Sundays, and Holidays. 

Wharf and Wharf Restrooms: Open the bathrooms to the public. Clean and sanitize fixtures, 
toilets, urinals, and sinks. Wet mop floors. Clean and fill soap dispensers. Empty trash and 

82



cigarette receptacles on the Wharf (6) and the restrooms (2). Replace paper stock as needed. 
Clean portable bathrooms during the summer season (2). 

Jade Street Restroom: Open to bathrooms to the public. Clean and sanitize fixtures, toilets, 
urinals and sinks. Sweep floors and wet mop floors, clean and fill soap dispensers. Empty trash 
receptacles around playground area (7) along the front walk (3) and the restrooms (1). Replace 
paper stock as needed 

Peery Park Restroom: Open to bathrooms to the public. Clean and sanitize fixtures, toilets, 
urinals and sinks. Sweep and wet mop floors, clean and fill soap dispensers. Replace paper 
stock as needed 

VILLAGE' 

Saturday, Sunday and Holidays, once a day before 8 am: 
Pick up debris only from curb and gutter, sweep sidewalk from Zelda's deck to and including 
Esplanade Park. 

Sundays only: Empty all public trash, recycling, and cigarette receptacles along the Esplanade, 
San J ose Ave, Capitola Ave, Stockton Ave, and Monterey Ave (45 containers) 

**OPTIONAL BID ITEMS: 
The following items are optional. The City reserves the right to determine if it will utilize these 
optional items at any time during the term of the contract. 

PUBLIC RESTROOMS: 
Esplanade Restrooms: 7 days a week. During peaks season, twice a day and during 

low season once a day. Open to the public. Clean and sanitize fixtures, toilets, urinals, and 
sinks. Wet mop floors. Clean and fill soap dispensers. Empty trash receptacles. Replace paper 
stock as needed. 

Wharf and Wharf Restrooms: 7 days a week. Open the bathrooms to the public. Clean 
and sanitize fixtures, toilets, urinals,'and sinks. Wet mop floors. Clean and fill soap dispensers. 
Empty trash and cigarette receptacles on the Wharf (6) and the restrooms (2). Replace paper 
stock as needed. Clean portable bathrooms during the summer season (2). 

Jade Street Restroom: 7 days a week. Open to bathrooms to the public. Clean and 
sanitize fixtures, toilets, urinals and sinks. Sweep and wet mop floors, clean and fill soap 
dispensers. Empty trash receptacles around playground area (7) along the front walk (3) and the 
restrooms (1). Replace paper stock as needed 

Peery Park Restroom: 7 days a week. Open to bathrooms to the public. Clean and 
sanitize fixtures, toilets, urinals and sinks. Sweep and wet mop floors, clean and fill soap 
dispensers. Replace paper stock as needed 

83



GENERAL PROVISIONS 

All trash collected in the Village, Esplanade Park and Wharf shall be disposed of at the City's 
Corporation Yard located at 430 Kennedy Drive. No trash shall collected by the Contractor shall 
be disposed of in the Esplanade dumpsters. 

Recycle materials collected. in the Village shall be disposed of in the recycle bin located at the 
City Hall complex at 420 Capitola Avenue. 

Trash and recycling materials from City Hall (all areas) shall be disposed of in the recycling and 
trash dumpsters at 420 Capitola Avenue. The contractor shall not place trash or recycle material 
outside the dumpsters supplied. 

The contract price for the listed facility shall include full compensation for all labor, materials, 
tools, equipment and incidentals involved in the performance of the work to the satisfaction of 
the City, in accordance with these special provisions. 

For the purposes of this contract the designated City Holidays are as follows: 

New Years Day 
Martin Luther King Day 
Lincoln's Birthday 
Washington's Birthday 
Memorial Day 
Independence Day 
Labor Day 
Columbus Day 
Veterans Day 
Thanksgiving Day and following Friday 
Christmas Day 

The actual days of closure for the City may vary for some holidays if they fall on a Saturday or 
Sunday. The contractor shall be responsible for verifying with City staff the actual Holiday days 
they are responsible for covering janitorial services under this contract. 

B. INCREASED OR DECREASED QUANTITIES. (To be undertaken by Contractor if 
and when notified by the City pursuant to Section B below) 

The City of Capitola reserves the right to eliminate any or all of the contract items at its 
discretion. 

The City also reserves the right to adjust the quantity of any bid item by up to 35%, with 
payment for the final quantity of work at the contract unit price bid therefore. No adjustment 
will be made in the contract unity price. 

Should the total pay quantity of any time of work required under this contract be less than 65% 
of the Engineers Estimate, an adjustment in compensation pursuant to this section will not be 
made unless the Contractor requests so in writing. Such adjustments of the contract unit price 
will be the difference between the contract unit price and the actual unit cost, including fixed 
costs as determined by the City and agreed to by the Contractor. The payment for the total pay 

84



quantity of such item of work will in no case exceed the payment which would be made for the 
performance of 65% ofthe Engineer's Estimate ofthe quantity for such item at the original 
contract unity price. 

Should any contract item of the work be eliminated in its entirety, in the absence of an executed 
contract change order covering such elimination, payment will be made to the Contractor for 
actual costs incurred in connection with such eliminated contract item if incurred prior to the 
date of notification in writing by the City of such elimination. In no case will additional 
compensation be made if the City notifies contractor of items to be eliminated prior to execution 
of the contract. 

85



Professional Services Agreement July 1,2012 
Janitorial Services 
Clean Building Maintenance 
Page 8 

APPENDIX TWO 
Fees and Payments 

For the services preformed, City will pay consultant on a time-charge plus expense basis, 
monthly as charges accrue, the sum of consultant's salary expenses and non-salary expenses. 

Salary expenses include the actual direct pay of personnel assigned to the project (except for 
routine secretarial and account services) plus payroll taxes, insurance, sick leave, holidays, vacation, 
and other fringe benefits. The percentage of compensation attributable to salary expenses includes 
all of Consultant's indirect overhead costs and fees. For purposes of this Agreement, Consultant's 
salary expenses and non-salary expenses will be compensated at the rates set forth in the fee 
schedule attached to this appendix and in accordance with the terms set forth therein. Non-salary 
expenses include travel, meals and lodging while traveling, materials other than normal office 
supplies, reproduction and printing costs, equipment rental, computer services, service of 
subconsultants or subcontractors, and other identifiable job expenses. The use of Consultant's 
vehicles for travel shall be paid at the current Internal Revenue Service published mileage rate. 

Salary payment for personnel time will be made at the rates set forth in the attached fee 
schedule for all time charged to the project. Normal payroll rates are for 40 hours per week. 
Consultant shall not charge the City for personnel overtime salary at rates higher than those set forth 
in the attached fee schedule without the City's prior written authorization. 

In no event shall the total fee charged for the scope of work set forth in Appendix One exceed 
the total budget of $47,783.50, without specific, written advance authorization from the City. 

Payments shall be made monthly by the City, based on itemized invoices from the ConSUltant 
which list actual costs and expenses. Such payments shall be for the invoice amount. The monthly 
statements shall contain the following affidavit Signed by a principal of the Consultant's firm: 

"I hereby certify as principal of the firm of , that the charge of $ as 
summarized above and shown in detail on the attachments is fair and reasonable, is in accordance with 
the terms of the Agreement dated _, _, and has not been previously paid." 

R\Contracts Adm\Current Contract Forms\City Contract Form_Revised 6-16-11.docx 

86



             Item #:  8.J 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 

MEETING OF JUNE 14, 2012 
 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR  
 
SUBJECT:     PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION MINUTES OF JUNE 7, 2012 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioners: Ed Newman, Gayle Ortiz, Mick Routh, and 
Chairperson Ron Graves (7:09 p.m.) 

Absent:  Linda Smith 
Staff:   Interim Community Development Director Susan Westman 
   Senior Planner Ryan Bane 
   Minute Clerk Danielle Uharriet 
   

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda - NONE 
 

B. Public Comments - NONE 
 

C. Commission Comments - NONE 
 

D. Staff Comments - NONE 
 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. May 3, 2012 Regular Planning Commission Meeting 
 
APPROVED 3-0 
 
4. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

A. 1565 LINCOLN AVENUE #12-040 APN: 034-041-12 

Design Permit to convert a duplex to a single-family residence and construct a second floor 
addition in the R-1 (Single-Family Residence) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner:  John Gianopoulos, filed 3/20/12 

 
APPROVED 4-0 
 
 
 
 

87



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION MINUTES – JUNE 7, 2012                                                                     
 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 

A. 1100 41st AVENUE #12-057 APN: 034-101-21 

Design Permit to construct a pergola structure and a Sign Permit to construct a new 
monument sign for an existing health club (In-Shape) in the CC (Community Commercial) 
Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner:  1100 41st Avenue LLC, filed:  4/10/12 
Representative:   In-Shape Health Clubs 

 
APPROVED 4-0 
 

B. 1200 41st AVENUE #12-058 APN: 034-101-38 

Design Permit to establish a new storefront entrance and a Sign Permit for two wall signs for 
an existing health club (In-Shape) in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner:  Begonia Plaza LLC, filed:  4/10/12 
Representative:   In-Shape Health Clubs 

 
APPROVED 4-0 
 

C. AMEND SIGN ORDINANCE 17.57 #12-017 

The Planning Commission shall consider an amendment of the Capitola Municipal Code 
Section 17.57 to allow sidewalk signs (sandwich board/A-frame signs/pole signs) in the 
Central Village Zone Districts subject to a city permit.  The proposed amendment will be for a 
one year trial period.    

 
RECOMMENDED TO THE CITY COUNCIL THAT THIS ORDINANCE WAIT UNTIL THERE IS A 
COMPREHENSIVE REVIEW OF THE CITY'S SIGN ORDINANCE NEXT YEAR. 
3-1, COMMISSIONER ROUTH DISSENTING. 
 
6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
 
7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 
 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The Planning Commission adjourned the meeting at 8:40 p.m. to a Regular Meeting of the Planning 
Commission to be held on Thursday, June 7, 2012 at 7:00 p.m., in the City Hall Council Chambers, 
420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 
 

88



FROM: FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JUNE 14,2012 

Item #: 8.K. 

SUBJECT: IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PROVISIONS OF INTERNAL REVENUE CODE SECTION 
(lRC) 414(h)(2) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the City Council adopt the attached resolution implementing the provisions of 
IRC code Section 414 (h)(2) to allow negotiated employee-paid retirement costs for the City's plans to be 
deducted on a pre-tax basis. 

BACKGROUND: In 2007, the City negotiated a cap on the amount the City would contribute towards 
employee retirement costs. The City's contribution to the 2.5% at 55 Miscellaneous Plan is capped at 16.488% 
and the City's contribution to the Police's 3% at 50 Plan is capped at 28.291 %

• This cap is reflected in all 
memoranda of understanding (MOU's). 

DISCUSSION: In Fiscal Year 2013, employees in the Miscellaneous Plan will be required to contribute 
8.267% of their paycheck toward PERS costs. Currently, the maximum pre-tax contribution an employee can 
make is 8%>. This resolution will allow the additional 0.267%) contribution to be made on a pre-tax basis, in the 
same manner as the 8%. 

While it is not anticipated that members of the Safety Plan will be required to contribute above the standard 
9% amount in Fiscal Year 2013, the staff is also proposing to implement the provisions of IRC 414 (h)(2) in the 
event retirement rates increase in the future. 

These provisions would be implemented in the first full payperiod of Fiscal Year 2013. 

FISCAL IMPACT: There is no fiscal impact. 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Resolution 

Report Prepared By: Tori Hannah 
Finance Director 

Reviewed and F~/ . a ed 
By City Manager:,\ \ 

\ 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City CounciI\06-14-12\8.K. PERS 414 (H)(2) _Staff Report.doc 89



R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\06-14-12\8.K. PERS 414(H)(2)_Resolution.doc 

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA IMPLEMENTING THE 

PROVISIONS OF SECTION 414 (H)(2) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE TO ALLOW EMPLOYEE 
PAID RETIREMENT COSTS FOR THE MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEES 2.5% AT 55 PLAN AND THE 

PUBLIC SAFETY 3% AT 50 PLAN TO CALPERS TO BE DEDUCTED ON A PRE-TAX BASIS 
WHEREAS, the City of Capitola has the authority to implement the provisions of section 414(h)(2) 

of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC); and 
WHEREAS, the Board of Administration of the Public Employees’ Retirement System adopted its 

resolution regarding section 414(h)(2) IRC on September 18, 1985; and 
WHEREAS, the Internal Revenue Service has stated in December 1985, that the implementation 

of the provisions of section 414(h)(2) IRC pursuant to the Resolution of the Board of Administration 
would satisfy the legal requirements of section 414(h)(2) IRC; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Capitola has determined that even though the implementation of the 
provisions of section 414(h)(2) IRC is not required by law, the ta

x benefit offered by section 414(h)(2) IRC should be provided to its employees who are members 
of the Public Employees’ Retirement System: 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
I. That the City of Capitola will implement the provisions of section 414(h)(2) Internal 
Revenue Code by making employee contributions pursuant to California Government Code 
section 20691 to the Public Employees’ Retirement System on behalf of its employees who are 
members of the Public Employees Retirement System.  “Employee contributions” shall mean 
those contributions to the Public Employees’ Retirement System which are deducted from the 
salary of employees and are credited to individual employee’s accounts pursuant to California 
Government Code section 20691. 
II.  That the contributions made by the City of Capitola to the Public Employees’ Retirement 
System, although designated as employee contributions, are being paid by the City of Capitola in 
lieu of contributions by the employees who are members of the Public Employees’ Retirement 
System. 
III.  That employees shall not have the option of choosing to receive the contributed amounts 
directly instead of having them paid by the City of Capitola to the Public Employees’ Retirement 
System. 
IV.  That the City of Capitola shall pay to the Public Employees’ Retirement System the 
contributions designated as employee contributions from the same source of funds as used in 
paying salary. 
V.  That the amount of the contributions designated as employee contributions and paid by 
the City of Capitola to the Public Employees’ Retirement System on behalf of an employee shall 
be the entire contribution required of the employee by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law 
(California Government Code sections 20000, etseq.). 
VI.  That the contributions designated as employee contributions made by the City of Capitola 
to the Public Employees’ Retirement System shall be treated for all purposes, other than taxation, 
in the same way that member contributions are treated by the Public Employees’ Retirement 
System. 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing resolution was passed and adopted by the 

City Council of the City of Capitola at its regular meeting held on the 14th day of June, 2012, by the 
following vote: 

____________________
Michael Termini, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_______________________, CMC 
Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 

ATTACHMENT 1 

90



FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

Item #:8.L. 

CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JUNE 14, 2012 

CITY MANAGER AND FINANCE DEPARTMENTS 

ADOPTION OF THE 2012/13 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET FOR THE CITY OF 
CAPITOLA GENERAL FUND, THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY, AND THE CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT BUDGETS 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the Resolution adopting the Final 2012/13 Fiscal Year City, 
Successor Agency, and Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Budgets. 

BACKGROUND: 

On May 15th
, the proposed Fiscal Year 2012/2013 Budget was released. The City Council/Successor 

Agency held public budget hearings on both May 23 and May 31,2012, to review the draft budget, take 
public comment, and receive input from the Finance Advisory Committee. At the May 31 st budget 
hearing, City Council directed staff to prepare a resolution to adopt the budget with adjustments to 
revenues in the amount of $765,721 and adjustments to expenditures in the amount of $767,250. 

Details regarding these adjustments, along with internal corrections/adjustments are listed in 
Attachment 2. 

DISCUSSION: 

At the May 31 st hearing, City Council directed staff to adopt the Proposed Budget with the following 
adjustments: 

Internal Service Funds $400,000 

Unallocated Amounts - Proposed Budget 299,721 

Additional Funding Sources 66,000 

Total Additional Sources $765,721 

Transfer to Contingency/Emergency Funds $450,000 

Community Grants 250,000 

CIP 22,500 

Chamber 22,500 

Santa Cruz County Visitor's ~ouncil 17,250 

Begonia Festival 5,000 

Total Uses 767,250 

Net Differences - Fund Balance ($1,529) 

R\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\06-14-12\8.L. City Budget Adoption FY12-13_Staff Report.doc 

91



JUNE 14,2012: 2012/13 FY BUDGET FOR THE GENERAL FUND, SUCCESSOR AGENCY PAGE 2 

During the May 31 st Special Session, Council also established a subcommittee to make recommendations 
regarding the allocation of Community Grant funding. The overall allocation will be listed in the Adopted 
Budget as a single line item. A separate staff report will be presented on June 28th to identify the 
Community Grant recipients; and possibly incorporate into the published budget document. 

The resolution necessary to adopt the FY2012/13 Budget, detailed adjustments/corrections, and estimated 
fund balances are presented in the attachments. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
The fiscal impact by adopting the city budget is represented in the attached General Fund Overview and 
Summary by Fund. The Fiscal Year 2012-2013 Adopted Budget represents a balanced General Fund 
budget, with a net additional appropriation of $9,007 coming from the projected General Fund balance. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution 

Report Prepared By: Tori Hannah 
Finance Director 

Reviewed and F0Y;.. ed 
~y City Manager: 

'. 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\06-14-12\8.L. City Budget Adoption FY1.2-13_Staff Report.doc 92



ATTACHMENT 1 

RESOLUTION NO. __ 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
ADOPTING THE 2012/13 FISCAL YEAR CITY BUDGET 

AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP) BUDGET 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to adopt the 2012/13 fiscal year budget for all City funds and 
Capital Improvement Program; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has conducted 
considered public comments, and has modified the 
adopt such budget for the fiscal year July 1, 2012 th 

sessions, has heard and 
accordingly, and wishes to 

,2013; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HERE 
Capitola that the 2012/13 Fiscal Year Bu 
(Changes to Proposed Exhibit 
Fund) to this resolution, 

the City's accounting 
Manager, with the Fina 

the City Council of the City of 
amended, including Exhibit A 
, and Exhibit C (Summary by 

is directed to enter the budget into 
propriate accounting practices, and the City 

, shall assure compliance therewith. 

I HEREBY 
Council of the City of 

foregoing resolution was passed and adopted by the City 
special meeting held on the 14th day of June, 2012, by the 

following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

________ ----------~-----,MMC 
Susan Snedden, City Clerk 

Michael Termini, Mayor 

93



Changes to Proposed Budget EXHIBIT A 

Police Department Overtime 1000-20-20-000-4130.040 (20,000) 

Total FY 11/ 1:2 Adjustments (20,OOO) 

*Net difference includes $20,000 in FYll/12 Savings that City Council approved to be re-appropriated in FY12/13 

F¥~"~k+JtQorr~~tjoflSYJ;\~ljlS;tro~~iitSl!~t;~~c,·k,';" .. : cc:~~:~ ~~~'"'::tt~'~Apcf#l_~,~.;,i~l ~~~m~~i(ftk~~jc, .. 
Expenses 
Police Services SPCA Donation 1000-20-23-000-4325.204 (3,000) 

- Police Svcs Animal Services 1000~20-23-000-4325. 201 
OPEB/Retirement Health not budgeted in 13/14 1000-10-12-000-4215.000 
DUI Cost Recovery 1000-20-20-000-4335.403 1,700 

94



EXHIBIT B 
General Fund Overview 

FY11/12 FY11/12 FY12/13 FY13/14 
.Major Categories Adopted Estimated Proposed Planned 

Revenue 
Taxes $ 8,371,200 $ 8,295,025 $ 8,816,600 $ 8,992,500 
Licenses and permits 229,500 245,200 186,700 231,700 
Intergovernmental revenues 252,700 536,054 176,000 110,000 
Charges for services 2,276,400 2,460,600 2,068,200 2,075,500 
Fines and forfeitures 814,000 704,000 707,000 707,000 
Use of money & property 330,300 279,800 12,600 12,600 
Other revenues 59,500 101,500 84,400 79,400 
Other financing sources 25,000 248,500 85,000 
Revenue Totals $ 12,358,600 $ 12,870,679 $ 12,136,500 $ 12,208,700 

Expenditures 
Personnel $ 7,741,400 $ 7,534,745 $ 7,477,200 $ 7,508,500 
Contract services 2,264,950 2,526,100 2,526,678 2,430,000 
Training & Memberships 34,650 32,832 51,050 47,650 
Supplies 473,600 540,754 540,500 526,400 
Grants and Subsidies 137,500· 275,000 250,000 
Capital outlay 
Internal service fund charges 846,700 846,700 940,373 931,173 
Other financing uses $ 832,500 $ 832,500 $ 379,706 $ 465,606 
Expenditure Totals $ 12,331,300 $ 12,588,631 $ 12,165,507 $ 11,909,329 

Council Discretionary $ 299,371 

I Impact on Fund Balance $ 27,300 $ 282,048 $ (29,0071 $ -I 
Budgetary Fund Balance $ (192,614} $ 89,434 . $. 60,427 $ 60,427 

95



EXHIBIT C 

Summary By Fund 

Estimated 
Estimated Balance Adopted Adopted Balance 

Fund Title 07/01/2012 Revenues Expenses 06/30/2013 

General Fund 89,434 $ 12,136,500 $ 12,165,507 $ 60,427 

Designated Reserves 
Contingency Reserve 404,896 $ 316,750 $ $ 721,646 
Emergency Reserve (46,955) $ 133,250 $ $ 86,295 
Compensated Absence Fund 51,738 $ 94,000 $ 74,000 $ 71,738 

Debt Service 
Pension Obligation Bond $ 673,300 $ 674,800 $ (1,500) 
Pacific Cove Bond $ 181,211 $ 466,371 $ (285,160) 

Capital Improvement Fund 
Capital Improvement Fund 208,200 $ 22,500 $ 22,500 $ 208,200 

$ 
Internal Service Funds $ 
Stores Fund 12,939 $ 34,450 $ 36,850 $ 10,539 
Information Technology 172,278 $ 144,400 $ 288,800 $ 27,878 
Equipment Replacement 357,933 $ 89,973 $ 390,000 $ 57,906 
Self-Insurance Liability 229,075 $ 146,450 $ 146,450 $ 229,075 
Workers Compensation 162,479 $ 528,100 $ 528,000 $ 162,579 
PERS 171,431 $ $ 171,431 $ 

Special Revenue Funds 
SLESF - Supplemental Law Enforce 4,911 4,911 
SCCACT - SCC ANTI CRIME TEAM 21 74,100 72,200 1,921 
Gas Tax Fund 153 271,500 267,100 4,553 
Wharf Fund 64 83,700 83,700 64 
Development Fees Fund 2,026 2,026 
General Plan Update and Maint 244,426 166,000 242,100 168,326 
Green Building Education Fund 88,644 10,000 35,500 63,144 
Public Arts Fee Fund 142,948 15,000 26,700 131,248 
Parking Reserve Fund 719 84,800 84,800 719 
Technology Fee Fund 22,388 5,900 5,000 23,288 
PEG - Public Education and Gover . 43,236 20,100 24,500 38,836 
BIA - Capitola Village-Wharf BIA 4,155 70,300 71,600 2,855 
CDBG Grants (23,569) 143,200 174,389 (54,758) 
CDBG Programs (17,745) 2,500 (20,245) 
CDBG Prog Inc 07-08 RLF (CLOSED) (6) (6) 
HOME Reuse Funds (1,899) 12,200 10,000 301 
HOME Grant Fund 5,230 15,000 (9,770) 
Housing Trust Fund 176,532 5,500 55,000 127,032 
BEGIN Grant Fund 59,977 60,000 (23) 

ITotal Special Revenue Funds $ 752,211 $ 962,300 $ 1,230,089 $ 484,422 

Redevelopment/Successor Agency 
RDAlSuccessor Agency 1,829,993 1,092,024 2,292,024 $ 629,993 
Low Mod Housing I Housing Successor (137,964) 14,500 $ (152,464) 
RedevelopmenVSuccessor Agency $. 1,692,029 $ 1,092,024 $ 2,306,524 $ 477,529 

96



Item #: 8.M. 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JUNE 14, 2012 

FROM: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: APPOINTMENT OF FRANK PHANTON TO THE ARCHITECTURAL AND SITE 
REVIEW COMMITTEE 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive the Mayor's appointment of Frank Phanton to serve in the 
capacity as the alternate architect on the City's Architectural and Site Review Committee 

BACKGROUND: An alternate architect is required when the appointed architect on the 
Architectural and Site Review Committee is recused from making a determination regarding a 
planning application due to a conflict of interest. 

DISCUSSION: The Architectural and Site Review Committee is made up of professionals and 
staff which review development applications and make design recommendations to the Planning 
Commission. Section 17.63 of the Zoning Ordinance establishes the Committee members and the 
appointment process. The members of the Committee include an architect, landscape architect, 
building official, community development director or designated planning staff, public works 
director, and historian. There is no requirement for these professionals to live within the City of 
Capitola. 

The ordinance states "The mayor, at his or her discretion, may appoint an alternate architect, 
alternate historian, and alternate landscape architect member to serve in the absence of the 
regular architect, historian or landscape architect. A majority of the City Council may remove the 
alternate architect, alternate historian or alternate landscape architect. The terms of the alternate 
architect, alternate historian and alternate landscape architect will expire at the same time as the 
terms of the regular architect, historian and landscape architect." 

Mayor Termini's selection for the alternate architect position is Frank Phanton. Frank Phanton has 
served the City of Capitola as the architect on the Architectural and Site Review Committee 
previously for many years. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

ATTACHMENT: None 

Report Prepared By: Susan Westman 
Interim Community Development Director 

Reviewed and F~r ed 
By City Manage 

R\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\06-14-12\8.M. Mayors Arch & Site Alternate Architect App n nt 
stf.docx 97



FROM: CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

Item #: S.N. 

MEETING OF JUNE 14, 2012 

SUBJECT: COMMISSION ON THE ENVIRONMENT RECRUITMENT FOR YOUTH MEMBER 
SEAT VACANCY 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve request to proceed with recruitment for the vacancy of the 
unexpired term ending December 2012. 

DISCUSSION: Youth Member Kate Sylan has relocated to another state. Communications by phone, 
email and letter to request a resignation letter have failed. By approving the staff recommendation, City 
Council will be declaring the position vacant and staff will begin a recruitment process for a 
replacement. 

FISCAL IMPACT - None 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Vacancy Notice 

Report Prepared By: Susan Westman 
Interim Community Development Director 

Reviewed and Fnryed 
By City Manage '\Jl9 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\06-14-12\8.N. COE Youth Member Recruitment 
2012_stf.doc 

98



ATTACHMENT 1 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 

(831) 475-7300 
FAX (831) 464-8659 

APPLICATIONS FOR APPOINTMENT 
OF A "YOUTH MEMBER" TO THE: 

Capitola Commission on the Environment 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, pursuant to Government Code Section 54974, 
recruitment has commenced to fill one (1) "Youth Member" vacancy on the Capitola 
Commission on the Environment. Appointment is to fill an unexpired term ending 
December 2012. 

The Capitola City Council is seeking applications from Capitola residents who 
are high school and/or college students with an interest in protection and enhancement 
of the City's environmental influences; i.e., Soquel Creek, the ocean and Capitola 
Beach, and associated riparian and special habitat areas. Regular meetings of the 
commission are held on the fourth Tuesday of every other month at 6:00 p.m. in the 
Community Room at Capitola City Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue. 

Pursuant to Resolution No. 3610, the Youth Member is to be recommended by 
the Commission on the Environment members and appointed by the City Council. 
The commission will interview applicants at its next regular meeting on July 24, 2012, 
and will forward its recommendation to the Mayor and City Council for appointment. It 
is anticipated that this appointment will be made at a regular meeting of the City Council 
to be held on Thursday, August 9,2012. Specific questions regarding the Commission 
on the Environment can be directed to the Interim Community Development Director, 
Susan Westman by calling (831) 475-7300, ext. 216, or by email at 
swestman@ci.capitola.ca.us. 

Application Deadline: Wednesday, July 18, 2012 

Applications may be obtained from the Receptionist at Capitola City Hall, 420 
Capitola Avenue, Capitola, CA 95010, or by calling (831) 475-7300 and requesting an 
application be sent to you. In addition, applications are available at the Capitola Branch 
Library, 2005 Wharf Road, and on the City's Website (for printing) by clicking on 
current vacancies at http://www.ci.capitola.ca.us/capcitv.nsf/CtvCncIComm.html · 

I, Michele Deiter, Records Coordinator of the City of Capitola, California, hereby 
certify that the above Notice of Vacancy was posted in accordance with Section 54974 
of the Government Code on June 18, 2012. 

Dated: June 18,2012 Michele Deiter 
Records Coordinator 

99



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

Item #: 9.A. 

MEETING OF JUNE 14, 2012 

FROM: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: 220 Oakland Avenue - Project Application # 12-034, -44 
Appeal of a Planning Commission decision to approve a Fence Permit and a Major 
Revocable Encroachment Permit to construct a wall within the City right-of-way as 
part of a single-family residential use in the R-1 (Single-Family Residence) Zoning 
District [APN 036-124-20]. Filed 3/29/12. Property Owner: Christann A. Bohnet. 
Representative: John Draga. 

RECOMMENED ACTION: That the City Council overturn the Planning Commission approval and 
deny application #12-034 and #12-044. 

BACKGROUND: On April 19, 2012, the Planning Commission considered an application for a 
fence permit and Major Revocable Encroachment Permit to construct two portions of wall structure 
within the city right-of-way at 220 Oakland Avenue in the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning 
District. 

The Commission approved the application on a 3-0 vote, adding the following conditions to 
address the design of the wall: 

1. The detail material for the wall shall be changed from brick to stonework similar to the 
residence. 

2. A vine material shall be planted and incorporated to cover the stucco portions of the wall. 

3. The applicant shall submit a letter from an architectural historian determining that the wall is 
consistent with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards and Guidelines prior to building permit 
issuance. 

It should be noted that staff did not recommend approval of the project. The lack of support was 
not based on the design of the fence, but due to the fact that the city has traditionally discouraged 
these types of permanent structures in the city right-of-way. City policy has generally allowed 
property owners to landscape in the city-owned areas between the roadway and property lines, but 
has discouraged tall structures that enclose front yards and "wall off" properties from the street. 
Any change in policy direction should come from the City Council. 

Councilmember Harlan appealed the project on April 27, 2012, stating that she would like the City 
Council to consider the historical compatibility of the proposed fence, including the style and type 
of materials to be used. The appeal letter, Planning Commission report and corresponding 
minutes from the hearing are attached as Attachments 1 through 3. In addition, the applicant has 
revised the fence plans to address the concerns of the Planning Commission and to bring the 
fence into compliance with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards and Guidelines. The revised 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\06-14-12\9.A Oakland Ave 220 Fence Permit Appeal.docx 

100



6-14-12 AGENDA REPORT: 220 OAKLAND AVENUE PROJECT #12-034, -44 PAGE 2 

plans are included as Attachment 4. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The applicant is proposing two sections of fence, both located within 
the city right-of-way: 

1. Escalona Section - This section has a total length of 22'. The 5'-8" high portion paralleling 
Escalona extends 17', and is setback 1'-6" from the edge of roadway. The remaining 5' 
portion angles toward the main structure and drops in height from 5'-8" to 3'-6". 

2. Oakland Avenue Section - This section has an approximate length of 37' along the 
Oakland Avenue frontage. The majority of the length of the wall stands at a height of 3'-6", 
but rises to 5' columns on either side of the main entrance gate. 

The original set of plans considered by the Planning Commission proposed two sections of wall to 
look like an old style stacked concrete/stucco wall. The wall was purposely designed to look aged, 
with sections that crumbled revealing stacked bricks/stone. With the former church property 
considered a significant local historic resource, it was questioned if the faux old style wall would be 
consistent with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards and Guidelines for Rehabilitation of 

. Historic Properties. Standard #3 of the guidelines states, "Each property will be recognized as a 
physical record of its time, place, and use. Changes that create a false sense of historical 
development, such as adding conjectural features or elements from other historic properties, will 
not be undertaken." Based on the old style design, the crumbled wall could be creating a false 
sense of historic development, and not be consistent with the historic standards. 

The revised set of plans (Attachment 4) keeps the same configuration, but the fence has been 
redesigned to make it more compatible with the historic church structure. The design incorporates 
18"x18" square stacked stone columns, with stained redwood fence panels connecting each of the 
posts. Vines are also proposed to be planted and grow on the fence. The new design has been 
reviewed by City Historian Carolyn Swift, and she has found the new fence design to be, consistent 
with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards and Guidelines for Rehabilitation of Historic 
Properties (Attachment 5). She states that the fence does impact the historic setting, but is visually 
compatible in terms of size, scale, design, materials, and color. She also mentions that the design 
does not imitate a historic period or style that could convey a false sense of history. 

Chapter 17.54 of the Zoning Ordinance regulates fences and the issuance of fence permits. Per 
Section 17.54.020: 

A. The planning department shall issue fence permits, upon application from the 
property owner, in the following instances: 

1. Between that portion of any private property in front of the setback line 
established by the zoning ordinance or other ordinances of the city, and that portion . 
in front of the front line of any residence or other principal building now erected on 
any private property, to a maximum height of three feet six inches; 

2. On that part of the property back of the front line of any building or capital 
building now on the premises, to a maximum height of eight feet; provided, that the 
top two feet of the fence be made of lattice or other open material; 

3. On corner lots, the fence shall be set back at least five feet from the property 
line on that side of the lot which has the greatest length along the street. 

. R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\06-14-1J2\9.A Oakland Ave 220 Fence Permit Appeal.docx 

101



6-14-12 AGENDA REPORT: 220 OAKLAND AVENUE PROJECT #12-034, -44 PAGE 2 

B. Alternative locations, height, and material for fences shall be approved by the 
planning commission. 

While the Oakland Avenue section meets the general height requirements for approval by the 
planning department, the Escalona portion does not. Therefore, pursuant to Section 17.54.020(B), 
an application has been submitted for an alternative location and height to be approved. 

DISCUSSION: Based on the height and proximity to the street, staff cannot support the Escalona 
section of the fence. The city has traditionally discouraged these types of permanent structures in 
the city right-of-way. City policy has generally allowed property owners to landscape in the city
owned areas between the roadway and property lines, but has discouraged tall structures that 
enclose front yards and "wall off' properties from the street. Approval of such a fence would set a 
precedent for similar type fences in the Depot Hill area. Staff recommends that the City Council 
deny project application #12-034 and 12-044. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Appeal letter from Councilmember Harlan, dated April 25, 2012 
2. April 19, 2012 Planning Commission Staff Report 
3. April 19, 2012 Planning Commission Minutes 
4. Revised plans submitted May 29,2012 
5. Memo from City Historian Carolyn Swift 
6. Petition for support of the project 

Report Prepared By: Ryan Bane 
Senior Planner 

Reviewed and F~ 
By City Manage\j I 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\06-14-1j2\9.A Oakland Ave 220 Fence Permit Appeal.docx 

102



ATTACHMENT 1 

To: Community Development Department 

From: Councilmember Stephanie Harlan 

Date: April 25, 2012 

Subject; Application 10-018 

RECEIVED 

APR 2 7 2012 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 

I would like to appeal the Planning Commission decision to approve the fence at 220 Oakland, 

Application 10-018. I would like the City Council to consider the historical compatibility of the proposed 

fence, including the style and type of materials to be used. 

103



ATTACHMENT 2 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

DATE: APRIL 19, 2012 

SUBJECT: 220 OAKLAND AVENUE #12-034, -044 APN : 036-124-20 
Fence Permit and a Major Revocable Encroachment Permit to construct a wall 
within the city righi-at-way as part of a single-family residential use in the A-t 
(Single-Family Residence) Zoning District . 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Christann A Bohnet, filed 3/29/12 
Representative: John Draga 

APPLICANT'S PROPOSAL 

The applicant is proposing to construct two portions of wall structure within the city right-of-way 
at 220 Oakland Avenue in the R-l (Single-Family Residential) Zoning District. Approval of a 
fence permit and Major Revocable Encroachment Permit is being requested of the Planning 
Commission. 

BACKGROUND 

On May 6, 2010, the Planning Commission approved a Design Permit to convert a former 
church structure (SI. John the Baptist Episcopal Church) into a single~family residence. 
Construction of the project is nearing completion. 

DISCUSSION 

The applicant is proposing two sections of fence , both located within the city right~of·way: 

1. Escalona Section - This section has a total length of 22'. The 6' high portion paralleling 
Escalona extends 17', and is setback 6" from the edge of roadway. The remaining 5' 
portion angles toward the main structure and drops in height from 6' to 3'·6". 

2. Oakland Avenue Section - This section has an approximate length of 37' along the 
Oakland Avenue frontage. The majority 01 the length of the wall stands at a height of 3'· 
6", but rises to 5' columns on either side of the main entrance gate. 

The two sections of wall are proposed to look like an old style stacked concrete/stucco wall. 
The wall wil l purposely be designed to look aged, with sections that are crumbled and revealing 
slacked bricks/stone. Vines are also proposed to be planted and grow on the wall. 

104



f I 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT; 4-19-12220 Oakland Avenue 2 

Chapter 17.54 of the Zoning Ordinance regulates fences and the issuance of fence permi ts. 
Per Section 17.54.020 : 

A. The planning department shall issue fence permits, upon application from the property 
owner, in the following instances: 

1. Between that portion of any private property in front of the setback line established 
by the zoning ordinance or other ordinances of the city , and that portion in front of 
the front line of any residence or other principal building now erected on any private 
property, to a maximum height of three feet six inches; 

2. On that part of the property back of the front line of any building or capital building 
. now on the premises, to a maximum height of eight feet; provided, that the top two 

feet of the fence be made of lattice or other open material ; 

3. On corner lots, the fence shall be set back at least five feet from the property line on 
that side of the lot which has the greatest length along the street. 

8 . Alternative locations, height, and material for fences shall be approved by the planning 
commission. 

While the Oakland Avenue section meets the general height requirements for approval by the 
planning department, the Escalona portion clearly does not. Therefore, per Section 
17.54.020(8) , an application has been submitted for an alternative location and height to be 
approved by the Planning Commission. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the height and proximity to the street , staff cannot support the Escalona section of the 
wall. Approval of such a wall would set a precedent lor similar type fences in the Depot Hill 
area, which generally has open landscaping between the roadway and residential structures. 

In addition, the former church property is considered a significant local historic resource due to 
the architecture and association with the community development of Capitola. Staff questions if 
the faux old style wall is consistent with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards and Guidelines 
for Rehabilitation of Historic Properties. Standard #3 states, wEach property will be recognized 
as a physical record of its time, place, and use. Changes that create a false sense 01 historical 
development, such as adding conjectural features or elements from other historic properties, will 
not be undertaken: Based on the old style design, the wall could be creating a false sense of 
historic development, and not be consistent with the historic standards. Staff recommends that 
the Planning Commission deny project application #12-034 and 12-044. 

Report Prepared By: Ryan Bane 
Senior Planner 

Attachment A - Letter from the applicant 
Attachment B - Project Plans 

P:lPlanning Commission\2Ql 2 Meeling Packets\4· 19· 121Word Oocs\Oakland Ave 220 Fence Penni t 4·19·1 2 PC.docx 

105



I would like to open by saying that this project requires special consideration 
because of its unusual nature. I am not sure that we would be following a 
precedent set by another project nor do I believe that we would be setting a new 
precedent. I think that this situation is one of a kind. 

This is a unique building and because of it's historical value to the community 
(being listed in the inventory of historical buildings), we feel compelled to honor 
and showcase the architecture and preserve the essence of the publicness that 
was this site for more than a century. 

This being said, now the usage is changing to become a private residence and we 
are realizing that the challenges extend beyond just the usage of the space within 
the structure. 

We spent a lot of time grappling with how to create a private yard, or at least a 
private section of the yard, while not obstructing the beauty of the architecture as 
seen from the street. 
We went through several design iterations and have arrived at what we are 
presenting to you today. We believe that this solution considers the original 
building and how it relates to the neighborhood while accommodating the new use 
as a private residence. 

Though the original landscape design worked well on paper, it became apparent, 
as the work on the building progressed and we gained a better sense of how the 
space would be used, that we needed to revisit the area surrounding the building. 
This Is especially true of the side door area. 

This side door area is a particular challenge for a number of reasons. 

1. There is the historical element, 
2. the intended purpose for the original structure, 
3 . the scale of the building with relationship to the area surrounding it, 
4. the way the building is sited on the lot, and, 
5. the current intended use and how to bridge all of these in a tasteful manner 
while keeping the safety and visual compatibility to surrounding neighborhood 
buildings in mind. 

1. The building on the corner of Escalona and Oakland was the one of the original 
buildings in Capitola and probably the second on Depot Hill. It was built in 1897 
and is truly a landmark to the town. We are attempting to showcase this piece of 
Capitola's history by creating a privacy barrier in the fashion of a crumbling partial 
wall. 

2. The original usage allowed for a very open and public passage from the street to 
and from the building. There was little need for any privacy. It was a public 
building. I would like to create the illusion of a cloistered garden area outside the 

106



0 . 
. 
~
 

w
 " 

~
 

:>
 

w
 
~
 ., 

~
 

., 
" '" 
w

 
~
 

\ 
a: 

I L 
~
 

-

107



'! 

\
:! 

h '-
0

 

A
 1 

.. ! 
:' 

, 

.~ 
.' 

. 'l 
. ' ". 

0
' 

• 

I;:'~ 

h 
, . ~
,
 
~
 

0 
0 
• <
 
~
r
 

" 
" 

r 
• 

.. 
• 

i , I , 

• 

-""" '," " /; 

108



--
( 

"
, 

., ,! ~
'
 

f: 

/ 

• 

I 

1 
ul. 

" 
I 

'" '" 
1 

~
 

~
~~
 

~ '" dt -' 
, 

" 

109



• 

·IJ 
:C .. 
~
 

'~ 

~ 
--

....-
-
----:.,.'

-

110



ATTACHMENT 3 
CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES - APRIL 19, 2012 5 

would not constitute a grant of special privi lege inconsistent with the limitations upon other 
properties in the vicinity. 

D. This project is categor ically exempt under Section 15303(a) of the California Environmental 
Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the California Code of 
Regulations. 

This project involves construction of two new single-family residences in the R·1 (single family 
residence) Zoning District. Section 15303 of the CEQA Guidelines exempts the construction of up 
to three single-family residences in an urbanized area. 

THE MOTION CARRIED ON THE FOLLOWING VOTE: AYES: COMMISSIONERS ORTIZ, 
SMITH AND CHAIRPERSON GRAVES. NOES: NONE. ABSENT: COMMISSIONER ROUTH. 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONER NEWMAN. 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER ORTIZ AND SECONDED BY CHAIRPERSON 
GRAVES TO DENY PROJECT APPLICATION #12·019 (APN: 036·141·20). 

Under discussion, Chairperson Graves stated that he could not support the variance, and as 
proposed the front yard is all parking and no landscaping. 

THE MOTION CARRIED ON THE FOLLOWING VOTE: AYES: COMMISSIONER ORTIZ AND 
CHAIRPERSON GRAVES. NOES: COMMISSIONER SMITH. ABSENT: COMMISSIONER 
ROUTH. ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONER NEWMAN. 

C. 220 OAKLAND AVENUE #12· 034 & 044 APN: 036·124·20 

Fence Permit and a Major Revocable Encroachment Permit to construct a wall within the city 
right-of-way as part of a single-family residential use in the R-1 (Single-Family Residence) 
Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Christann A Bohnet, filed 3/29/12 
Representative: John Draga 

Senior Planner Bane presented the staff report. 

Commissioner Newman recused himse,lf as he has worked for the project applicant in the past. 

Commissioner Smith clarified that the fence design is not a main consideration in this application for 
meeting or tying into the historic standards. She stated that the mission style fence proposed does 
not maintain the historic style as of the residence, and she was concerned. She stated that staff 
could approve the portion of fencing along the Oakland Avenue frontage, but not the fencing along 
the Escalona Avenue.:. frontage. 

Senior Planner Bane stated that the historic standards are a consideration for denial, but not main 
basis for recommending denial. The fencing along Oakland Avenue meets the ordinance 
requirements, but staff has concerns about the fence design. 

Chairperson Graves clarified the location of the proposed fence. 

The public hearing was opened. 

Jerry Clarke, spoke in support of the application. 

P:\Current Plannlng\MINUTES\Plannlng Commlsslon\2012\Final Adopted Minutes\04-19-12 PC Adopted Minutes.doc ADOPTED 513/12 111



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES - APRIL 19, 2012 6 

John Draga, project representative and builder, stated that the Secretary of Interior standards should 
not apply in this case as the requirements call for a design that would create an entirely separate 
design from the historic nature of the residence and site. The fence design took into consideration 
the community aspect of the property, the change of use from a church to a private residence, and 
the need for privacy for the residences. 

Christann Bohnet, property owner, spoke in support of the application. The design was to create an 
outdoor area with privacy, and to provide view of the property to maintain the historic value to the 
community. The wall is higher by the door and will create a buffer from traffic, but the lower wall will 
allow a view of the residence building from the street. The wall design addresses privacy, aesthetics 
and function. 

Commissioner Ortiz inquired if the project architectural historian had been consulted prior to the 
fence application. 

John Draga responded that the architectural historian had reviewed the plans, but was not asked to 
provide any written response. 

Commissioner Smith stated that the church/residence is a more English style design than the 
mission style wall proposed. She suggested a rock wall design to tie more closely with the building 
and site design. 

Stewart Greeninger spoke in support of the application. 

T J Welch spoke in support of the application. 

Lou Bermingham, property owner, spoke in support of the application. 

The public hearing was closed. _ 

Commissioner Ortiz complimented the property owner and contractor for maintaining and creating 
an asset to the community with construction work that is pristine, and has been done with integrity to 
the historic property. The historic standards specify that new construction be different than the 
historic building, but should be an asset to the building. She supported the wall concept to create 
privacy and a buffer from the street, but did not support the wall design. She suggested using 
stonework, similar to the residence and plant material to soften the wa ll afong the street frontage. 
She suggested the applicant return to the Commission with a redesign that the architectural historian 
had reviewed and supported. 

Commissioner Smith concurred with Commissioner Ortiz and suggested a vine plant material to 
cover the wall. 

Chairperson Graves supported the fence concept, but could not support the materials proposed. 
The new construction needs to look different than the historic building and site amenities. He 
supported the use of rockwork similar to the material on the home, and vine material to soften the 
affect of the wall. 

John Draga stated that the design intended to incorporate climbing vines to cover the material of the 
wall. He was amenable to the use of rock instead of brick. He suggested an on-site mock up of the 
wall prior to final installation, but encouraged the Commission to approve the overall concept. 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2012\Final Adopted Mlnutes\04-19-12 PC Adopted Mlnutes.doc ADOPTED 513/12 112



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES - APRIL 19, 2012 7 

Commissioner Ortiz stated the Commission should review the final plan before voting. She 
supported a stone wall that is more consistent with the architecture of the residence, but could not 
support a proposal without seeing the final design. 

Commissioner' Smith supported the overall wall concept and redesigning the wall to incorporate a 
rock material rather than stucco and brick. She did not support bringing the item back to the 
Planning Commission for review. 

Chairperson Graves suggested approving the concept of the wall and the height, but allow ttie final 
design to be reviewed and approved by staff. 

Commissioner Ortiz suggested that the applicant consult the architectural historian to review the 
fina l plan and submit a letter to staff prior to final approval. 

Chairperson Graves proposed a motion to approve the wall in the proposed location, change the 
detail material from brick to stonework similar to the residence, incorporate a vine material to cover 
the stucco wall and submit a letter from the architectural historian prior to final approval by staff. 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY CHAIRPERSON GRAVES AND SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER 
SMITH TO APPROVE PROJECT APPLICATION #12-034 & 044 BASED ON THE FOLLOWING 
CONDITIONS AND FINDINGS: 

CONDITIONS 

1. The project approval consists of the construction of two portions of wall structure within the city 
right~of-way at 220 Oakland Avenue. The approval includes both a fence permit and Major 
Revocable Encroachment Permit. 

2. Any significant modifications to the size or exterior appearance of the structure must be approved 
by the Planning Commission. 

3. Hours of construction shall be Monday to Friday 7:30 a.m. - 9:00 p.m., and Saturday 9:00 a.m. -
4:00 p.m., per city ordinance. 

4. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall contact the Public Works Department to 
complete the encroachment permit process. A revocable encroachment permit will be required to 
be recorded. 

5. The detail material for the wall shall be changed from brick to stonework similar to the residence. 

6. A vine material shall be planted and incorporated.to cover the stucco portions of the wall. 

7. The applicant shall submit a letter from an architectura l historian determining that the wall is 
consistent with the SecretarY of the Interior's Standards and Guidelines prior to building permit 
issuance. 

8. A Building Permit for the construction of the wall shall be obtained from the City of Capitola 
Building Department. 

9. Prior to granting of final occupancy, compliance with all conditions of approval shall be 
demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Zoning Administrator or Community Development Director. 

P:\Current PlannlnglMINUTES\Planning Commission12012\Fina! ~dopled MinUlesI04-19-12 PC Adopted Minutes.doc ADOPTED 513112 113



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES - APRIL 19, 2012 8 

FINDINGS 

A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 
Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 

Both Planning Department Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the project and 
find that the project is consistent with the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. Conditions of 
approval have been included to carry out the objectives of the Zoning Ordinance and General 
Plan. 

B. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15303 of the California 
Environmental Quality .Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

This application involves the construction of a wall not to exceed 6-feet in height. No adverse 
environmental impacts were discovered during review of the project. 

THE MOTION CARRIED ON THE FOLLOWING VOTE: AYES: COMMISSIONERS ORTIZ, 
SMITH AND CHAIRPERSON GRAVES. NOES: NONE. ABSENT: COMMISSIONER ROUTH. 
ABSTAIN : COMMISSIONER NEWMAN. 

D. 216 SAN JOSE AVENUE #12-011 APN: 035-185-15 
Coastal Permit, Design Permit and Tentative Map to construct a three-story two-unit 
residential condo in the CV (Central Village) Zoning District. This project requires a Coastal 
Permit which is not appealable to the California Coastal Commission. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Marte Formica, flied 1/30/12 
Representative: Dennis Norton 

Senior Planner Bane presented the staff report. 

The public hearing was opened. 

Marte Formica, property owner, spoke in support of the application. 

Chuck Oliver, spake in support of the application. 

The public hearing was closed. 

Commissioner Ortiz suggested an amended condition to require irrigation and landscaping to cover 
the stucco wall and lattice. 

Commissioner Newman acknowledged the Commission received a letter from a neighbor with 
concerns about the blank wall on San Jose Avenue, parking for the residence and construction 
parking. He suggested amended conditions that would add requirements in the CC&Rs to keep the 
garages available for parking at all times, and not for storage or living area; and to requiring 
automatic garage doors and openers. He also suggested that the contractors park on-site during 
construction to avoid taking up all the street parking with construction vehicles. 

Commissioner Smith suggested an amended condition requiring construction work be limited to 
Monday through Friday and prohibited on Saturday and Sunday. 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Plannlng Commlsslon\2012\Flnal Adopted Minutes\04-19-12 PC Adopted Minutes.doc ADOPTED 513112 114



A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

 4 

« 
C

 
...J 

W
 
~
 

0 

>
 

=
 

I-
~
 

U
. 

W
 

'" 
« 

(J
 

"" 
u 

W
 

>
-

lJ.. 
« 

0 
a: 

::E
 
~
 

U
 115



• ~>/, 

.I} 
~..,. 

-:p
.' 
~
;
~
 

.; .. ; .. 

, 

-

~
 

~./' 

\.\ 

116



ATTACHMENT 5 

June 5,2012 

Memo to: Ryan Bane, Senior Planner, City of Capitola 

From: Carolyn Swift, Capitola Museum Director 

I have reviewed the revised design for a waH around the historic property at 220 

Oakland Avenue, formerly occupied by St. John the Baptist Episcopal Church, and find 

it to be consistent with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation. 

The wall does impact historic setting but is visually compatible in terms of size, scale, 

design, materials, and color. The drawing plan appears to be harmonious with the 

historic building and obscures from view none of its character-defining features. The 

design does not imitate a historic period or style that could convey a false sense of 

history. 

I was impressed that proposed materials- the stained redwood panels and posts of 

stacked stone- are so well-balanced to the site, yet are dissimilar enough to effectively 

set the ne~ addition apart from the historic structure. 

117



ATTACHMENT 6 

Dear Neighbor, 

I am trying to get some leedback Irom neighbors on my landscape plans lor the 
corner 01 Oakland and Escalona Avenues. 

I am in the process 01 remodeling the church building at 220 Oakland, and 
transforming it into a home. My landscaping idea involves building a partial wall 
that would require the special approval of the planning department. 

It is important to me that the exterior of this historic building be presented to the 
public in a way that is pleasing to the eye. At the same time the new usage as a 
home dictates a new need for some privacy for the new occupants. 

I am attaching copies 01 renderings 01 the proposed solution for your consideration. 

If you find this plan acceptable, I would be very pleased if you might add your 
signature and address the the group letter in support 01 my plan. 

If not, I am also interested in other constructive ideas. 

Yours respectfully, 
Christy Bohnet 

220oakland@gmail.com 

4/1~/1"
~ye" 'iP 

I"!'t.P...Nlu.1 N~ coMlVI/'SY{t;::W ~G., 

118



I am a neighbor on Depot Hill where the old church is being renovated at 220 . 
Oakland Avenue. I looked at the renderings for the proposed landscape design 
and agree that building a privacy wall in this style would be a nice improvement to 
the corner of Oakland and Escalona. 

1. 02Y1L.!~k1,,~----,-L\-:b\QDi,f~sc.OQ)bm~J>~:t~. --.r;,t~:ID~\ --Jt~~ 
2. 6 -lJoc,\....... -::r:v<o..S C;ot) ~su,.t"",-" ~. c..."f\k l", 
3 . t/kk%f ti. ~ 5 D") es Cf-f-th>,l\ ]:> Ie C kj''; HJe... Ii-

4. U'1"V) (Yl~kG'~s -e Sctb E:&QNlo"""~t. G"t'f'hL"" ~~ 
5 . ~t«-yD&..L,. Sf'! ~~a.. (/}"'. (}¥. r/II). 
6. '[...H :?Lt - \"vt.., "'= 60'2.... &t£d>.Jh,., It - ~-l 
7. . U ,( . GIl ~ c.~»r_~~ 
8. It .J.--" /' 

o 0 8 e-CZl- Df. 
70c;z... &C/!J4J,u4-_P.ejl1 CA-I"'I-k.4-

11. 0'2..--2- Bca.\on IX. CCt ,k~,CA 
12. : 62. *3 a VI'( t'&f' (0-. 
13. M : 702-#3 Fs-c,,/<Y1."'-.. Dr c"- ~lo..../CA 
14. TIflLcq-q {k MO--u. (\£) -h b E Sca..l6MI. Dr . ~ ~CC 
15. c06~J .. , ~\---\,~j\ '103 bc.u\o~c) CYf'\6\" ~i\ 

<l""\ C <J..., (' : (.') /l IL 6 h '.'i' "" <-" 
16. vRrM€k \-lJ.\-vrM;: ID""t;;sc!h~'l.c-rr 1 0 ""(-

17. ~-an-lCh-ee t1,:tj'0C 701 ~<;(<1-)crr,d (j),..-. C7(/i~)a 
18:5ce ..... <iC-t- G-re'MF¥I'1e / Z6/ !5c"/',j1,< j1 Co/'/hL~ 
19. ~'l\Ilt' ~\lFl.tvl~ \0 lAoiln.t"iJ2.. {lnK Of.,.."IA--

20. '~1~ ~- Lfrn EL..54 Ito (err' J,/". 
119



30. ./ . _. 

31. (, n ." /, / ' ·f ( I ' ' 

32 . /£.f ,~'~J?- 1 0 :5 !lo/.tff~,< /-Iv-< CA//><l(,4 

33. -"'<:"'_,L.~-)-<--,.. -t-'T=r--"""'-') _'I_-<'Z"'i_ S,.1£-eJ.='_i-D-=---___ C--'T==-S-_D_' " 

34. _--;i-'A~~=--~---6-i)._:_.\"---a-..,,-...:Ir-L'l-.:.:C)='· _---,-___ 't.:..-)\]~lCl-=-
~t ' , 

35. '\ifv~i§" 1'Pc 9:>1 £\ ~-\o IX. CiSOLO 

36. ,i.~4f.fi,"'-izn . .SID E/ .5tlfo 'i:I- , 9];0/0 

37. K'\::V\ \"\ DR~\A'r\'t\...... \\\ .s().c''?-..~N\.\-~ /'M\; CiSC\\O 
QI,~yl,lk M,"'i(,,,, ILl ~QGfCLWlCV\'" -Ave, '15010 

39. lJCN oVA", /J I;,flJ..12 - Gc:>:z ct- 5'l~ ~"'e "Z'QfC) 

38. 

120



l ,am 'a neighbor on Depot Hill where the old church is being rennovated at 220 OaldandAv-
, enue. I looked at the renderings for the proposed landscape design and agree that building a 
privac wall in t 's sty e would be a nice improvement to the corn of Oakland and Escalona, 

~W~~~~~~~~~~~~~3-~~~~~~m 

5 1--------------------------------------------------------

s.~-----------------------------------------------------
~-7, ________________________________________________________________ _ 
;;.' .s 

~4'1~---------------------------------------------------------

~~--------------------------------------------------

~~---------------------------------------------------

~~+-----------------------------------------------------------------I 

~~. -----------------------------------------------------
ba~ ____________________________________________________ ___ 

~ ~I ---------------------------------------------------------------------

b~~---------------------------------------------------------------------

b~ 
121



I am a Capitola resident. I know the property on Depot Hill where the old church is 
being renovated at 220 Oakland Avenue. I looked at the renderings for the 
proposed landscape design and agree that building a privacy wall in this style 
would be a nice improvement to the corner of Oakland and Escalona. 

K.~ ()~ 
. 

1 . f(,il, ¥ J!l Rt1..i '/;.f4 51 1 ( <-y.'C"'-" , 

2. ffriolJAi. ~j,'/uR. 70b J'6 n ¥J-h'~ cOj1dcf-.. . , 

3. .~:~9b:iL to LJ 4 k)V! J 1> 1-' ~~ 4. 70 S 5u'<Js4 Dv-

5'" , 

C'c, . 

5. { " tr}1,,"- 7J:L 60 g ~~1u+ D, 
~:;t l~' 

D. 

6~WJA"" ·J.J)S~Br. ~ 
7. j.,oJ"'v! ,/3 r7I.M 1>0C-1.J.4M bDB .&v,vc..-r DIt.. C4f'rC.,U (A}6DtD 

fj€'ML-/f/ ~'--' " 
8. eoC) 'i'l A.w~ Or G<..jU.iGJh--~ 'J'?<D 1<] 

9. 

10. ________________________________________ ___ 

11 . __________________________________________ ___ 

12. __________________________________________ ___ 

13. _ ________________________________________ _ 

14. _________________________________________ _ 

15. ________________________________________ _ 

16. ________________________________________ _ 

17. ________________________________ ~ ______ _ 

18. ________________________________________ _ 

19. ________________________________________ _ 

20. ________________________________________ _ 

122



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

Item #: 9.8. 

MEETING OF JUNE 14, 2012 

FROM: POLICE DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER REPORT AND PRESENTATION ON TRAFFIC EVALUATION 
FOR GILROY AVENUE 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept report and provide direction to the Police Department. 

BACKGROUND: On April 26th , 2012, residents of Gilroy Avenue and the surrounding 
neighborhood attended the Capitola City Council meeting and voiced concern over traffic related 
concerns. The City Council directed the Police Department to evaluate their· concerns and provide 
a report on the findings. 

DISCUSSION: The Police Department conducted a speed survey examination in the 600 block of 
Gilroy-Avenue from May 12th thru May 19th . Gilroy Avenue and other streets that comprise the 
Riverview Terrace neighborhood were developed in 1929, prior to the City's incorporation. While 
these streets do not meet current design standards for street width they are considered a non
conforming existing condition. 

During the evaluation process, the following data was obtained: 

Accidents: 2006-2012 (9 Total) Citations: 2006-2012 (14 Total) 
1 Bike 7 Speeding 
2 DUI 3 Expired Registration 
4 Unsafe Turn 2 Stop Lamps 
2 Unsafe Speed 1 Head Lamps 

1 Cracked Windshield 

~ A total of 1,733 cars were surveyed during this eight-day period. Approximately 9 cars an hour; 
~ The posted speed for this section of Gilroy Street is posted at 25 mph; 
~ The average speed of the vehicles surveyed was 13.5 mph; 
~ The 85th percentile speed was indicated at 18 mph; 
~ A total of 12 vehicles were found to be traveling over the posted limit; 
~ The fastest vehicle speed was 32 on a Friday at 12:22 p.m. Violations occurred between 10:00 

a.m. and 6:30 p.m. the following data lists the speeds and number of vehicles that were recorded 
over the 25 mph speed limit: 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\06-14-12\9.B. Gilroy Avenue Staff Report.docx 123



6-14-12 AGENDA REPORT: GILROY AVENUE TRAFFIC PROJECT 

On Tuesday, May 29th
, the Police Department and the Public Works Department met with 

residents and presented the information that was collected. The goal of the meeting was to 
facilitate information and partner with the community to identify options that could be reasonably 
explored to provide a safe street within applicable laws. 

The primary State laws that pertain to speed limits are California Vehicle Code Sections 22352 
and 22358.3. These two sections preclude the City's ability to enforce any established speed 
limit on Gilroy Avenue and s'urrounding streets under 25 mph. Copies of these code sections are 
attached. 

The Police Department in partnership with the Public Works Department is conducting further 
research on additional questions raised by the residents and has agreed to schedule further 
meetings to continue dialogue and identify solutions. 

Staff recommends the Police Department continue future discussions with residents to identify 
viable solutions. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None at this time 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Gilroy Avenue Map 
2. Copy of Vehicle Code Sections 

Report Prepared By: Rudy Escalante 
Chief of Police 

Reviewed and ~" . :ded 
By City Manag r '"\ 

\ 

R:\Agenda StaffReports\20l2 Agenda Reports\City Council\06-l4-l2\9.B. Gilroy Avenue StaffReport.docx 124



A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

 1 

2006 THROUGH 2012 
TRAFFIC COLLISIONS AND CITATION 

Case Number: 
Dale: 0512012012 Page 2 of 2 

2006 THROUGH 2012 
TRAFFIC COLLISIONS AND CITATION 

Case Number: 
Dale: 0512012012 Page 2 of2 

125



ATTACHMENT 2 

22352. (A) The prima facie limits are as follows and shall be 
applicable unless changed as authorized in this code and , if so 
changed, only when signs have been erected giving notice thereof : 

(1) Fifteen miles per hour: 
(A) When traversing a railway grade crossing, if during the last 

100 f eet of the approach to the crossing the driver does not have a 
clear and unobstructed view of the crossing and of any traffic on the 
railway for a distance of 400 feet in both directions along the 
rai l way. This subdivision does not apply in the case of any railway 
grade crossing where a human flagman is on duty or a clearly visible 
electrical or mechanical railway crossing signal device is installed 
but does not then indicate the immediate approach of a railway train 
or car. 

(B) When traversing any intersection of highways if during the 
last 100 feet of the driver ' s approach to the intersection the driver 
does not have a clear and unobstructed view of the intersection and 
of any traffic upon all of the highways entering the intersection for 
a distance of 100 feet along all those highways, except at an 
intersection protected by stop signs or yield right-of-way signs or 
controlled by official traffic control signals . 

(Cl On any alley . 
(2) Twenty-five miles per hour: 
(Al On any highway other than a state highway, in any business or 

residence district unless a different speed is determined by local 
authority under procedures set forth in this code. 

(B) When approaching or passing a school building or the grounds 
thereof, contiguous to a highway and posted with a standard "SCHOOL" 
warning sign , while children are going to or leaving the school 
either during school hours or during the noon recess period. The 
prima facie limit shall also apply when approaching or passing any 
school grounds which are not separated from the highway by a fence, 
gate , or other physical barrier while the grounds are in use by 
children and the highway is posted with a standard "SCHOOL " warning 
sign . For purposes of this subparagraph, standard "SCHOOL" warning 
signs may be placed at any distance up to 500 feet away from school 
grounds. 

(C) When passing a senior center or other facility primarily used 
by senior citizens, contiguous to a street other than a state highway 
and posted with a standard "SENIOR" warning sign. A local authority 
is not required to erect any sign pursuant to this paragraph until 
donations from private sources covering those costs are received and 
the local agency makes a determination that the proposed signing 
should be implemented . A local authority may, however, utilize any 
other funds available to it to pay for the erection of those signs. 

(b) This section shall become operative on March I , 2001 . 

22358.3 . Whenever a local authority determines upon the basis of an 
engineering and traffic survey that the prima facie speed limit of 
25 miles per hour in a business or residence district or in a public 
park on any street having a roadway not exceeding 25 feet in width, 
other than a state highway, is more than is reasonable or safe, the 
local authority may, by ordinance or resolution, determine and 
declare a prima facie speed limit of 20 or 15 miles per hour, 
whichever is found most appropriate and is reasonable and safe . The 
declared prima facie limit shall be effective when appropriate signs 
giving notice thereof are erected upon the street. 

126



Item #: 9.C. 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

FROM: 

MEETING OF JUNE 14,2012 

OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

SUBJECT: CONSIDERATION OF A VISITOR SERVICEFEE MEASURE FOR NOVEMBER 
6,2012 GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt a Resolution requesting the inclusion of an additional ballot 
measure imposing an increase in the visitor service fee on the City of Capitola November 6, 2012 
General Municipal Election ballot. 

BACKGROUND: The City currently imposes a visitor service fee (transient occupancy tax) at a rate 
of 10%. If approved, a ballot measure would be added to the consolidated November 2012 ballot 
which, if passed by the voters, will increase the visitor service fee tax rate to 12% being applied to 
the general fund. 

At its January 26, 2012 meeting, Council received a report regarding the City's long range fiscal 
strategies (Attachment 1). One of the revenue concepts in the January 26, 2012 staff report was an 
increase in visitor service fee (transient occupancy tax) rate from 10% to 12%-14%. 

At the March 22,2012 meeting, Council approved Resolution No. 3912 requesting County Elections 
conduct the election (Attachment 2), consolidate the General Municipal Election for the City of 
Capitola (on Tuesday, November 6,2012), and include a ballot measure regarding a permanent 
sales tax increase of one quarter percent be adopted to pay for disaster recovery and to maintain 
general services including public safety and street improvements. 

DISCUSSION: Before Council this evening is a draft Resolution amending Resolution No. 3912 
adding the inclusion of a ballot measure imposing a 12% visitor service fee for the City's November 
6, 2012 General Municipal Election ballot. The visitor service fee for the City of Santa Cruz, Scotts 
Valley and Watsonville are all currently at 10%; Santa Cruz County will be proposing a 12% TOT in 
November 2012. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Should the visitor service fee measure be successful, the implementation of the 
new rate would begin January 1, 2013 and would generate additional annual revenue estimated at 
$180,000 towards the City's General Fund. The City is responsible for costs involved in the printing 
and distribution of the m'easure text in the voter information pamphlet, which would include the City 
Attorney's impartial analysis and any arguments and rebuttal arguments pertaining to the ballot 
measure. The estimated cost to conduct the City's election is $3.00 per voter (Le., 5,000 voters = 
$15,000), which the City will incur regardless of whether the new visitor service fee measure is on 
the ballot. 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. January 26, 2012 Staff Report 
2. Resolution No. 3912 
3. Draft Resolution 

Report Prepared By: Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 
Reviewed and F~d 
By City Manage~r 

R\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\06-14-12\ELECTION TOT MEASURE\9.C. TOT Election TOT Measure 
SR.doc 

127



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JANUARY 26, 2012 

FROM:   CITY MANAGER AND FINANCE DEPARTMENTS 

DATE:   JANUARY 20, 2012 

SUBJECT: LONG RANGE FISCAL STRATEGY FOLLOW-UP 
______________________________________________________________________________

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the City Council:

1. Continue to closely evaluate and implement cost saving opportunities during the 
upcoming Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) negotiations with the employee 
groups and future budgeting cycles. 

2. Prepare a “benchmark study” using existing in-house resources to assess the City’s 
fiscal accountability and answer the question: “is the City wisely using the resources it 
already has?” 

3. Develop user fee cost recovery policy, analyze key revenues and make 
recommendations for changes, as appropriate, as part of the 2012-13 Budget process. 

DISCUSSION:
This report is in follow-up to the joint Council/Finance Advisory Committee (FAC) study session 
held on October 12, 2011, which considered the FAC’s report to the Council on long-term fiscal 
issues.  Based on the discussion from that meeting, this report addresses three key questions: 
� Is the FAC’s determination of the long-term “budget gap” accurate?  

� Is the “gap” a problem of revenues that are too low or expenditures that are too high?  (Or 
some combination of the two?)  How can we best assess if the City is effectively using 
existing resources? 

� What are the action steps needed to address the long-term gap and create fiscal 
sustainability? 

It should be stressed that this report is staff’s response to the FAC’s report.  This report does 
not diminish or change any of the FAC recommendations.  It is not intended to define the City’s 
policy response to a long term funding gap, but rather lay out options and alternatives the City 
may wish to consider. 

Short-Term Versus Long Term Challenges Facing the City 
It is important to stress that the City has a balanced budget.  Under the two-year budget 
adopted by the Council for 2011-13, General Fund sources cover outlays.  However, this was 
achieved through budget reductions (and related service level reductions in most cases), 
including the following: 

� Reducing funding for capital improvement plan (CIP) and pavement management projects 
(one time).  This has resulted in a decrease in the pavement quality throughout the City, and 
deferred the implementation of a number of important infrastructure projects.  

ATTACHMENT 1 

128



1-26-12 AGENDA REPORT: Long Range Fiscal Strategy Follow-Up 2 

� Eliminating Planner and Finance Technician positions (ongoing). 

� Holding Police Captain, Finance Director (and now Community Development Director), two 
Public Works crew, Community Service Officer, one Records Clerk positions vacant (one-
time).

� Reclassifying Building Inspector and Public Works Maintenance Crew positions, resulting in 
the establishment of true entry level positions and a salary savings to the City (ongoing). 

� Reducing overall contract expenditures by over $300,000 through renegotiations or 
consolidation of responsibilities (ongoing). 

� Eliminating the Paid Officer Reserve Program (ongoing). 

While the City’s budget is fiscally balanced, that does not mean it is balanced from a service 
perspective.  As reflected above, achieving a balanced budget has required service and CIP 
reductions that may not serve the community well in the longer term.         

Accordingly, the challenge facing the City at this point is not about balancing this year’s budget: 
the City has a strong tradition of making the tough fiscal decisions needed to ensure a balanced 
budget.  The City has always adopted a balanced budget, and will continue to do so in the 
future.  The question is: does the City budget appropriately provide for desired service levels, 
capital improvements and appropriate provisions for the future needs of the City.  Are the 
reduced service levels acceptable for the community in the long run? 

Stated simply, the long-term challenge facing the City is not solely a fiscal one; but rather, the 
challenge is determining if the current day-to-day services and facility/infrastructure 
maintenance and improvements are the level the community wants – and is willing to pay for.  In 
short, what kind of community does Capitola want to be? 

Defining the Long-Term Gap: 

In its October 12 presentation to the Council, the FAC defined two kinds of fiscal challenges 
facing the City: 

� One-time needs to restore the contingency reserve and fund relocation of the Pacific Cove 
mobile home park, and  

� The need to fund ongoing service levels and important CIP projects. 

The following table summarizes both of these, with one-time needs of $3.7 million and a long-
term gap ranging between $1.8 to $2.8 million annually in addressing “unfunded” needs: 

129



1-26-12 AGENDA REPORT: Long Range Fiscal Strategy Follow-Up 3 

    

This conclusion assumes the revenue and expenditure snapshot in the 2011-13 Budget remains 
about the same into the future, and the only variables are those identified above.   

However, what if future costs outpace projected revenues and the underlying gap grows larger?  
On the other hand, what if revenues grow faster than costs?  In this case, perhaps an improving 
revenue outlook alone will close most, if not all, of the gap.  The FAC’s approach, which staff 
concurs with, was that it would be inappropriate to only rely on a strategy that “hopes” future 
revenue alone will grow the City out of the problem.      

In many cities, identifying the long-term gap is achieved by preparing a multi-year forecast 
(covering five to ten years), where future revenues and costs are projected based on individual 
assumptions for key drivers.  Along with assessing the longer-term impacts of short-term budget 
decisions, a five or ten year fiscal forecast can help most local governments better manage 
long-term fiscal sustainability.  For those agencies that have prepared longer-term forecasts and 
follow-on financial plans, this did not magically make their fiscal problems disappear: they still 
had tough decisions to make.   
           
However, due to its unique circumstances outlined below, the City may be able to assess its 
longer General Fund fiscal challenges using the second year of the 2011-13 Budget as the 
baseline (which was the FAC’s approach in defining the problem), and avoid dedicating the 
significant resources needed to prepare a long-term fiscal forecast.            

� Operating cost drivers.  Most cities, the projection for significant increases in their required 
contributions to the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) is the single 
largest future cost driver.  However, in Capitola’s case, contribution rates are “capped:" 
under existing employee agreements, any increases in employer contribution rates are the 
employee’s responsibility. 

This provides the City with structural cost containment on a major cost element that most 
other cities simply do not have.  And in terms of key drivers, this removes a significant cost 
increase factor from the forecast that other cities would need to consider.  For all other 
operating costs, it is likely that a multi-year forecast would assume cost increases similar to 
increases in the consumer price index (CPI) – about 2% annually based on past trends.                    

Long-Term Funding Gap
One Time 

Restore Contingency Reserve 1,500,000      
Pacific Cove Relocation 2,200,000      
Total One-Time 3,700,000    

Ongoing (Annual)
Deferred Operating Expenses 850,000         
Pavement Management 450,000         
Measure D/RDA/Bond Expiration 500,000         

Total Operating 1,800,000   
Annual Reserve for Unfunded CIP
(About $25 million in identified projects) 1,000,000   
Total Ongoing (Annual) $2,800,000

130



1-26-12 AGENDA REPORT: Long Range Fiscal Strategy Follow-Up 4 

� Key revenues.  The second year of the 2011-13 Budget already reflects stronger sales tax 
revenues from Target and the improved transient occupancy tax (TOT) revenues resulting 
from the opening of the Fairfield Suites.  This second-year baseline for these two top 
General Fund revenue sources is likely to be the assumption for future years in the forecast, 
growing modestly by a factor similar to increases in the CPI.  Lastly, while property tax 
revenues - the City’s other top General Fund revenue source - will probably increase in the 
future, they are likely to rise modestly, in close alignment with the 2% annual increase 
allowed under Proposition 13.  In short, growth in key revenues is likely to closely mirror 
increases in operating costs.  

In summary, due to existing CalPERS cost containment and the key revenue assumptions 
already assumed in the 2012-13 base, a longer-term forecast is likely to simply reflect the 
existing situation.  Accordingly, while preparing a long-term fiscal forecast is often an essential 
step in defining the long-term “gap,” this may not be necessary for the City.  In the simplest 
terms, staff suggests the FAC’s determination of the long term budget gap is probably as 
accurate an assessment as can be reasonably obtained, and should be used for this process.              

Is the Gap a Revenue or Expenditure Problem?  
The FAC’s report to the Council identified both expenditure reduction as revenue increase 
options, wisely recognizing that before asking Council members to raise fees and asking voters 
to support tax increases, the City first needs to demonstrate that services are currently being 
provided in a cost-effective manner.  There are typically three ways of demonstrating this: 

� Comprehensive organizational analysis 
� Compensation study 
� Benchmark analysis 

Comprehensive Organizational Analysis 
Under this approach, most cities contract with an independent consulting firm that specializes in 
comprehensively evaluating the effectiveness and efficiency of an agency’s organization and 
service delivery methods, policies, systems and procedures; and then making recommendations 
for improvement as appropriate.  These assessments often include an evaluation of the City’s 
budget process, which would directly respond to one the FAC’s top recommendations for a 
“bottom-up budgeting process.” 

While used by many cities in developing and implementing long-term cost reduction and service 
improvement plans, these types of reviews take a long time to prepare, and if comprehensive in 
their scope, can be very expensive to prepare.  The City of Santa Cruz recently completed such 
a study, at a cost of $90,000 with Avery and Associates. 

On the other hand, this type of analysis may be prepared within-house resources; however, 
there are three drawbacks to this approach: 

� Staff resource limits.  Existing staff resources, especially in light of recent reductions, 
vacancies and frozen positions, are dedicated to providing day-to-day services.  It would be 
extremely difficult to reallocate limited staff resources to this effort.  Given its intensive, “one-
time” nature, this type of special project is usually best performed by outside resources. 

� Objective, third party view.  Agencies embarking on this type of review typically want an 
outside, independent view of its operations.  Real or perceived, current agency staff may too 
wedded to the “way we’ve always done it” to provide an objective assessments of current 
practices and opportunities for review.  

131



1-26-12 AGENDA REPORT: Long Range Fiscal Strategy Follow-Up 5 

� Expertise.  Firms specializing in this type of analysis bring a depth of experience and “best 
practice” knowledge to the review. 

Given the time and cost involved – either in staff or consultant resources – combined with the 
nearly continuous effort by the entire City organization over the past three years in identifying 
cost reduction strategies and improving operations, we do not recommend pursuing this 
approach at this time.  Rather, staff recommends continuing to utilize the annual budget process 
and MOU updates with the employee groups to implement the FAC recommendations. 

Compensation Study 
The FAC recommended the City undertake a comprehensive “benchmark” analysis of employee 
compensation.  This recognizes that in a service organization like the City, where most key 
services – like police protection – are delivered by City staff, employee compensation is large 
factor in determining ongoing operating costs.  And as such, ensuring compensation levels are 
sufficient to retain and attract qualified employees while at the same time are not excessive and 
are in-line with the market, is essential in ensuring reasonable costs that are commensurate 
with the value received. 

One approach to this is to conduct a comprehensive compensation study, which may include 
private sector benchmarks.  However, like the comprehensive organizational study approach 
discussed above, this takes time and can be expensive to prepare.  Moreover, given the 
CalPERS cost containment already in place, there is the risk of unintended consequences in 
undertaking this type of analysis.      

Accordingly, we do not recommend taking this approach.  Instead, as noted in the City 
Manager’s joint study session report, current agreements with the various employee groups will 
expire at the end of June 2012.  That negotiation process will be an opportunity to work 
cooperatively with the various groups to find solutions to fiscal issues, and ensure that the City’s 
compensation programs are appropriate.  

Lastly, as noted above, the City has in place significant cost containment as its compensation 
“baseline” compared with most other cities in the State and nation: the City’s CalPERS 
employer contribution rates are capped and any increases are the employee’s responsibility.  
An alternative approach, which is outlined below, is to include key compensation factors as part 
of a “benchmark analysis.” 

Benchmark Analysis 
The third approach is to “benchmark” the City’s costs, revenues and service outcomes with 
similar cities: in short, using benchmarks to assess the City’s fiscal accountability, and as a 
management strategy to find opportunities to improve organizational efficiencies. 

Though true “apples-to-apples” benchmark comparisons between cities (there are over 480 of 
them in the State) are probably not possible, it is possible to discern meaningful trends and 
develop valuable data by developing a thoughtful benchmarking study.  

The key to making effective comparisons between cities is to find the right common 
denominator.  In doing so, simple per capita comparisons are tempting.  However, the fact is 
that every city faces different challenges due to a wide variety of factors, including: 

� Service level expectations 
� Daytime versus resident service population 
� Fiscal constraints 
� Community demographics 

132



1-26-12 AGENDA REPORT: Long Range Fiscal Strategy Follow-Up 6 

� Scope services (full service or contract city?) 
� And not least, geography 

For example, San Luis Obispo has higher than average fire costs largely due to geography in 
meeting minimum response times.  Between mountains, freeways and railroad tracks – and the 
access limitations they create – San Luis Obispo needs four fire stations to meet its four-minute 
response time goal.  Other communities with a similar population size but less challenging 
geography might be able to meet a similar standard with fewer stations – and thus lower costs. 

Similarly, per capita street maintenance costs in South Lake Tahoe – which include snow 
removal – are likely to be much higher than another  similar-sized city.    

Mitigating the pitfalls.  While imperfect, in the real world, “per capita” is the most workable 
common denominator.  Accordingly, avoiding these pitfalls and making meaningful per capita 
comparisons requires carefully selecting the benchmark cities to ensure they represent as close 
a possible match as possible, understanding a “perfect” match is impossible.  This means that 
along with making comparisons of key benchmarks such as comparably size cities, it is 
important to select cities that share other important service, economic, geographic and 
demographic characteristics as well.  Additionally, to avoid a “race to the bottom,” comparison 
cities should also be selected that have a reputation for being well-managed and leaders in the 
use of “best practices.”  

After selecting comparison cities, it is also important to carefully select the benchmarks.  On one 
hand, they need to be data points that can be reliably gathered and measured (such as data 
from budgets and annual financial reports).  On the other hand, they need to measure 
something meaningful.  Areas likely to be covered in effective benchmark studies include: 

� How does the City compare financially with similar cities?  (Such as key revenues per 
capita, operating costs per capita, debt service per capita, staffing per capita; and as noted 
above, key employee compensation benchmarks)       

� How do “service outcomes” compare with similar cities?  (Service costs are one thing; value 
for cost – service outcomes – is another.) 

� How have City workloads and staffing changed over time? 

� And has the City adopted and implemented the use of “best practices” in wisely managing 
the public resources that have been entrusted to it 

When carefully prepared, benchmark analysis can be a powerful tool in assessing the fiscal 
performance of city – either good or bad.  Where benchmark results show that a city compares 
favorably with others, then reasonable assurance can be provided that the city is managing its 
fiscal affairs effectively.  Where this is not the case, then areas for improvement can be 
identified and changes made. 

An example of a benchmark study prepared by the City of San Luis is available on its web site 
at: http://slocity.org/finance/download/benchmark-report06.pdf.  As reflected in the headline 
below, the results of the study were widely (and favorably) reported by the local media; and 
were helpful in providing an analytical basis on the cost side for a subsequent general purpose, 
½-cent sales tax measure, which was adopted in November 2006 with 65% voter approval.         

133



1-26-12 AGENDA REPORT: Long Range Fiscal Strategy Follow-Up 7 

Compared with other the other two options, staff recommends that preparing a benchmark study 
is a cost-effective approach in answering the question: is the City wisely using the resources it 
already has?  This work can be completed with existing in-house resources with a target 
completion date of March 2012.  

Service Priorities 
All three of these approaches (organizational analysis, compensation study and benchmarking) 
focus on the effective and efficient delivery of services.  However, none of them directly 
addresses the question of service priorities: in short, even if it is provided effectively and 
efficiently, does the service meet an important community goal?  Virtually every government 
program had its roots in meeting an important need at some point.  However, over time the 
need it addressed may no longer be the case; or its priority relative to new needs that have 
surfaced since its inception may be much lower.  Stated simply, there is no “magic” bullet for 
assessing service priorities.  Staff believes that the best approach to this is ongoing review of 
services and programs via the budget process.    

Capital Improvements 
A key component of the FAC’s definition of the gap facing the City is $1.0 million in annual 
funding for capital improvements, plus an additional $450,000 annually for pavement 
management.  One suggestion that surfaced from the joint Council/FAC study session is the 
need to more clearly identify the long term capital improvement priorities in considering revenue 
increases.  Staff does not recommend taking this approach for several reasons: 

� Two of the key revenue proposals (extending the Measure D ¼-cent sales tax and 
increasing the transient occupancy tax) surfaced by the FAC are for a general purpose 
revenue ballot measure.  Specifying projects is more appropriate for a special purpose tax 
measure.

� Second, over the course of time necessary to implement these projects, the City’s priorities 
will change.  New projects will be identified, and other projects may become obsolete prior 
to implementation.  That said, it may still be important to develop an inclusive list of current 
projects under consideration should voter consideration of new revenue concepts be 
required, but staff recommends against trying to firmly pin those projects down at this point. 

� Three, given the changing nature of fiscal circumstances, it is important to retain flexibility in 
prudently responding to new priorities.  As past experience has shown, the fiscal challenges 
facing the City are subject to change over time, such as the worst recession since the Great 
Depression, which was not on the City’s radar (or anyone else’s, for that matter) in 2007.  

134



1-26-12 AGENDA REPORT: Long Range Fiscal Strategy Follow-Up 8 

And fortunately, because Measure D was a general purpose measure, the Council was able 
to respond flexibility in responding to revenue downturns.   

� Last, in ensuring adequate maintenance of existing facilities and creating the fiscal capacity 
to respond to community needs for new ones, it may be appropriate to set policy targets for 
the amount of revenues that should be set aside for this purpose, such as 10% of General 
Fund revenues.  This would establish a general policy framework for balancing day-to-day 
services such as police protection with the need to adequately maintain infrastructure such 
as streets, storm sewers, street lighting, landscaped areas and public facilities.  In this case, 
the $1 million identified by the FAC (or $1.5 million including paving) is close to this 10% 
benchmark.

New Revenues 
As discussed above, while the City needs to remain vigilant in containing expenditures and in 
ensuring value-for-costs, staff believes that expenditure-side ideas surfaced by the FAC are 
best addressed through the City’s ongoing budget and labor negotiations process.  The 
exception to this is the recommended benchmark study.  This leaves the revenue side of the 
budget-balancing equation for further consideration. 

New revenues can be raised in three basic ways: 

� Economic development: grow the underlying economy and improve the tax base, thus 
producing more revenues with the same (or lower) tax rates.     

� Improved cost recovery through service charges and opportunities to use City assets for 
greater revenue gain (such as property leases or sales). 

� New or increased taxes. 

The FAC’s top revenue recommendations reflect all three of these.  The top “new revenue” 
ideas supported by the FAC fall into the economic development category: 

Economic Development Concept Estimated Annual Revenues  
Additional retail business $100,000 
Additional hotels $500,000 to $1,000,000 
Additional events (clambake)            $1,000 to $10,000 
Annex areas in sphere of influence Unknown 

As discussed in the City Manager’s October 12 joint report to the Council and FAC, improving 
the economic base for retail and hotel sales – the areas surfaced by the FAC with the greatest 
revenue potential – is largely driven by market factors that are beyond the City’s control.   

Moreover, in the case of expanding hotel rooms, while the City does have private-public 
partnership opportunities, past experience both in Capitola and other communities shows these 
are complex undertakings, require long-term timeframes to achieve, and the outcome is far from 
certain. 

In the case of the last two economic development concepts, the opportunity to consider 
additional special events as revenue-raisers is always available for consideration on a case-by-
case basis as sponsoring organizations present them to the City; and as recommended by the 
City Manager in his joint report to the Council and FAC, while there may be positive impacts 
associated with annexation, this issue is best addressed as part of the General Plan update.  

135



1-26-12 AGENDA REPORT: Long Range Fiscal Strategy Follow-Up 9 

This leaves new or increased revenues as one of the few options for measurable, long-term 
budget balancers, over which the City has (some) direct control. 

The following summarizes the new or increased revenue options available to cities in California 
(many of which were considered by the FAC) along with their approval requirements.  As 
reflected below, virtually all the options that have significant revenue-raising ability require voter 
approval: majority approval in for general purpose revenues and two-thirds for special purposes.  

Required Approval: New or Increased Revenues

As reflected above, in a post-Proposition 218 world, there are few discretionary revenue 
decisions available to local government elected officials.  The most significant of these is 
determining user fees: in short, what services are funded by fees and which ones are funded by 
general purpose taxes? 

Based on the Council and FAC discussion at the joint meeting, three revenue concepts 
emerged as candidates for further consideration: 

� Improve Cost Recovery: $85,000 

Increase recreation fees by 10% ($75,000); increase other city fees ($5,000); improve 
accident recovery ($5,000) 

� Extend Measure D Sales Tax: $900,000 

� Increase Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) rate from 10% to 12%-14%: $200,000 to 
$400,000

It should be noted these revenue concepts together generate about $1.4 million annually ($1.6 
million if the TOT rate is set at 14%).  This is only about half of the gap $2.8 million gap.  
Accordingly, in coming closer to closing this gap, the City may also want to discuss the 

Council Majority Two-Thirds
Sales Tax General purpose Special purpose
Transient Occupancy Tax General purpose Special purpose
Property Transfer Tax (charter cities only) General purpose Special purpose
Business Tax General purpose Special purpose
General Obligation Bond x
Parcel Tax x
Utility Users Tax General purpose Special purpose
Admissions Tax General purpose Special purpose
Parking Tax General purpose Special purpose
Excise Tax General purpose Special purpose
Maintenance Assessments x
Mello-Roos: Existing Development x
Mello-Roos: New Development **
Development Impact Fees x
Use of Property/Assets x
Higher Cost Recovery x
Franchise Fees x
Donations/Partnerships x
Fines x

Voter

136



1-26-12 AGENDA REPORT: Long Range Fiscal Strategy Follow-Up 10 

implications of setting the City’s sales tax rate at ½-cent rather than the current ¼-cent rate.  
The added $900,000 this would generate annually would closely mirror the $1.0 million annual 
target for ongoing CIP improvements. 

Improved Cost Recovery
As discussed above, of the three revenue candidates, improved cost recovery is within the 
Council’s decision-making authority.  However, before setting targets for new revenues, it is 
important to address two key issues: 

� Under state law, costs cannot exceed the reasonable cost of providing the service 
� Fees should be set within an overall cost recovery policy framework 

Before increasing or adopting new fees, the City should consider four key questions: 

� What does it cost the City to provide the service? 
� Is this cost reasonable? 
� What is the current cost recovery level? 
� What should the cost recovery level be? 

The first three questions can be answered through careful analysis.  For example, it is a 
relatively straightforward analytical task to determine that it costs $100 to issue a building permit 
(including direct and indirect costs); the cost is reasonable considering city service levels; and 
the current fee is only $50.  However, deciding to raise or lower the fee is determined by the 
fourth policy question that only the Council can answer: what should the cost recovery level be?  

For example, if the Council believes that fees should only cover 25% of the cost, with the 
balance funded by General Fund revenues, then the fee should be reduced by 50% to $25.  On 
the other hand, if the Council believes that this service should be fully recovered from the 
applicant, then raising the fee to $100 would be warranted. 

This example reflects one of the fundamental issues of public finance: which services should be 
funded from user fees?  And which from general purpose tax revenues? 

In determining appropriate cost recovery, staff recommends these decisions should be made in 
a policy context.  Accordingly, we conceptually concur with the FAC recommendation for 
improved cost recovery.  However, before raising fees – such as recreation fees by 10% - we 
recommend first developing and approving user fee cost recovery policies; and then following-
up with analysis in selected fee areas to assess where increases (or decreases) might be 
warranted.               

Voter Approved Revenue Increases 
Both of remaining revenue concepts require majority voter approval if the proceeds will be used 
for general purposes. 

� Extending Measure D sales tax: $900,000 
� Increasing the TOT rate from 10% to 12%-14%: $200,000 to $400,000 

Measure D is scheduled to sunset in 2017.  While this is six years away, at the joint Council-
FAC study session the City Manager outlined several advantages to placing the extension of 
Measure D before its sunset: 

137



1-26-12 AGENDA REPORT: Long Range Fiscal Strategy Follow-Up 11 

� The City’s long-term fiscal planning would be enhanced by having greater certainty about 
this revenue’s future. 

� Given the requirement that general purpose revenue measures be considered by voters at 
the same time as Council member elections (unless there unanimous declaration of a fiscal 
emergency), November 2012 presents an early opportunity to consider extension.     

The November 2012 ballot also presents a window of opportunity to consider an increase in the 
City‘s TOT rate. 

As discussed in a separate Council agenda report also being considered on January 26, 2012, if 
the Council is interested in seriously considering a revenue ballot measure in November 2012, 
there are several key actions that should be undertaken now, including public opinion research.

Next Steps 

The following outlines recommended next steps: 

Task Target Date 

� Continue to closely evaluate cost saving opportunities Ongoing

� Prepare “benchmark study” to assess the City’s fiscal accountability in 
answering the question: how do we know the City is wisely using the 
resources it already has? 

March 2012 

� Develop user fee cost recovery policy and present to Council for 
approval.

April 2012 

� Analyze key revenues in accordance with the adopted user fee cost 
recovery policy and make recommendations for changes as 
appropriate as part of the 2012-13 Budget process. 

June 2012 

FISCAL IMPACT: There are no added budget costs associated with the recommended actions.  

ATTACHMENT:

1. Council Agenda Report: October 12, 2011 Joint Council/Finance Committee Meeting      

Report Prepared By:  Jamie Goldstein, City Manager 
       Bill Statler, Interim Finance Director 

Reviewed and Forwarded 
By City Manager: ______      

138



ATTACHMENT 2 

7768 

RESOLUTION NO. 3912 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCI L OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA ORDERING AN 
ELECTION , REQU ESTING COUNTY ELECTIONS TO CONDUCT THE ELECTION, AND 

REQUESTING CONSOLIDATION OF THE GENERAL MUNIC IPAL ELECTION IN THE CITY OF 
CAPITOLA ON TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 6, 2012 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Elections Code Section 10002. the governing body of any city may 
by r~solution request the ,Board .of Supervisors of the county to permit the county elections official 
to render specified services to the city relating to the conduct of an election; and 

WH EREAS, the resolution of the governing body of the city or district. shall specify the 
. services requested; and 

I 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Elections Code Section 10002, the city or district shall reimburse 

the county in full for the services performed upon presentation of a bill to the city or district; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Elections Code Section 10400, whenever two or more elections, ' 
includ ing bond elections, of any legislative or congressional district, public district, city, county, or 
other political subdivision are called to be held on the same day, in the same territo ry, or in territory 
that is in part the same, they may be consolidated upon the order of the governing body or bodies 
or officer or officers calling the elections; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Elections Code Section 10400, such election for cities may be 
either completely or partially consolidated : and 

WHEREAS , pursuant to Elections Code Section 10403, whenever an election called by a 
city for submission of any question, proposition, or office to be filled is to be cons'olidated with a 
statewide election, and the question, proposition, or office to be fitled is to appear upon the same 
ballot as that provided for the statewide election, the city shall, at least 88 days prior to the dale of 
the election, file with the board of supervisors, and a copy with the elections office, a resolution of 
its governing board requesting the consolidation, and setting firth the exact form of any question, 
proposition , or office to be voted upon at the election, at is iBt to appear on the ballot. Upon such 
request, the board of supervisors may order the consolidation; and 

, WHEREAS, the resolution requesting the consolidation shall be adopted and filed at the 
same time as the adoption of the ordinance, resolution, or order calling the election; and 

WHEREAS, various district, county, state and other political subdivision elections may be or 
have been called to be held on November 6,2012, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that Ihe City Council of the City of 
Capitola hereby orders an election be called and consolidated with any and all elections also called 
to be held on November 6, 2012 insofar as said ele~tions are to be held in the same territory or in a 
territory that is in part the same as the territory of the City of Capitola, and hereby request the 
Board of Supervisors of the County of Santa Cruz to order such consolidation under Elections 
Code Sections 10401 and 10403, 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED thatlhe City Council of the City of Capitola 
hereby requests the Board of Supervisors to permit the Santa Cruz County elections Department 
to provide any and all services necessary for conducting the election and agrees to pay for said 
services; and 

• 

139



7769 RESOLUTION NO. 3912 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the Santa Cruz County Elections 
Department conduct the election for the following offices to be voted on at the November 6, 20 12, 
election: 

Selection of two (2) Members of the City Council for the full term of four (4) years , and 
Selection of one (1) City Treasurer for the full term of four (4) years. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED "AND ORDERED thai the Santa Cruz County Elections 
Department shall conduct the election for the following Measure to be voted on at the November 6, 
2012, election: 

Shall a City of Capitola permanent sates lax 
increase of one quarter of one percent be 
adopted to pay for Yes 
disaster recovery and to maintain general 
services including public safety and street 
imorovements? No 

BE IT FU RTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the Santa Cruz County Elections 
Department is requested to print the measure text exactly as filed or indicated on the filed 
docum~nt in the Voter's Information Pamphlet section of the Sample Ballot fOf the November 6, 
2012, election, attached hereto as Exhibit "A". The cost of printing and distribution of the measure 
text will be paid for by the dty. 

BE IT FURTH ER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the City Clerk of the City of Capitola Is 
hereby ordered and directed to cause said proposed ordinance and notice of election to be 
published in accordance with the ·provlsions of the California State Elections Code. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing resolution was passed and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of Capitola at ils regular meeting held on the 2200 day of March, 2012, 
by the following vote: 

AYES: Council Members Harlan, Norton, Nicol, Storey, and Mayor Termin 

NOES: None ' 

ABSENT: None 

ABSTAIN: None 

ATTEST: 

3tcJo,adtJ~ ,CMC 
Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 

140



RESOLUTION NO. 391 2 7770 
EXHIBIT A (DRAFT ORDINANCE) 

Measure to be voted on: City of Capitola Permanent Retail Transactions and Use Tax 

DRAFT ORDINANCE ND. __ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA IM POSING A PERMANENT RETAIL 
TRANSACTIONS AND USE TAX TO BE ADMINISTERED BY THE STATE BOARD OF 

EQUALIZATION 

THE PEOPLE OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA, CALIFORNIA, DO ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. TITLE. This ordinance shall be known as the City of Capitola Permanent Retail 
Transaction and Use Tax Ordinance. The City of Capitola hereinafter shall be called "City". This 
ordinance shaH be applicable in the incorporated territory of the City. 

Section 2. OPERATIVE DATE. "Operative Date" means the first day of the first calendar 
quarter commencing more than 110 days after the adoption of this ordinance, the date of such 
adoption being set forth as below. 

Section 3. PURPOSE. This ordinance is adopted to achieve the following, among other 
purposes, and directs the provisions hereof be interpreted in order to accomplish those 
purposes: 

A. To impose a permanent retail transactions and use tax in accordance with the provisions 
of Part 1.6 (commencing with Section 7251) of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Cpde 
and Section 7285.9 of Part 1.7 of Division 2 which authorizes the City to adopt this tax 
ordinance which shall be operative if a majority of the electors voting on the measure vote to 
approve the imposition of the tax at an election called for that purpose. 

B. To adopt a retail transactions and use tax ordinance that incorporates provisions 
identical to those of the Sales and Use Tax Law of the State of California insofar as those 
provisions are not inconsistent with the requirements and limitations contained in Part 1.6 of 
Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code. 

C. To adopt a retail transactions and use tax ordinance thai imposes a tax and provides a 
measure therefore that can be administered and collected by the State Board of equalization in 
a manner that adapts itself fully as practicable to, and requires the least possible deviation from, 
the existing statutory and administrative procedures followed by the State Boar.d of Equalization 
in administering and collecting the California Sta'te Sales and Use Taxes. 

D. To adopt a retail transactions and use tax ordinance that can be administered in a 
manner that will be, to the greatest degree possible, consistent with the provisions of Part 1.6 of 
Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, minimize the cost of collecting the transactions 
and use taxes, and at the same time, minimize the burden of record keeping upon persons 
subject to taxation under the provisions of this ordinance. . 

Section 4. CONTRACT WITH STATE. Prior to the operative date, the City shall contract 
with the State Board of Equalization to perform all functions incident to the administration and 
operation of this transaction and use tax ordinance; provided, that if the City shall not have 
contracted with the State Board of Equalization prior to the operative date, it shall nevert"heless 

141



777 1 RESOLUTION NO. 3912 
EXHIBIT A (DRAFT ORDINANCE) 

so contract and in such a case the operative date shall be the first day of the first calendar 
quarter following the execution of such a contract. 

Section 5. TRANSACTIONS TAX RATE. For the privilege of selling tangible personal 
property at retail, a tax is hereby imposed upon all retailers in the incorporated and 
unincorporated territory of the City at the rate of one quarter of one percent (0.25%) of the gross 
receipts of any retailer from the sale of all tangible personal property sold at retail in said 
territory on and after the operative date of this ordinance. This tax is in addition to, and not in 
lieu of, the one quarter of one percent (0.25%) temporary retail transactions and use lax 
imposed pursuant to Chapter 3.10 of the Capitola Municipal Code. 

Section 6. PLACE OF SALE. For the purpose of this ordinance, all retail sales are 
consummated at the place of business of the retailer unless the tangible personal property sold 
is delivered by the retailer or his agent to an out-of-state destination or to a common carrie r for 
charges, when such charges are subject to the state sales and use tax, regardless of the place 
to which delivery is made. In the event a retailer has no permanent place of business in the 
State of has more than or)e place of business, the place or places at which the retail sales are 
consummated shall be determined under rules and regulations to be prescribed and adopted by 
the State Board of Equalization. 

Section 7. USE TAX RATE. An excise lax is hereby imposed on the storage, use or other 
consumption in the City of tangible personal property purchased from any retailer on and after 
the operative date of this ordinance for storage, use or other consumption in said territory at the 
rate of one quarter of one percent (0.25%) of the sales price of the property. The sa les price 
shall include delivery charges when such charges are subject to state sales and use tax 
regardless of the place to which delivery is made. This lax is in addition \0, and not in lieu of, the 
one quarter of one percent (0.25%) temporary excise tax imposed pursuanllo Chapter 3.10 of 
the Capitola Municipal Code. 

Section 6. ADOPTION OF PROVISIONS OF STATE LAW. Except as othelWise provided in 
this ordinance and except insofar as they are inconsistent with the provisions of Part 1.6 of 
Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, all of the provisions of Part 1 (commencing with 
Section 6001) of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code are hereby adopted and made a 
part of this ordinance as though fully set forth herein. 

seelion 9. LIMITATIONS ON ADOPTION OF STATE LAW AND COLLECTION OF USE 
TAXES. In adopting the provision of Part 1 of Divi::.;ion 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code: 

A. Wherever the State of California is named or referred to as the taxing agency, the name 
of this City shall be substituted therefore . However, the substitution shall not be made where: 

1. The word ·State- is used as a part of the title of the State Controller, State 
Treasurer, State Board of Conirol, State Board of Equalization, State Treasury, or the 
Constitution of the State of California; 

2. The result of that substitution would require action to be taken by or against this 
City or any agency, officer, or employee thereof rather than by or against the State Board of 
Equalization, in performing the func1ions incident to the administration or operation of this 
Ordinance. 

142



RESOLUTIO N NO. 39 12 7772 
EXHI BIT A (DRAFT ORDINANC E) 

3. In those sections, including. but not necessarily limited to sections referring to the 
exterior boundaries of the State of California, where the result of the substitution would be to:. 

8. Provide an exemption from this tax with respect to certain sales, storage, 
use Of other consumption of tangible personal property which would not otherwise be exempt 
from this tax while such sales, storage, use or other consumption remain subject 10 tax by the 
State under the provisions of Part 1 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code; or, 

b. Impose this tax with respect to certain sales, storage, use or other 
consumption of tangible personal property which would not be subject to tax by the slate under 
the said provision of that code. 

4. In Sections 6701, 6702 (except in the Jast sentence thereof), 6711, 6715, 6737, 
6797 or 6828 of the Revenue and Taxation Code. 

B. The word "City· shall be substituted for the word ·State" in the phrase "reta.iler engaged 
in business in this State" in Section 6203 and in the definition of that phrase in Section 6203. 

Section 10. PERMIT NOT REQUIRED. If a seller's permit has been issued 10 a retaHer 
under Section 6067 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, an additional transactors' permit shall 
not be required by this ordinance. 

Section 11. EXEMPTIONS AND EXCLUSIONS. 

A. There shall be excluded from the measure of the transactions tax and the use tax the 
amount of any sales tax or use tax imposed by the State of California or by any city, city and 
county, or county pursuant to the Bradley-Burns Uniform Local Sales and Use Tax Law or the 
amount of any state-administered transactions or use tax. 

R There are exempt from the consumption of the amount of transactions tax the gross 
receipts from: 

1. Sales of tangible personal property, other than fuel or petroleum products, to 
operators of aircraft to be used or consumed principally outside the County in which the sale is 
made and directly and exclusively in the use of such aircraft as common carriers of persons or 
property under the authority of the laws of this State, the United States, or any foreign 
government. 

2. Sales of property to be used outside the City which is shipped to a point outside 
the City, pursuant to the contract of sale, by delivery to such point by the retailer or his agent, or 
by delivery by the retailer to a carrier for shipment to a consignee at such point. For the 
purposes of this paragraph, delivery to a point outside the City shall be satisfied: 

a. With respect to vehicles (other than commercial vehicles) subject to 
registration pursuant to Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 4000) of Division 3 of the Vehicle 
Code, aircraft licensed in compliance with Section 21411 of the Public Utilities Code, and 
undocumented vessels registered under Chapter 2 of Division 3.5 (commencing with Section 
9840) of the Vehicle Code by registration to an out-of-City address and by a declaration under 
penalty of perjury, signed by the buyer, stating that such an address is, in fact, his or her 
principal place of residence; and 

143



7773 RESOLUTION NO. 3912 
EXHIBIT A (DRAFT ORDINANCE) 

b. With respect to commercial vehicles, by registration to a place of 
business out~of*Cjty and declaration under penalty of perjury, signed by Ihe buyer, thai the 
vehicle will be operated from that address. 

3. The sale price of tangible personal property if the seller is obligated to furnish the 
property for a fixed price pursuant to a contract entered into prior to the operative date of this 
ordinarice. 

4. A lease of tangible personal property which is a continuing sale of such property, 
for any period of !lrne for which the lessor is obligated to lease the property for an amount fixed 
by the lease prior to the operative date of this ordinance. 

5. For the purposes of subsections (3) and (4) of this section, the sale or lease of 
tangible personal property shall be deemed not to be obligated pursuant to a contract or lease 
for any period of like for which any party to the contract or lease has the unconditional right to 
terminate the contract or lease upon notice, whether or not such right is exercised. 

C. There are exempted from the use tax imposed by this ordinance, the storage, use or 
other consumption in this City of tangible personal property: 

1. The gross receipts from the sale of which have been subject to a transaction tax 
under any state-administered transaction and use tax ordinance. 

2. Other than fuel or petroleum products purchased by operatQfs of aircraft and 
used Of. consumed by such operators directty and exclusively in the use of aircraft as common 
carriers of persons or property for hire or compensation under a certificate of public 
convenience and necessity issued pursuant to the laws of this State, the United Slates, or any 
foreign government. This exemption is in addition to the exemptions provided in Sections 6366 
and 6366.1 of the' Revenue and Taxation Code of the State of California . 

3. If the purchaser is obligated to purchase the property for a fixed price pursuant to 
a contract entered into prior to the operative date of this ordinance. 

4. If the possession of, or the exercise of any right or power over, the tangible 
personal property arises under a lease which is a continuing purchase of such property for any 
period of time for which the lessee is obligated to lease the prnperty for an amount fi xed by a 
lease prior to the operative date of this ~rdinance . 

5. For purposes of subsections (3) and (4) of this section, storage, use, or other 
consumption, or possession of , or exercise of any fight or power over, tangible persona l 
property shall be deemed not to be obligated pursuant to a contract or lease for any period of 
time· for which the party to the contract or lease has the unconditional righHo terminate the 
contract or lease upon notice, whether or not such right is exercised. 

6 . Except as provided in subparagraph (7), a retailer engaged in business in the 
City shall not be required to collect use tax from the purchaser of tangible personal property, 
unless the retailer ships or delivers the property into the City or participates within the City in 
making the sale of the property, including, but not lim ited to, soliciting or receiving the order, 
either directly or indirectly, at a place of business of the retailer in the City or through a 

144



RESOLUTION NO. 3912 7774 
EXHIB IT A (DRAFT ORDI NANCE) 

representative, agent, canvasser, solicitor, subsidiary, or person the City under the authority of 
the retailer. 

7. "A retailer engaged in business in the City" shall also include any retailer of any 
of the foliowingD vehicles subject to registration pursuant to Chapter 1 (commencing with 
Section 4000) of Division3 of the Vehicle Code, aircraft licensed in compliance with Section 
21411 of the Public Utilities Code, or undocumented vessels registered under Chapter 2 of 
Division 3.5 (commencing with Section 9840) of the Vehicle Code. That retailer shall be required 
to collect use lax from any purchaser who registers or licenses the vehicle, vessel, or aircraft at 
a"n address in the City. 

D. Any person subject to use tax under this ordinance may credit against that tax any 
'transactions tax or reimbursement for transactions tax paid to a district imposing, or retailer 
liable for a transactions tax pllrsuant 10 Part 1.6 of Division 23 of Ihe Revenue and Taxation 
Code with respect to the sale to the person of the property the storage, use or other 
consumption of which is subject to the use tax. 

Section 12. AMENDMENTS. All amendments subsequent to the effective date of this 
ordinance to part 1 of Division 2 of the Reverwe and Taxation Code relating to sales and use 
taxes and which are not inconsistent with Part 1.6 and Part 1.7 of Division 2 of the Revemle and 
Taxation Code, and all amendments to Part 1.6 and Part 1.7 of Division 2 of the Revenue and 
Taxation Code, shall automatically become a part of this drdinance, provided however, that no 
such amendment shall operate so as to affect the rate of tax imposed by this ordinance. 

Section 13. ENJOINING COLLECTION FORBIDDEN. No injunction or writ of mandate or 
other legal or equitable process shall issue in any suit, action or proceeding in any court against 
the State or the City, or against any officer of the State or the City, to prevent or enjoin the 
collection under this ordinance, or Part 1.6 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, of 
any lax or any amount of tax required to be collected. 

Section 14. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this ordinance or the application thereof to 
any person or circumstances is held invalid, the remainder of the ordinance and the application 
of such provision to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected hereby. 

Section 15. EFFECTIVE DATE. This ordinance relates to the levying and collecting of the 
City transactions and use taxes and shall take effect immediately. 

Section 16. CODIFICATION. Upon adoption of this ordinance pursuant to the voter 
approval, the City Clerk, in consultation with the City Attorney; is hereby authorized and directed 
to codify this ordinance in the Capitola Municipal Code. 

145



ATTACHMENT 3 

RESOLUTION NO. __ _ 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA AMENDING THE 
SUBMISSION TO THE QUALIFIED ELECTORS OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA BY ADDING A 

QUESTION OF A CERTAIN MEASURE RELATING TO VISITOR SERVICES FEE (TRANSIENT 
OCCUPANCY TAX) AT THE GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTI IN THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 

ON TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 6, 2012 AS N NO. 3912 

WHEREAS, a General Municipal Election on November 6, 2012 has been 
called by Resolution No. 3912, adopted on March 22, 20 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to No. 3912 by adding a Visitor 
Service Fee (transient occupancy tax) question; 

Now, therefore, the City Council resolve, declare, determine 
and order as follows: 

SECTION 1. T.h its right and authority, does order an 
amendment to Resolution ng question on the General Municipal 
Election: 

increased 
to pay for 
safety, 
social C'or\II1"":'" 

services including public 
lopment and tourism, and 

Yes 

No 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the Santa Cruz County Elections 
Department is requested to print the measure text exactly as filed or indicated on the filed 
document in the Voter's Information Pamphlet section of the Sample Ballot for the November 6, 
2012, election, attached hereto as Exhibit "A", The cost of printing and distribution of the measure 
text will be paid for by the City. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the City Clerk of the City of Capitola is 
hereby ordered and directed to cause said proposed ordinance and notice of election to be 
published in accordance with the provisions of the California State Elections Code. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the measure herein directed for 
inclusion on the November 6,2012 Ballot is in addition to those measures directed for inclusion on 
said ballot pursuant to Resolution No. 3912 adopted by the City Council on March 22, 2012. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing resolution was passed and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of Capitola at its regular meeting held on the 14th day of June, 2012, by 
the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Michael Termini, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

___________________ ,CMC 

Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 

146



RESOLUTION NO. __ 

EXHIBIT itA" 

ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA AMENDING SECTION 3.32.030 OF THE 
CAPITOLA MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO THE CAPITOLA VISITORS SERVICES FEE 

THE PEOPLE OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA, CALIFORNIA DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Section 3.32.030 of the Capitola Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

"3.32.030 Fee/tax imposed. 
A. For the privilege of occupancy in any 

is subject to and shall pay a general tax in an 
transient 
twelve 

nstitutes a 
only 

pay the 

percent of the rent charged by the 
debt owed by the transient to the city 
by payment by the operator to th 
tax to the operator 
rent is paid in i 
be paid with ea 
the transient's 

d. If the 
of the tax shall 

shall be due upon 
the hotel. If for any 

r of the hotel, the fee 
such tax shall be paid directly to the 
tax revenues shall be placed in the 

Section 2. SEVERABIL any provision of this ordinance or the application thereof to 
any person or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the ordinance and the application of 
such provision to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected hereby. 

Section 3. EFFECTIVE DATE. This ordinance relates to the levying and collecting of a City 
tax and shall take effect immediately. 

Section 4, CODIFICATION. Upon adoption of this ordinance pursuant to the voters' 
approval, the City Clerk, in consultation with the City Attorney, is hereby authorized and directed 
to codify this ordinance in the Capitola Municipal Code. 

147



Item #: 9.0. 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JUNE 14,2012 

FROM: OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

SUBJECT: 2012 GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. Adopt Resolution authorizing those identified members to write arguments and Council Members to 

file written arguments for or against City Measures and filing of rebuttal arguments for City 
Measure(s) submitted at the November 6, 2012 General Municipal Election; 

2. Approve Timeline for Filing Arguments/Rebuttals for Measure(s). 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: At the March 22, 2012 meeting, Council approved Resolution No. 
3912 requesting County Elections conduct the election, consolidate the General Munidpal Election for 
the City of Capitola (on Tuesday, November 6, 2012), and include a ballot measure regarding a 
permanent sales tax increase of one quarter percent be adopted to pay for disaster recovery and to 
maintain general services including public safety and street improvements. 

The next step in preparation for the General Municipal Election is for the City Council to adopt a 
Resolution authorizing certain Council Members to file written arguments for or against the City ballot 
measure and filing of rebuttal arguments for City measure(s) submitted at the November 6, 2012 
General Municipal Election. In addition, the City Clerk has prepared a timeline for submitting the 
impartial analysis, arguments for and against, and rebuttals to the arguments. 

The following information is provided regarding specific Council action to be taken: 

1. Resolution Authorizing Certain Council Members to File Written Arguments and Filing of 
Rebuttal Arguments for City Measure(s): Elections Code § 9282 provides that the City 
Councilor any individual voter who is eligible to vote onmeasure(s) ... may file a written 
argument for or against any city measure(s)." Since the City Council is including measure(s) on 
the November 6, 2012 ballot, the Council has the opportunity to designate up to five authors for 
the argument in support of the measure and up to five authors to write the rebuttal. That 
pursuant to § 9220 and 9285 of the Elections Code, wh~n the elections official has selected the 
arguments for and against the measure which will be printed and distributed to the voters, the 
elections official shall send a copy of an argument in favor of the measure to the authors of any 
argument against the measure and copy of an argument against the measure to the authors of 
any argument in favor of the measure immediately upon receiving the arguments. The author or 
a majority of the authors of an argument relating to a city measure may prepare and submit a 
rebuttal argument not exceeding 250 words or may authorize in writing any other person or 
persons to prepare, submit, or sign the rebuttal argument. A rebuttal argument may not be 
signed by more than five persons. A draft Resolution is provided for Council adoption 
(Attachment 1). 

148



6-14-12 AGENDA REPORT: 2012 GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION PAGE 2 

2. Signature Statement: All arguments concerning measures shall be accompanied by the form 
entitled "Signature Statement and Authorization for Another Person or Persons to Sign Rebuttal 
Argument". This form is to be signed by each proponent, and by each author, if different, of the 
argument (Exhibit A to draft Resolution). 

3. Impartial Analysis of Measure: The City Attorney has prepared an Impartial Analysis showing 
the effect of the measure, on the existing law and operation of the measure pursuant to Elections 
Code Section 9280. The impartial analysis is printed preceding the arguments for and against the 
measure and is 500 words or less (Attachment 2). 

4. Timeline for Filing Arguments/Rebuttals: The proposed Timeline for Filing Arguments/ 
Rebuttals for City Measures is attached (Attachment 3). These dates have been reviewed and 
are acceptable to the County Elections'Department. 

The County Elections Department will be conducting "Candidate Information Forums" this month. A 
flyer is attached. Capitola will be hosting an information night on Monday, June 25,2012, from 5:30 to 
7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers. This is a great opportunity for individuals who are thinking about 
running for office to find out more about what is required. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The City is responsible for costs involved in the printing and distribution of the 
measure text, impartial analysis, and argumentslrebuttals for or against measures in the voter 
information pamphlet. According to the County Elections Department, the estimated cost for this would 
be based on the number of registered voters. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Draft Resolution authorizing certain Council Members to file written arguments for or against a 
City Measure and filing of rebuttal arguments for City Measure(s); 

2. Impartial Analysis prepared by the City Attorney; 
3. Timeline for filing arguments/rebuttals for City Measures; 
4. 2012 General Municipal Election Information Sheet; 
5. Candidate information forums notice. 

Report Prepared By: Susan Sneddon, CMC 
City Clerk 

Reviewed and FO~,.a ad 
By City Manager: '. ' 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\06-14-12\ELECTION ARGUMENTS SALES TAX\9.F. Election 2012 
061412_stf.doc 149



ATTACHMENT 1 

RESOLUTION NO. __ 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA, CALIFORNIA, 
AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OF ITS MEMBERS TO FILE WRITTEN ARGUMENTS FOR OR 

AGAINST CITY MEASURE(S) AND FILING OF REBUTTAL ARGUMENTS FOR CITY 
MEASURE(S) SUBMITTED AT THE NOVEMBER 6,2012 GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION 

WHEREAS, a regular General Municipal Election is to be held)" the City of Capitola 
on Tuesday, November 6, 2012, at which there will be submitted Ito tt'i~ qualified electors ,of 
said City the following City measure: ' i /,n;.1 
MEASURE "_": Shall a City of Capitola permanent $ales taxiticl'"f;lase of one quarter 

of one percent be adopted to payfo(di!>8,ster recovery and to 
maintain general services incluclir'lg'" public safety and street 
improvements? YES or NO 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY CQI.),NCII-OF THE::CJTY OF CAPITOLA 
CALIFORNIA, DOES RESOLVE, DECLARE; DETERMINE: ANDORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. Thaftb(3, City Coun,ciJ)iUt!1grl,z~s t~~fbllowingll1ember(s) of it's body 
to file written argumentnot eXG~edi,hg words ~~g~r~ing th~;~ity measure as specified above, 
accompanied by theprint~8;n:anie(s) and;$i&n~ture(sy}W the author(s) submitting it, in 
accordance with Article 4,;Qh~pter3, Division/~of the Elections Code of the State of 
California. The arguments Q':lc:ryfbe chang~do(Y"ithdrawn until and including the date fixed 
by the City Clerk after w~ic;Hi nQ9rgumE¥n!s4" for or against the City measure may be 
submitted to the CityClerkj '. ". .. . 

The arguments shall be filed with the City Clerk, signed, with the printed name(s) 
and signature(s) of the author(s) submitting it, or if submitted on behalf of an organization, 
the name of the organization, and the printed name and signature of at least one of its 
principal officers who is the author of the argument. The arguments shall be accompanied 
by the Form of Statement To Be Filed By Author(s) of Argument. 

SECTION 2. That pursuant to Section 9285 of the Elections Code of the State of 
California, when the elections official has selected the arguments for and against the 
measure which will be printed and disbributed to the voters, the elections official shall send 
a copy of an argument in favor of the proposition to the authors of any argument against the 
measure and a copy of an argument against the measure to the authors of any argument in 
favor of the measure immediately upon receiving the arguments. 

The author or a majority of the authors of an argument relating to a city measure 
may prepare and submit a rebuttal argument not exceeding 250 words or may authorize in 
writing any other person or persons to prepare, submit, or sign the rebuttal argument. 

A rebuttal argument may not be signed by more than five authors. 

150



The rebuttal arguments shall be filed with the City Clerk, signed, with the printed 
name(s) and signature(s) of the author(s) submitting it, or if submitted on behalf of an 
organization, the name of the organization, and the printed name and signature of at least 
one of its principal officers, not more than 10 days after the final date for filing direct 
arguments. The rebuttal arguments shall be accompanied by the Signature Statement, 
and Authorization for Another Person or Persons to Sign Rebuttal Argum,ent, if applicable 
(Exhibit A). /:z1 

SECTION 3. That the City Council directs the City Clerkh'8' tf~!)§mit a copy of the 
measure to the city attorney. The city attorney shall prepare'ariimpartfc~t analysis of the 
measure not exceeding 500 words ,showing the effect of the ,'r11e~s!Jreqtf the existing law 
and the operation of the measure. The impartial analysis sh.alLbe .filE3d'by the date set by 
the City Clerk for the filing of primary arguments. ." '. . ',,' 

SECTION 4. That the City Clerk shall c~rtlfyt6th~pa$sage,ahq adoption of this 
resolution and enter it into the book of originc;ll;reSblutions; . ' ,,',',' 

I HEREBY CERTIFYthatthe foregoing~resolutiqn Wei'S passe,d.and adopted by the 
City Council of the City of Capitola on the 14th daYb(JUne, ,201,2, by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 
____________ ~~ __ ,CMC 
Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 

Michael Termini, Mayor 

151



EXHIBIT A 

SIGNATURE STATEMENT 
(Elections Code Section 9600) 

All arguments concerning measures filed pursuant to Division 9 of the Elections Code shall be 
accompanied by the following statement to be signed by each author of the argument. Names 
and titles listed will be printed in the Voter's Information Pamphlet in the order provided below and 
will appear as indicated below. 

"The undersigned author(s) of the: 

o 
o 
o 
o 

argument in favor of 

argument against 

rebuttal to the argument in favor of 

rebuttal to the argument against 

ballot measure (insert letter) __ at the Consolidated General Municipal Election.for the City of 
Capitola to be held on November 6, 2012 hereby state that such argument is true and correct to 
the best of knowledge and belief." 

(his/her/their) 

ARGUMENT/REBUTTAL FILED BY (check any of the following that apply) This information 
will be provided on the County Clerk/Elections Website: . 

o Board of Supervisors or Governing Board 
Contact Person's Printed Name: ____________________ _ 
Contact Person's Signature: _____________________ _ 
Title: _________ --'-___________________ _ 
Phone: FAX: 

--------~------E-Mail: ____________________________ _ 

o Bona Fide Association of Citizens or Filers of Special District Initiative 
Name of Association: 

-~------------------------Principal Officer's Printed Name: ____________________ _ 
Principal Officer's Signature: _____________________ _ 
Title: . ------------------------------
Phone: FAX: 

-~-------------E-Mail: ____________________________ _ 
Attach list of officers if document relates to a school district measure 

o Individual voter who is eligible to vote on the measure 
Printed Name: 

----------~----------------Signature of Voter: ~. _----___________________ _ 
Address Where You Live: ------------------------
Phone: FAX: 
E-Mail: ------------'-------

- 1 -
152



SIGNATURE STATEMENT - PAGE 2 
CHECK ONE OF THE FOLLOWING & RECORD LETTER OF MEASURE: 
o 
o 
o 
o 

Argument in Favor of Measure __ 
Argument Against Measure __ 
Rebuttal to Argument in Favor of Measure __ _ 
Rebuttal to Argument Against Measure __ 

The signatures of the following persons will be printed as submitted below following the argument or rebuttal. 

SIGNATURE PRINT NAME PRINT TITLE AND Are you DATE 
as it will appear in the NAME OF ASSOCIATION signing on 

Voter's Information (IF APPLICABLE) behalf of an 
Pamphlet as it will appear in the association? 

Voter's Information Pamphlet. YES or NO * 

*If the argument or rebuttal is being signed by a principal officer on behalf of an association that is supporting or opposing the measure, the name of 
the association will appear on the first line, followed by the principal officer's name and title on the second line as the example illustrates: 

- 2 - 153



AUTHORIZATION FOR ANOTHER PERSON OR 
PERSONS TO SIGN REBUTTAL ARGUMENT 

I, authorize the following person(s) to sign 
(print name of FILER of the argument) 

the rebuttal to the argument 
o 
o 

in favor 
against 

Measure for the November 6, 2012 Consolidated General Municipal Election. 
(Letter) 

(One or more people who signed the argument may be replaced with different people to sign the rebuttal) 

1. to sign instead of 
(print name of rebuttal signer) (print name of argument signer) 

2. to sign instead of 
(print name of rebuttal signer) (print name of argument signer) 

3. to sign instead of 
(print name of rebuttal signer) (print name of argument signer) 

4. to sign instead of 
(print name of rebuttal signer) (print name of argument signer) 

5. to sign instead of 
(print name of rebuttal signer) (print name of argument signer) 

Signature of Filer: Date: 

Attach this form to the 2-page "Signature Statement" submitted with the rebuttal argument. 

- 3 -
154



CITY ATTORNEY IMPARTIAL ANALYSIS

CITY OF CAPITOLA PERMANENT ONE QUARTER PERCENT SALES TAX 
INCREASE 

 In 2004, City voters approved a temporary ¼ cent sales tax increase which was originally 
scheduled to sunset on June 30, 2010. In 2008 City voters extended the sunset date to December 
31, 2017. As a result of these two voter approvals the current sales tax rate (combined state and 
local sales tax) in Capitola is 8 ¼ percent. 

 This ordinance, if adopted by the voters, would increase the sales tax rate by another ¼ 
percent from the current rate of 8 ¼ percent to 8 ½ percent. The sales tax increase proposed by 
this ballot measure has no sunset date. Accordingly if the proposed permanent ¼ percent tax 
increase is approved by the voters, the City’s sales tax, also known as the City’s retail 
transactions and use tax, will total 8 ½ percent through December 31, 2017 and 8 ¼ percent 
thereafter. 

 All City revenue generated by the sales tax is used by the City to pay for general City 
operations and programs including public safety and street improvements. As such, this ballot 
measure proposes a “general purpose tax” rather than a “special purpose tax” and requires a 
simple majority vote for adoption. 

 The above statement is an impartial analysis of the proposed sales tax increase ordinance. 
If you desire a copy of the ordinance, please call the City Clerk’s office at 831 475-7300 and a 
copy will be mailed or electronically transmitted to you at no cost to you. 

Word Count: 255 

ATTACHMENT 2 

155



R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\06-14-12\ELECTION ARGUMENTS SALES TAX\Election 
Attachment 3 2012 Argument Timeline.doc 

PUBLISH NOTICE SETTING DEADLINES 
FOR ARGUMENTS/REBUTTALS:  Wednesday, June 30, 2004 

DEADLINE FOR FILING ARGUMENTS: Tuesday, August 14, 2012 – 5:00 p.m.   
10-Day Public Inspection:    Wednesday, August 15 to Thursday, August 25 

DEADLINE FOR REBUTTALS:   Thursday, July 29, 2004 – 5:00 p.m. 
 10-day Public Inspection:    Friday, July 30 to Monday, August 9 

10- DAY PUBLIC INSPECTION:   Arguments and rebuttals are available for 10-day public 
inspection.  During this period a writ of mandate or 
injunction may be sought to require amendments or 
deletions.

DEADLINE FOR IMPARTIAL ANALYSIS: Tuesday, August 21, 2012 – 5:00 p.m. 

WHERE:      Capitola City Hall, Office of the City Clerk 
       420 Capitola Avenue 
       Capitola, CA  95010 

WRITTEN ARGUMENTS/REBUTTALS:  Arguments may not exceed 300 words in length, and 
rebuttals may not exceed 250 words in length. 

CONFIDENTIALITY OF ARGUMENTS:  Arguments and rebuttals shall remain confidential until 
5:00 p.m. on  Tuesday, August 14, 2012. 

WITHDRAWAL/CHANGES:   Arguments and rebuttals may be changed or withdrawn 
until and including the date fixed for final submission 
to the City Clerk. 

MULTIPLE ARGUMENTS:   If more than one argument is submitted, the City Clerk 
will select one of the arguments to be printed based on 
a priority specified in the Elections Code.

CONSOLIDATION WITH COUNTY:  At the close of the deadline for filing of said 
arguments/rebuttals, the materials filed with the City 
Clerk will be forwarded to the County Elections 
Department for inclusion in the Sample Ballot. 

2012
GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION 

Timeline for Filing 
Arguments/Rebuttals for City Measure 

ATTACHMENT 3 

156



CITY OF CAPITOLA 
2012 GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION INFORMATION 

 The City of Capitola will be holding its General Municipal Election on Tuesday, November 6, 
2012, to be consolidated with the Statewide Presidential Election Statewide General Election.  The 
following information is provided to answer general questions you might have regarding the city’s 
election.  Additional information can be obtained from the City Clerk at Capitola City Hall, 420 
Capitola Avenue, Capitola, CA 95010, by calling (831) 475-7300, or by email at 
ssneddon@ci.capitola.ca.us.

OFFICES TO BE FILLED BY ELECTION 
Two (2) Members of the City Council (4 year terms) 
One (1) City Treasurer (4-year term) 

INCUMBENTS PRESENTLY HOLDING OFFICE 
Kirby Nicol, Council Member (Unable to seek re-election pursuant to term limit ordinance)
Dennis Norton, Council Member  
Jacques Bertrand, City Treasurer 

SALARIES FOR ELECTED OFFICIALS 
Member of the City Council   $500.00 per month 
City Treasurer     $250.00 per month 

QUALIFICATIONS FOR CANDIDATES 
A person is eligible to hold office if he/she is a United States citizen, 18 years of age or older, 
and is a registered voter residing within the City of Capitola city limits at the time the 
nomination papers are issued.  Verification will be required prior to issuing nomination papers. 

FILING FEES 
There will be no filing fees for taking out nomination papers. 

DATES AND PROCEDURES FOR TAKING OUT, CIRCULATING AND FILING 
NOMINATION PAPERS 

Monday, July 16, 2012 to Friday, August 10, 2012 at 5:00 P.M. 

Nomination papers may be taken out and filed during this period.  Not less than 20 or more 
than 30 valid signatures are required for nomination to elected office in the City of Capitola. 

ATTACHMENT 4 

157



R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\06-14-12\ELECTION ARGUMENTS SALES TAX\Election Attachment 4  2012 
Info Sheet.doc 

NOMINATIONS (Continued) 
A nomination paper may be circulated and subsequently filed by the candidate or by any other 
person registered to vote at the election.  The circulator is required to indicate by affidavit the 
dates between which all signatures were obtained. 
Nomination papers shall be filed with the Capitola City Clerk not later than 5:00 P.M. on the 
88th day (Friday, August 10, 2012) before the election.  A candidate may withdraw his/her 
nomination paper after it has been filed until 5:00 P.M. on the 88th day, but not after then. 

TIME EXTENSION IF INCUMBENT FAILS TO FILE 
Should an incumbent fail to file by 5:00 P.M. on the 88th day, the voters shall have until 5:00 
P.M. on the 83rd day (Wednesday, August 15, 2012) to nominate candidates other than the 
incumbent for such elective office. 

PROCEDURES FOR FILING CANDIDATES’ STATEMENTS, FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 
STATEMENTS, AND CAMPAIGN EXPENDITURE FORMS 

Candidates’ Statements, if desired, must be filed with the nomination papers and shall remain 
confidential until expiration of the filing period.  The candidate is responsible for printing costs 
of the statement in the Sample Ballot.   
The Santa Cruz County Clerk/Elections Department has determined the cost for including a 
200-word statement in the sample ballot for a Capitola candidate will be $260.  The Capitola 
City Clerk will collect a deposit of $260 at the time a candidate files his/her Candidate’s 
Statement.  Should a candidate also desire his/her statement to appear in the sample ballot in 
Spanish, a deposit of $520 would be required.  Checks shall be made payable to the "City of 
Capitola."  The County Elections Department will charge $100 if a candidate does not submit 
their Candidate Statement on a CD to the City Clerk or it may be emailed to the Capitola City 
Clerk at ssneddon@ci.capitola.ca.us prior to filing their nomination papers.  One signed hard 
copy must be filed with the City Clerk by the filing deadline. 

Statements of Economic Interest - A Candidates’ Statement of Economic Interest (Fair 
Political Practices Commission Form 700) is required to be filed at the time nomination papers 
are filed.  Candidates can access this form and instructions on line at: 

http://www.fppc.ca.gov/index.php?id=500

Campaign Statements - Every candidate for any elective office and every committee must file 
campaign statements.  A candidate for local office must file a Form 501, Candidate Intention 
Statement, BEFORE solicitation or receipt of any contribution, or expenditure of any personal 
funds used for the election.   A Form 410, Statement of Organization-Recipient Committee,
must be filed within 10 days of receiving $1,000 in contributions.  Form 410 is filed with the 
Secretary of State, with a copy to the City Clerk.  Forms and instructions are available in the 
City Clerk’s Office and on the Fair Political Practices Commission website at www.fppc.ca.gov

BALLOT ORDER FOR CANDIDATES NAMES 

On Thursday, August 16, 2012, at 11:00 A.M., the Secretary of State draws the randomized 
alphabet to determine the order of candidates’ names on the ballot for the election. 

THE LAST DAY TO REGISTER TO VOTE IN THE NOVEMBER 6, 2012 MUNICIPAL 
ELECTION IN ORDER TO RECEIVE A SAMPLE BALLOT IS: TUESDAY, OCTOBER 9, 
2012

158



R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\06-14-12\ELECTION ARGUMENTS SALES TAX\Election Attachment 5 
CandInfoNights Flyer.doc 

Santa Cruz County Elections Department 
Candidate Information Nights-November 6, 

2012 Presidential General Election 

Candidate filing season has arrived and the Elections Department has arranged the 
following nights to answer any questions potential candidates may have. 

Thursday, June 21 
Watsonville Community Room 

275 Main St., 4th Floor 
6:00 p.m. to 7:30 p.m. 

Monday, June 25 
Capitola Council Chambers 
420 Capitola Ave., Capitola 

5:30 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. 
Wednesday, June 27 

Scotts Valley Council Chambers 
1 Civic Center Dr., Scotts Valley 

6:00 p.m. to 7:30 p.m. 

Thursday, June 28 
Santa Cruz Council Chambers 
Santa Cruz Council Chambers 

6:00 p.m. to 7:30 p.m. 

Frequently asked questions by prospective candidates are: 

 how and when to file papers; 
 what qualifications are required; 
 how to prepare a Candidate Statement of Qualifications; 
 what election data is available;  
 how to raise money for campaigns; 
 how to prepare for a “vote by mail” drive. 

All of these questions and any others will be answered at these candidate information 
nights. We will have Candidate’s Handbooks available for all interested parties as well. 
More information concerning the November election is available on our website at 
www.votescount.com. 

If you have any question concerning any of these meeting please call Crystal Bertheau 
at 831-454-2408. 

ATTACHMENT 5 

159



CITY COUNCIL 
A"GENOA REPORT 

Item #: 9.E. 

MEETING OFJUNE 14,2012 

FROM:" OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

SUBJECT: DESIGNATION OF VOTING DELEGATE AND ALTERNATES FOR THE 2011 
LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES ANNUAL CONFERENCE TO BE HELD IN SAN 
DIEGO FROM SEPTEMBER 5 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 7, 207 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Designate Capitola's Voting Delegate and Alternate(s) for the 2012 
League of California Cities Annual Conference. 

DISCUSSION: The League of California Cities ("League") Annual Conference for 2012 will be held in 
San Diego, California, from Wednesday, September 5 through Friday, September 7,2012. The annual 
business meeting (at the General Assembly) is scheduled for 12 p.m. (Noon) on Friday, September 7, 
at the San Diego Convention Center. At this meeting, the League membership considers and takes 
action on resolutions that establish League policy. It is important that all cities be represented at this 
meeting. Attached is a memorandum from the League regarding designation of Voting Delegates and 
Alternates. City Council action is advised by no later than Friday, August 15, 2012, in order to meet the 
League's deadline for submitting Voting Delegate/Alternate Form. There are specific procedures that 
must be followed with respect to the voting delegate and alternate(s): 

1. In order to vote at the Annual Business Meeting, the city council must designate a voting delegate. 
2. The city council may also appoint up to two alternate voting delegates, one of whom may vote in the 

event the designated voting delegate is unable to serve in that capacity. 
3. Designation of the voting delegate and alternate(s) must be done by city council action. 
4. The voting delegate and alternate(s) must be registered to attend the conference. They need not 

register for the entire conference; they may register for Friday only. 
5. At least one voting delegate or alternate must be present at the Business Meeting on Friday 

afternoon and in possession of the voting card in order to cast a vote. Voting delegates and 
alternates need to pick up their conference badges before signing in and picking up the voting 
delegate card at the Voting Delegate Desk. If the voting delegate and alternates find themselves 
unable to attend the Business Meeting, they may not transfer the voting card to another city official. 

Vice Mayor Stephanie Harlan is planning to attend this conference. 

FISCAL IMPACT - None 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Memo dated May 3, 2012, from the League of California Cities with accompanying attachments. 

Report Prepared By: Susan Sneddon, CMC 
City Clerk 

Reviewed and Fo 
By City Manager: 

r:\agenda staff reports\2012 agenda reports\city council\06-14-12\9.e. league voting delegate_re 
160



ATTACHMENT 1 . 
1400 K STR.IIET 
SAcRAMENTO, CA 9581<1 
~H:{916) 658-8200 
FX: (916) 658-8240 

May 3, 2012 

Council Action Advised by August 3, 2012 

TO: Mayors, City Managers and City Clerks 

RE: DESIGNATION OF VOTING DELEGATES AND ALTERNATES 
League of California Cities Annual Conference - September 5 - 7, San Diego 

The League's 2012 Armual Conference is scheduled for September 5 - 7 in San Diego. An 
important part of the Annual Conference is the Annual Business Meeting (at the General 
Assembly), scheduled for noon on Friday, September 7, at the San Diego Convention Center. At 
this meeting, the League membership considers and takes action on resolutions that establish 
League policy. 

In order to vote at the Annual Bl,1siness Meeting, your city council must designate a voting 
delegate. Your city may also appuinl up to two alternate voting delegates, one of whom may vote 
in the event tliat the designated voting delegate is unable to serve in that capacity. 

Please complete the attached Voting Delegate form and return it to the League's office 
no later than Wednesday, August 15, 2012. This will allow us time to establish voting 
delegate/alternates' records prior to the conference. 

Please note the following procedures that are intended to ensure the integrity of the voting 
process at the Annual Business Meeting. 

• Action by Council Required. Consistent with League bylaws, a city's voting delegate 
and up to two alternates must be designated by the city council. When completing the 
attached Voting Delegate form, please attach either a copy of the council resolution that 
reflects the council action taken. or have your city clerk or mayor sign the fonn affirming 
that the names provided are those selected by the city council. Please note that 
designating the voting delegate and alternates must be done by city council action and 
cannot be accomplished by individual action of the mayor or city manager alone. 

• Conference Registration.Required. The voting delegate and alternates must be 
registered to attend the conference. They need not register for the entire conference; they 
may register for Friday only. To register for the conference, please go to our website: 
www.cacities.org. In order to cast a vote, at least one person must be present at the 
Business Meeting and in possession of~e voting delegate card. Voting delegates and 
alternates need to pick up their conference badges before signing in and picking up 

161



the voting delegate card at the Voting Delegate Desk. This will enable them to receive 
the special sticker on their name badges that will admit them into the voting area during 
the Business Meeting. 

• Transferring Voting Card to Non-Designated Individuals Not Allowed. The voting 
delegate card may be transferred freely between the voting delegate and alternates, but 
only between the voting delegate and alternates . If the voting delegate and alternates find 
themselves unable to attend the Business Meeting, they may not transfer the voting card 
to another city official. 

• Seating Protocol during General Assembly. At the Business Meeting, individuals with 
the voting card will sit in a separate area. Admission to tlus area will be limited to those 
individuals with a special sticker on their name badge identifying them as a voting delegate 
or altemate. lfthe voting delegate and altel11ates wish to sit together, they must sign in at 
the Voting Delegate Desk and obtain the special sticker on their badges. 

The Voting Delegate Desk, located in the conference registration area of the San Diego 
Convention Center, will be open at the following times: Wednesday, September 5, 9:00 a.m. -
6:30 p.m.; Thursday, September 6, 7:00 a.m. - 4:00 p.m.; and September 7, 7:30-10:00 a.m. The 
Voting Delegate Desk will also be open at the Business Meeting on Friday, but not during a roll 
call vote, should one be undertaken. 

The voting procedures that will be used at the conference are attached to this memo. Please 
share these procedures and this memo with your council and especially with the individuals that 
your council designates as your city's voting delegate and alternates. 

Once again, thank: you for completing the voting delegate and alternate form and returning it to 
the League office by Wednesday, August 15. lfyou have questions, please call Mary 
McCullough at (916) 658-8247. 

Attachments: 
• 2012 Aru1Ua! Conference Voting Procedures 
• Voting Delegate/Alternate Form 

162



1400 K Street, Suite 400 • Sacramento, California 958 14 
Phone: 916.658.8200 Fax: 916.658.8240 

www.cacities.org 

Annual Conference Voting Procedures 
2012 Annual Conference 

1. One City One Vote. Each member city has a right to cast one vote on matters pertaining to 
League polioy. 

2. Designating a City Voting Representative. Prior to the Annual Conference, each city 
council may designate a voting delegate and up to two alternates; these individuals are 
identified on the Voting Delegate Form provided to the League Credentials Committee. 

3. Rcgisterillg with the Credentials Committee. TIle voting delegate, or alternates, may 
pick up the city's voting card at the Voting Delegate Desk in the conference registration 
area. Voting delegates and alternates must sign in at the Voting Delegate Desk. Here they 
will receive a special sticker on their name badge and thus be admitted to the voting area at 
the Business Meeting. 

4. Signing Initiated Resolution ]letitions. Only those individuals who are voting delegates 
(or alternates), and who have picked up their city's voting card by providing a signature to 
the Credentials Committee a1 the Voting Delegate Desk, may sign petitions to initiate a 
resolution. 

5. Voting. To cast the city's vote, a city official must have in his or her possession the city's 
voting card and be registered with the Credentials Committee. The voting card may be 
transferred freely between the voting delegate and alternates, but may not be transferred to 
another city official who is neither a voting delegate or altemate. 

6. Voting Area at Business Meeting. At the Business Meeting, individuals with a voting card 
will sit in a designated area. Admission will be limited to those individuals with a special 
sticker on their name badge identifying them as a voting delegate or alternate. 

7. Resolving Disputes. In case of dispute, the Credentials Committee will detelmine the 
validity of signatures on petitioned resolutions and the right of a city official to vote at the 
Business Meeting. 

163


	Agenda
	8.A. Liability Claims Report
	8.B. City Council Minutes Report
	8.B. Attachment 1 City Council Minutes 4-26-12 
	8.C. City Manager Employment Agreement Report
	8.C. Attachment 1 First Amendment to Agreement
	8.C. Attachment 2 Original Agreement
	8.D. Employment Contracts Report
	8.D. Attachment 1 Mid-Management Employees' MOU
	8.D. Attachment 2 Confidential Employees' MOU
	8.D. Attachment 3 Public Works Director Agreement
	8.D. Attachment 4 Finance Director Agreement
	8.D. Attachment 5 Administrative Services Director Agreement
	8.E. Capitola Village & Wharf Business Improvement Area Report
	8.E. Attachment 1 Draft Resolution
	8.E. Attachment 2 Draft Notice for Public Hearing
	8.F. Unmarked Police Vehicle Purchase Report
	8.F. Attachment 1 Toyota of Santa Cruz Quote
	8.G. Appropriations Limit Amendment 2010-11 & 2011-12 Report
	8.G. Attachment 1 Draft Resolution
	8.G. Attachment 2 Resolution No. 3829
	8.G. Attachment 3 Resolution No. 3869
	8.H. Appropriation Limit 2012-13 Report
	8.H. Attachment 1 Draft Resolution
	8.I. Clean Building Maintenance Contract Award Report
	8.I. Attachment 1 Clean Building Maintenance Agreement
	8.J. Planning Commission Action Minutes 6-7-12
	8.K. Implementation of Internal Revenue Code Section 414(h)(2) Report
	8.K. Attachment 1 Draft Resolution
	8.L. Adoption of the 2012-13 Fiscal Year Budget Report
	8.L. Attachment 1 Draft Resolution
	8.M. Architectural & Site Review Committee Appoinment Report
	8.N. Commission on the Environment Vacancy Notice Report
	8.N. Attachment 1 Vacancy Notice
	9.A. 220 Oakland Avenue Appeal Report
	9.A. Attachment 1 Appeal Letter from Harlan 4-25-12
	9.A. Attachment 2 Planning Commission Staff Report 4-19-12
	9.A. Attachment 3 Planning Commission Minutes 4-19-12
	9.A. Attachment 4 Revised Plans 5-29-12
	9.A. Attachment 5 Memo from Swift 6-5-12
	9.A. Attachment 6 Petition in Support 4-19-12
	9.B. Gilroy Avenue Traffic Evaluation Report
	9.B. Attachment 1 Gilroy Avenue Map
	9.B. Attachment 2 Vehicle Code 22352
	9.C. Visitor Service Fee Measure Report
	9.C. Attachment 1 Long Range Fiscal Strategy Staff Report 1-26-12
	9.C. Attachment 2 Resolution No. 3912
	9.C. Attachment 3 Draft Resolution
	9.D. General Municipal Election 2012 Report
	9.D. Attachment 1 Draft Resolution
	9.D. Attachment 2 City Attorney Impartial Analysis
	9.D. Attachment 3 Arguments-Rebuttals for City Measure Timeline
	9.D. Attachment 4 General Municipal Election Information
	9.D. Attachment 5 Candidate Information Nights Flyer
	9.E. Designation of Voting Delegate for California League of Cities Report
	9.E. Attachment 1 Designation of Voting Delegates & Alternates



